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Letters to the Editor
A key element in the world of publishing is what readers have to say.

We want to hear from you on just about anything that appears in
each issue of Akauntan Nasional. Why not drop us a line now?

Let the New Year spirit foster goodwill and understanding among us.

When I joined the Institute as Editor in June last year, I was not forewarned
and certainly not prepared for the roller-coaster ride of changes in store
for the Institute. I was just in time to be present at a poignant farewell

dinner for the Institute’s outgoing President, Dato’ Hanifah Noordin, who stepped
down as President in March 2000 after 13 years in of fice. His successor Dato’ Syed
Amin Al-Jeffri, a prominent accountant, took to his new office like a fish to water and
it was business as usual — or so it seemed.

The first signs that something was ‘brewing’ was when the proposed amendments to
the Accountants Act, 1967, were tabled in Parliament in July 2000. Among others, the
proposed amendments called for a change in the composition of the Institute’s council
members, the removal of examination functions by the Institute and the usage of a
single designation for all accountants. Apart from the single designation, other dif fer-
ences arose. Two schools of thought emerged, some clamoured for a review of some of
the proposed changes, while others called for the changes to be passed.

After years of being an inconspicuous regulatory body, the Institute was propelled
into the forefront when members were cour ted to support the opposing views. This
was evident, as the Institute’s Annual General Meeting loomed nearer in September
2000. The country’s major newspapers had a field day running stories on the two
‘warring’ factions. The democratic process advocated by our Constitution, embodied
in the Act, was alive and well. The result — members voted for change and five new
members joined the Council. After a long battle, a representative from the academia
was elected to sit on the council, paving the way for closer ties with the country’s
academic institutions. Abdul Samad Haji Alias, who is also President of the Malaysian
Association for Certified Public Accountants (MACPA), was elected to preside over
the Council and immediately called for a review of the Institute’s functions and initi-
ated steps to unite all players in the accountancy profession.

The Accountants (Amendment) Act, 2000, was passed by the Dewan Negara in
December 2000 and is currently awaiting the go ahead for implementation from the
Finance Minister. This issue of Akauntan Nasional  looks at what is in store for the
accountancy profession in the third millennium. For the Institute, the Accountants
(Amendment) Act, 2000, is viewed as a positive step towards unity and modernisation
of the profession in light of the changes in the economic, financial and technological
landscape that will gather further momentum in the near future. The risk to the pro-
fession will be just too great if nothing is done to prepare for the new business envi-
ronment. We can rest assured that the positive steps taken over the years will not
falter with the conclusion of the 20th Century. Whatever the future brings, the Insti-
tute will march steadily ahead, with single-minded determination to strengthen itself,
the profession and the nation at large.

Happy Chinese New Year!                                                               Editor

Emphasis on Unity
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Bracing for  
21st century

T
he year 2000 has finally
ended. It is time to take
stock of what has been
achieved during the year
while planning for 2001. Be-

ing in one of the oldest professions in the
world, accounting professionals are not
spared from this act of stock-taking and fu-
ture planning. In fact, in Malaysia, the pro-
fession is currently beset with issues that
pose insurmountable challenges. The lat-
est and hottest issue that is being dis-
cussed in the accounting fraternity is the
Accountants (Amendment) Bill, 2000.
(Please see sidebar).

In an interview with Akauntan Nasional,
the Malaysian Institute of Accountants
(MIA) President, Abdul Samad Haji Alias,
says that there are four significant changes
that directly affect the Institute.

First, he points out, is that the designation
of MIA members, be it registered or public
accountants, will be changed to Chartered
Accountant. Abdul Samad explains that in
the era of globalisation and information tech-
nology, accountants would not be differenti-
ated by titles; but by their professional atti-
tude and conduct. Therefore, the question
of who is better qualified should not arise.

Second, the MIA Council will be en-
larged to between 25 and 30 members that
will include, among others, the Account-
ant-General, the President of MACPA and
Presidents of local professional bodies.

The third significant change in MIA will be
a shift in focus to regulating the profession.

In line with this, he adds, the function to

hold examinations has been expressly re-
moved to dispel any doubt on the dual role
played by the Institute, the institutions of
higher learning (IHL) and the professional
bodies. Last but not least, an MIA qualify-
ing examination will be introduced to en-
able persons whose qualifications are not
recognised under the Accountants Act to
gain admission as MIA members. Explain-
ing the benefits that can be derived from
these changes, Abdul Samad says, “There
are two paramount benefits that we can all
clearly see. First, the new constitution of
the MIA Council will ensure wider repre-
sentation of all components involved in the
development of the accountancy profes-
sion, namely the Government, IHLs and
professional accounting bodies. Second,
the refocusing of MIA’s role as a regula-
tory body will pave the way for rationalisa-
tion in the profession, that is, towards
greater co-operation and harmonisation.”

In the stewardship function the account-
ing profession shoulders a heavy respon-
sibility towards various users of financial
information. The users expect to be able
to rely on their credibility. Whenever the
accounting profession is discussed, one im-
portant question that we must clarify is :
who makes up the accounting profession?
There are four components :  public prac-
tice, management accounting, the
academia, and the public sector.

It is common knowledge that the business
of public practice is assurance, that is, finan-
cial statements that the accountants in pub-
lic practice opine are reliable. In this sector,

Abdul Samad says, the participants are far
from being homogeneous. They range from
internationally renowned names to mid-sized
firms and sole practitioners. “The challenge
for MIA is to ensure that the standard of prac-
tice among practitioners remains high and
relevant to the market place. No doubt the
standards of the big firms are high but it does
not mean that they are not vulnerable”, he
points out. At the same time, the Institute is
also helping to raise the standards of the
smaller practices. In view of the initiatives
taken by the Government in introducing the
tax self-assessment and the disclosure based
regimes, “No matter what the size of the firm,
the underpinning philosophies of integrity,
objectivity and independence must be ap-
plied,” he stresses. In this respect, MIA, ac-
cording to Abdul Samad, is getting the as-
sistance of practitioners from the big firms
to help their brethren in the smaller firms.
Do it for the greater good of the country!

M A L AYS I A N  I N S T I T U T E  O F  AC C O U N TA N T S

C O V E R

MIA President, Abdul Samad Haji Alias, outlines the Insti-

tute’s strategies as well as specific measures to face chal-

lenges.
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“… the refocusing of MIA’s

role as a regulatory body

will pave the way for
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greater co-operation and
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By Iszudin Mohd Amin
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As for management accounting, the sec-
ond component of the accounting profes-
sion, Abdul Samad explains that its busi-
ness is to continuously improve the bot-
tom-line for the company’s shareholders.
“MIA’s role is to ensure that management

ers under its purview and work together in
the areas of entry qualifications, training,
and continuous professional education. MIA
has a responsibilty to be proactive in this
sector if it wants to improve the quality of
financial management. The Institute must
work together with the two AGs in migrat-
ing towards accrual accounting in the pub-
lic sector.

Aside from the Accountants (Amend-
ment) Bill, 2000, let us trace the develop-
ment of the profession. There have also
been a few other changes in the legislative
provisions that have directly affected the
accounting profession over the last five
years. One of the most significant changes
is the implementation of the Financial Re-
porting Act, 1997. As a result of this, the
Malaysian Accounting Standards Board
(MASB) was established to develop and
issue accounting standards. These stand-
ards are mandatory for compliance in the

had the accounting standards been com-
plied with and quantified the financial effect
of the non-compliance.

Subsequently, in 1999, came the imple-
mentation of the Securities Industry Regu-
lations, 1999. As a result of this, public
listed companies (PLCs) are also required
to prepare their accounts in accordance
with approved accounting standards issued
by MASB. The KLSE listing requirements
were also amended in 1999 and as a result,
PLCs are required to submit quarterly fi-
nancial statements.

Perhaps, among all the law reforms in
recent years, the disclosure based regula-
tion (DBR) is the most significant. In 1996,
the Securities Commission (SC) had initi-
ated the transformation of the Malaysian
capital market from a merit-based system
to DBR, which is expected to be fully im-
plemented by year 2001. The objective of
the DBR is to promote greater ef ficiency

accountants must continue to be equipped
with the latest management skills so that
they continuously improve profits of their
companies. The required skills are dif fer-
ent compared to those needed by practi-
tioners in public practice”, he says.

“The third component that makes up the
accounting profession, regrettably is the
group least focussed by the MIA. Up to now,
this particular group of people, the academi-
cians, have been quietly yet tirelessly pro-
ducing accounting graduates”, he adds.
Fortunately, the public recognises their ef-
forts by at least employing the graduates.
However, none of these noble academicians
was a member of the MIA Council — at least
until 1 October 2000. As the MIA Council is
concerned with the quality of tertiary ac-
counting education in this country, it is im-
perative that the olive branch be ex-
tended to the academicians. The reason,
Abdul Samad says is obvious, “The univer-

sities are the repositories of leading edge
scholarship in accounting knowledge base.”

The fourth component that the MIA must
now be more proactive in is the public sec-
tor. This sector is easily one of the largest
employers of accountants in the country —
from the Accountant-General’s of fice to the
Auditor-General’s, and to the multitude of
local authorities, statutory government or-
ganisations and semi-government organisa-
tions. Thus, it is very impor tant for MIA to
embrace this par ticular group of practition-

preparation of companies’ accounts.
Another came in the form of the Compa-

nies (Amendment) Act, 1998. Under this act,
companies are required to prepare their
accounts in accordance with approved ac-
counting standards issued by MASB so as
to give a true and fair view of their compa-
nies’ af fairs. Furthermore, where there has
been non-compliance with any approved
accounting standard, the auditor is required
to express an opinion as to whether the ac-
counts would have given a true and fair view



January 2001Akauntan Nasional6

and transparency in the capital market
through the practice of three important
tenets :  disclosure, due diligence and good
corporate governance. Thus, under the
new regime, a company’s access to the se-
curities market will be conditional upon the
provision of full, accurate and timely dis-
closure of information. Responsibility to
provide information will rest with the pro-
moters, directors and advisors, who in-
clude the advising merchant banks, report-
ing accountants, lawyers and valuers.

Indeed, the law reforms are a hot topic
among the accounting fraternity. What
they should realise, is that the law reforms
mean that the scope of responsibilities of
accountants has greatly widened. At the
same time, the exposure of accountants en-
gaged in reporting functions to profes-
sional liability has been increased corre-
spondingly.

Take the SC (Amendment) Act, 2000, for
example. It provides that a person who ac-
quires, subscribes for or purchases secu-
rities and suffers loss or damage as a re-
sult of any statement or information con-
tained in a prospectus that is false or mis-
leading, or where there is a material omis-
sion, may recover the amount from the
parties who are named in the prospectus
and who have made a statement that is in-
cluded in the prospectus, including the
auditor.

So, the next question is, how should the
accounting profession address the issues
that arise from the law reforms? There are
three ways. First, the accounting profes-
sion must strengthen the pre-qualification
education and training curriculum. At the
same time, there must be a continuous up-
date of knowledge and skills by qualified
accountants. Last but not least, is to
continuosly improve the quality of audit-
ing and financial repor ting.

While the accounting profession in Ma-
laysia is still beset with domestic issues,
globalisation has come knocking on our
door. In some instances, it has even en-
tered through the doorway. Now that the
trend is towards global financial and secu-
rities markets, accountants will have no
choice but be knowledgeable of not only
national but also international standards,
laws and regulations governing business
practices and investment activities.

C O V E R

M A L AYS I A N  I N S T I T U T E  O F  AC C O U N T A N T S

“… it is imperative that the olive branch be extended to the academicians

…. The universities are the repositories of leading edge scholarship in

accounting knowledge base.”

Malaysian accountants need to develop
new and innovative ser vices that not only
meet the needs of the local businesses but
also the multinationals. At the same time,
they should also develop high levels of in-
formation technology (IT) competence or
risk becoming functionally obsolete. The
impact of IT on the accounting profession
has seen the emergence of two significant
phenomenas.

The first phenomenon is the emergence
of electronic business (e-business) that
gives rise to four pertinent issues such as
accounting and auditing risks, and the
need to consider the development of an
accounting and financial repor ting frame-
work for e-business. The advent of e-busi-
ness has also brought forward accounting
issues like revenue recognition, cyber as-
sets and payment processes. Auditing is-
sues like proof of transaction occurrence,
authentication, compliance with legal re-
quirements, taxation, audit trail and qual-
ity of web-based business reporting should
also be addressed under e-business.

The second is the emergence of knowl-
edge economy (k-economy). In this respect,
the challenge to accountants is the ability
to create high value products and services.

There is a need for them to identify, cap-
ture and market the knowledge-base that
drives their services. It is without doubt that
globalisation and rapid advancement in
technology will bring about competition
within the accounting profession as well as
from other service providers. To take on this
challenge, these key factors are impor tant
to ensure success :

Be able to provide relevant, ef fective
and value-added services;

Be capable in using IT to enhance the
efficiency of ser vice delivery; and

Be conversant with global business
practices and strategies.

Abdul Samad is adamant that a unified pro-
fession is more focussed and authoritative by
virtue of having a single reference point. Al-
though he believes that accounting firms (es-
pecially the small players) should move to-
wards mergers, the MIA President says the
new merger initiative will not interfere with
its members’ business development plans. He
adds, “The Institute will not go against free
enterprise. We can give broad guidelines, gen-
eral direction, encouragement or act as arbi-
ter, but there will be no forced marriages.”

1

2

3
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swer these questions, we need to look back
at the history of the accountancy profes-
sion in Malaysia.

The early 1960s saw an increasing
number of accountants in the country with
a vast majority having obtained their pro-
fessional qualifications and training in the
UK. As there was no proper body or or-
ganisation to govern the accountancy pro-
fession in Malaysia at that time, a number
of overseas trained accountants got to-
gether to set up a body called the
Malaysian Association of Certified Public
Accountants (MACPA). As there were cer-

tain restrictions for membership, another
group then set up the Malaysian Society
of Accountants (MSA). The existence of
two separate bodies to represent account-
ants led to difficulties in implementing for-
mal regulations for the accountancy pro-
fession. This led the Government to set up
the Malaysian Institute of Accountants
(MIA) through the enactment of the Ac-
countants Act, 1967, which empowered the
Institute with the primary role of regulat-
ing the accountancy profession.

Despite the setting up of MIA, the Gov-
ernment did not require the dissolution of
other accounting bodies in the countr y. In

A Bill of Change —
Accountants (Amendment) Act, 2000

After all the debate and
speculation in the past year,
the accounting fraternity
looks forward to a positive
future.

The amendments to the Account-
ants Act, 1967, which was pro-
posed by the former Accountant-

General, YBhg Datuk Mohamed Adnan
Ali, in 1999, had fuelled much
speculation and was the topic
of conversation in the account-
ing fraternity for the better part
of year 2000. Whilst the former
Council members of the
Malaysian Institute of Account-
ants (MIA) had expressed con-
cern over the proposed
changes — primarily pertain-
ing to the composition of the
Institute’s Council and the In-
stitute’s right to conduct its
own examination — the results
of the Council election at the
Annual General Meeting on 30
September 2000 saw a new
team taking the reins of the
Council from the incumbents. Taking a
fresh approach, the new Council had of-
fered full suppor t for the proposed
changes, paving the way for the amend-
ments to be passed. Any uncertainty on the
fruition of the proposed amendments to the
Act was finally laid to rest when the Bill
was passed in the Dewan Rakyat on the af-
ternoon of 13 December 2000.

What exactly do the amendments mean
to the Malaysian accountant and the ac-
countancy profession, and why the need
to amend? Apart from a new common des-
ignation as ‘Chartered Accountant’, what
is there in store for the profession? To an-

“The early 1960s saw an increasing number of account-

ants in the country with a vast majority having obtained

their professional qualifications and training in the UK”

fact, more representatives of international
bodies were set-up in Malaysia, among
them were the Australian Society for Cer-
tified Praticing Accountants (ASCPA) and
the Association of Certified Chartered Ac-
countants (ACCA). Together, the various
professional bodies represented the major-
ity of qualified accountants in the country.

The MIA meanwhile, played a mere per-
functory role and existed in name only re-
sulting in public ignorance of the Institute
and the task it was assigned to do. Only in
1987 did the Institute start playing a more
active role in regulating the accountancy

profession in Malaysia. How-
ever, over the last 14 years, the
Institute had come under sharp
criticism from its members and
the various professional ac-
counting bodies for ‘infringing’
on non-regulatory functions
and for ‘failing’ to handle its
regulatory role effectively. In
fact, the setting up of the
Malaysian Accounting Stand-
ards Board (MASB) in 1997
under the Financial Reporting
Act, 1997 (the Act), as an inde-
pendent authority to develop
and issue accounting and finan-
cial reporting standards in Ma-
laysia, was generally seen as a

reflection of MIA’s inability to develop and
issue standards on accounting and financial
repor ting. It was also perceived that the In-
stitute had started to play an unof ficial role
as a professional accounting body by under-
taking certain functions that were tradition-
ally carried out by the professional account-
ing bodies. The ambiguous and unclear
functions of the various factions represent-
ing accountants in the country led to confu-
sion among members of the public.

With the increasing number of account-
ants in the country at an average of 100 new
members every month, there was an urgent
need to address the weaknesses. Against

By Nirmala Ramoo
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A BILL
Intituled

An Act to amend the Accountants Act, 1967

C O V E R
M A L AY S I A N  I N S T I T U T E  O F  A C C O U N TA N T S

8

ENACTED by the Parliament of Malaysia
as follows :

Short title and commencement

1. (1) This Act may be cited as the Ac-
countants (Amendment) Act, 2000.

(2) This Act comes into operation on a
date to be appointed by the Minister
by notification in the Gazette.

Interpretation

2. For the purposes of this Act, “appointed
date” means the date appointed by the
Minister under subsection 1(2).

Amendment of section 2

3. The Accountants Act, 1967 (Act 94),
which in this Act is referred to as the
“principal Act”, is amended in section 2 :

(a) by inserting after the definition of
‘Council’ the following definition :

“  ‘Council members’ or ‘members of
the Council’ means the members of the
Council specified under section 8(1)
and includes the President and Vice-
President of the Institute”;

(b) by inserting after the definition of
‘lnstitute’ the following definition :

“ ‘Malaysian Institute of Accountants
Qualifying Examination’ means the ex-
amination referred to in section 15A”;

(c) by substituting the definition of ‘mem-
ber’ the following definition:

“ ‘member’ means a person who is reg-
istered in accordance with this Act as
a chartered accountant, a licensed ac-
countant or an associate member”; and

(d) by substituting for the full stop which
appears at the end of the definition of

‘rules’ a semicolon and inserting after
that definition the following definition :

“ ‘total Council members’ means the
maximum number at any one time of
Council members as specified in sec-
tion 8(3).”

Amendment of section 6

4. Section 6 of the principal Act is
amended :

(a) in paragraph (b), by substituting for the
wor ds “training, education and exami-
nation” the words “training and educa-
tion”; and

(b) by inser ting after paragraph (b) the
following paragraph :

“(ba) to approve the Malaysian Insti-
tute of Accountants Qualifying Exami-
nation and to regulate and supervise
the conduct of that Examination.”

Amendment of section 7

5. Section 7 of the principal Act is
amended :

(a) in paragraph (d), by substituting for the
words “training, education or examina-
tion” the words “training or education”;

(b) in paragraph (e), by substituting for the
words “public accountants or regis-
tered accountants” the words “char-
tered accountants”;

(c) in paragraphs (i) and (j) by substitut-
ing for the word “members” the words
“the Institute”;

(d) by inser ting after paragraph (k) the
following paragraph :

“(ka) the procedure of the Disciplinary
Appeal Board”;

(e) in paragraph (l), by inserting after the
word “Committee” the words “and the
Disciplinary Appeal Board”; and

(f) by inserting after paragraph (p) the fol-
lowing paragraph :

“(pa) the approval, regulation and su-
pervision of the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants Qualifying Examination.”

Amendment of section 8

6. The principal Act is amended by sub-
stituting for section 8 the following sec-
tion :

“Constitution of the Council”

8.  (1) For the purposes of this Act there
shall be established a Council of the In-
stitute comprising the following per-
sons who must be members of the In-
stitute :

(a) the Accountant General, Malaysia, or
his nominee;

(b) not more than five members appointed
from the higher educational institu-
tions specified in Part I of the Third
Schedule;

(c) the President of the Malaysian Asso-
ciation of Cer tified Public Accountants;

(d) three members appointed from amongst
the Presidents of the local branches of
the recognised bodies specified in Part
II of the First Schedule;

(e) one member appointed from amongst
the members of the council of the
Malaysian Association of Certified Pub-
lic Accountants, other than its President;

(f) not more than nine other members ap-
pointed from amongst suitably quali-

this backdrop, Datuk Mohamed Adnan sub-
mitted a proposal to amend the Accountants
Act, 1967, which had not undergone any
major amendments since its inception. The
Accountants (Amendment) Act, 2000, which
was passed by the Dewan Negara in Decem-
ber 2000 will come into operation on a date

to be appointed by the Minister of Finance.
With the amendments in place, it is hoped
that the long simmering tension between
MIA and the professional accountancy bod-
ies will cease to exist and in its place will
emer ge a strong representation for
Malaysian accountants, that will play an ef-

fective role in addressing the challenges
faced by accountants in the emerging back-
drop of liberalisation and globalisation.

The following is the Accountants
(Amendment) Act, 2000, as set out in the
bill presented at Parliament.
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fied persons; and

(g) ten members elected by the annual
general meeting of the Institute in ac-
cordance with the rules of the Institute.

(2) The members referred to in subsection
(1)(b), (d), (e) and (f) shall be ap-
pointed by the Minister on the advice
of the Accountant General and such ap-
pointments may be revoked by the
Minister without assigning any reason
therefore.

(3) The total Council members shall not be
less than 25 and more than 30.

(4) The President and V ice-President of
the Institute shall be elected by a sim-
ple majority vote of the total Council
members from amongst the Council
members for a term of two years.

(5) In the event of any vacancy arising in
the of fice of the President or of the
Vice-President, the Council shall at its
next meeting or as soon as may be
thereafter elect one of the Council
members to fill the vacancy by a sim-
ple majority vote of the total Council
members for a new term of two years.

(6) The President or V ice-President of the
Institute shall not hold office for more
than two consecutive years.

(7) If the members of the Council fail to
elect the President and Vice-President
as specified in subsection (4) or (5), the
Minister shall appoint the President
and Vice-President from amongst the
Council members for a period of two
years.

(8) A Council member shall not hold office
for more than four consecutive years.

(9) The Minister may, in respect of each
Council member appointed under sub-
section (l)(c) and (d), appoint an alter-
nate member to attend, in place of that
Council member, meetings of the
Council when that Council member is
for any reason unable to attend.

(10) When attending meetings of the Coun-
cil, an alternate member shall for all
purposes be deemed to be a member
of the Council.

(11) An alternate member shall, unless he
sooner resigns his membership or his
appointment is sooner revoked, cease
to be an alternate member when the

Council member in respect of whom he
is an alter nate ceases to be a member
of the Council.”

Amendment of section 13

7. Subsection 13(1) of the principal Act is
amended by substituting for para-
graphs (a), (b) and (c) the following
paragraphs :

(a) chartered accountants;

(b) licensed accountants; and
(c) associate members.”

Amendment of section 14

8. Subsection 14(1) of the principal Act is
amended by substituting for para-
graphs (a) and (b) the following para-
graphs :

(a) he has passed any of the final examina-
tions specified in Part I of the First
Schedule and has not less than three
years’ practical accounting experience
in the service of a chartered account-
ant or in a Government department,
bank, insurance company, local author-
ity or other commercial, financial, in-
dustrial or professional organisation or
other undertaking approved by the
Council;

(b) he is a member of any of the recognised
bodies specified in Part II of the First
Schedule; or

(c) he is eligible to sit for and has passed
the Malaysian Institute of Accountants
Qualifying Examination and has not
less than three years’ practical account-
ing experience in the ser vice of a char-
tered accountant or in a Gover nment
department, bank, insurance company,
local authority or other commercial, fi-
nancial, industrial or professional or-
ganisation or other under taking ap-
proved by the Council.”

Amendment of section 15

9. The principal Act is amended by sub-
stituting for section 15 the following
section :

“Membership as char tered account-
ants

15. An applicant shall, before admission as
a char tered accountant, satisfy the
Council that :

(a) he has passed any of the final examina-
tions specified in Part I of the First
Schedule and has not less than three

years’ practical accounting experience
in the service of a chartered account-
ant or in a Government department,
bank, insurance company, local author-
ity or other commercial, financial, in-
dustrial or professional organisation or
other undertaking approved by the
Council ;

(b) he is a member of any of the recognised
bodies specified in Part II of the First
Schedule;

(c) he is eligible to sit for and has passed
the Malaysian Institute of Accountants
Qualifying Examination and has not
less than three years’ practical account-
ing experience in the ser vice of a char-
tered accountant or in a Government
department, bank, insurance company,
local authority or other commercial, fi-
nancial, industrial or professional or-
ganisation or other undertaking ap-
proved by the Council; or

(d) he has authority under section 8(2) and
(6) of the Companies Act, 1965 (Act
125), to act as a company auditor with-
out limitation or conditions.”

New section 15A

10. The principal Act is amended by insert-
ing after section 15 the following sec-
tion :

“ Malaysian Institute of Accountants
Qualifying Examination

15A. (1) For the purposes of sections 14
and 15, the Malaysian Institute of Ac-
countants Qualifying Examination :

(a) shall be conducted by the higher edu-
cational institutions specified in Part I
of the Third Schedule or the recog-
nised bodies specified in Par t II of that
Schedule: and

(b) shall not be conducted without the ap-
proval of the Institute.

(2) A person shall only be eligible to sit for
the Malaysian Institute of Accountants
Qualifying Examination if he possesses
a qualification relating to accounting,
business or finance recognised by the
Public Services Department of the
Government or other qualifications
approved by the Council.

(3) The Minister may, after consulting the
Institute, by order published in the Ga-
zette amend the Third Schedule.”
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Amendment of section 16

11. Section 16 of the principal Act is
amended :

(a) by substituting for subsection (l) the
following subsection :

(1) Notwithstanding section 14(1), but sub-
ject to section 14(3) and (6), every per-
son on payment of the prescribed fee
shall be entitled to be admitted as a
member of the Institute as a licensed
accountant :

(a) if he has been granted limited or con-
ditional approval to act as an auditor of
companies under section 8(6) of the
Companies Act, 1965, or if he has been
in public practice as an accountant, a
tax consultant or a tax adviser immedi-
ately before the coming into operation
of this Act; or

(b) if he is a member of the Malaysian So-
ciety of Accountants and has passed
any of the final examinations of that
body last held in December 1992 and
has not less than three years’ practical
accounting experience in the service of
a chartered accountant or in a Govern-
ment depar tment, bank, insurance
company, local authority or other com-
mercial, financial, industrial or profes-
sional organisation or other undertak-
ing approved by the Council”; and

(b) in subsection (3) :

(i) by substituting for the words “the
rules” the words “section 10”; and

(ii) by substituting for the words “public
accountant or a registered accountant,”
the words “chartered accountant.”

New section 16A

12. The principal Act is amended by insert-
ing after section 16 the following sec-
tion :

“Associate member

16A. (1) Any person who is closely associ-
ated with the profession of accountancy
or who has participated in the advance-
ment of accountancy training and edu-
cation but is otherwise not qualified un-
der this Act to be admitted as a char-
tered accountant may, subject to sec-
tion 14(3), be admitted as an associate
member of the Institute on payment of
the prescribed fees if he satisfies the

requirements of the rules relating to
the admission of an associate member
made under section 7(1).

(2) An associate member is entitled to all
the privileges accorded to a member
who is a char tered accountant or a  li-
censed accountant but is not entitled to
vote at the meetings of the Institute held
under paragraph 8 of the Second Sched-
ule nor request for a general meeting
under paragraph 8(2) of that Schedule.”

Amendment of section 17

13. Section 17 of the principal Act is
amended :

(a) in subsection (1) :

(i) by substituting for the words “public
accountant” wherever appearing the
wor ds “chartered accountant”;

(ii) by substituting for the words “Public
Accountant” the words “Chartered Ac-
countant”; and

(iii)by substituting for the words “P.A.(M)”
the words “C.A.(M)”;

(b) by deleting subsection (2); and

(c) by inserting after subsection (3) the
following subsection :

(4) Subject to section 23, any person who
is registered as an associate member
shall, so long as he is so registered, de-
scribe himself as an “Associate Mem-
ber”, and may use the letters
“A.M.(M)” after his name.”

Amendment of section 18

14. Section 18 of the principal Act is
amended :

(a) by substituting :

(i) for the words “public accountant” wher-
ever appearing the words “chartered
accountant”; and

(ii) for the words “public accountants”
wherever appearing the words “char-
tered accountants”;

(b) by substituting for the words “; or”
which appear at the end of paragraph
(f) a full stop; and

(c) by deleting paragraph (g).

New section 18A

15. The principal Act is amended by inserting
after section 18 the following section :

“Advertisement

18A. A member who is a chartered ac-
countant or a licensed accountant may
adver tise himself as being engaged in
practice as a chartered accountant or
licensed accountant respectively in ac-
cordance with by-laws made by the
Council.”

Amendment of section 19

16. Section 19 of the principal Act is
amended :

(a) in the shoulder note, by substituting for
the words “Investigation Committee
and Disciplinar y Committee” the
words “Investigation Committee, Dis-
ciplinary Committee and Disciplinar y
Appeal Board”;

(b) in paragraph (a) :

(i) by substituting for the word “three” the
word “five”;

(ii) by substituting for the word “two” the
word “three”; and

(iii)by deleting the word “and” which ap-
pears at the end of the paragraph;

(c) in paragraph (b), by substituting for the
full stop the words “; and”; and

(d) by inserting after paragraph (b) the
following paragraph :

(c) “a Disciplinary Appeal Board compris-
ing five members of the Council of
whom three shall form a quorum.”

Amendment of section 21

17. The principal Act is amended by sub-
stituting for section 21 the following
section :

“Appeal against decision of Discipli-
nary Committee”

21. (1) Any member aggrieved by the deci-
sion of the Disciplinary Committee may,
within a period of 21 days after the deci-
sion has been communicated to him,
appeal to the Disciplinary Appeal Board.

(2) When the Disciplinary Appeal Board
considers an appeal made under
subsection(l), any member of the In-
vestigation Committee who conducted
the investigation into the complaint
against the member who is making the
appeal, or any member of the Discipli-
nary Committee against whose deci-
sion the appeal is made shall not be
present or in any way participate in any

C O V E R
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proceedings relating to that appeal.

(3) The Disciplinary Appeal Board may
confirm, reverse or vary the decision
of the Disciplinary Committee.

(4) The decision of the Disciplinary Appeal
Board under subsection (3) shall be fi-
nal.”

Amendment of section 22

18. Section 22 of the principal Act and its
shoulder note are amended by substi-
tuting for the words “public account-
ant” wherever appearing the words
“chartered accountant.”

Amendment of section 23

19. Section 23 of the principal Act is
amended :

(a) in the shoulder note, by substituting for
the words “registered accountant or li-
censed accountant” the words “li-
censed accountant or associate mem-
ber”;

(b) in paragraphs (a) and (c), by substitut-
ing for the words “registered account-
ant or a licensed accountant” the words
“licensed accountant or an associate
member”; and

(c) in paragraph (b), by substituting for the
words  “registered accountant” or “li-
censed accountant” the words “licensed
accountant” or “associate member.”

New section 24A

20. The principal Act is amended by insert-
ing after section 24 the following sec-
tion :

“Act or omission done in good faith”

24A. No action or suit shall, be instituted
or maintained in any court against any
person for any act or omission done in
good faith in the exercise of the pow-
ers and duties under this Act and in a
reasonable belief that it was necessar y
for the purpose intended to be served
by it.”

Amendment of section 25

21. Section 25 of the principal Act is
amended by substituting for the words
“one thousand” the words “ten thou-
sand.”

Amendment of section 26

22. Section 26 of the principal Act is amended
by substituting for the words :

(a) “one thousand ringgit” the words “ten
thousand ringgit”; and

(b) “two thousand ringgit” the words
“twenty thousand ringgit.”

Amendment of section 27

23. Section 27 of the principal Act is amended
by substituting for the words :

(a) “public accountant” the words “char-
tered accountant”;

(b) “two thousand ringgit” wherever ap-
pearing the words “twenty thousand
ringgit”; and

(c) “one thousand ringgit” the words “ten
thousand ringgit.”

Amendment of section 29

24. Section 29 of the principal Act is
amended by substituting for the words
“five hundred ringgit” the words “five
thousand ringgit.”

Amendment of First Schedule

25. The principal Act is amended in the
First Schedule :

(a) by substituting for Part I the following
Part :

FIRST SCHEDULE
(Sections 14 and 15)

PART I

(a) the final examination of the University
of Malaya for the Diploma Perakaunan
(Diploma in Accounting);

(b) the final examination of the University
of Malaya for the Ijazah Sarjana Muda
Perakaunan (Degree of Bachelor of Ac-
counting);

(c) the final examination of the Universiti
Kebangsaan Malaysia for the Ijazah
Sarjana Muda Perakaunan (Kepujian)
(Degree of Bachelor of Accounting
(Honours));

(d) the final examination of the MARA In-
stitute of Technology for the Diploma
Lanjutan Perakaunan (Advanced Di-
ploma in Accountancy);

(e) the final examination of the Universiti
Teknologi MARA for the Ijazah Sarjana
Muda Perakaunan (Degree of Bachelor
of Accounting);

(f) the final examination of the Universiti
Utara Malaysia for the Ijazah Sarjana
Muda Perakaunan (Kepujian) (Degree
of Bachelor of Accounting (Honours));

(g) the final examination of the Universiti
Per tanian Malaysia for the Ijazah
Bacelor Perakaunan (Kepujian) (De-
gree of Bachelor of Accounting (Hon-
ours));

(h) the final examination of the Universiti
Putra Malaysia for the Ijazah Bacelor
Perakaunan (Kepujian) (Degree of
Bachelor of Accounting (Honours)); or

(i) the final examination of the Universiti
Islam Antarabangsa for the Ijazah
Sarjana Muda Perakaunan (Kepujian)
( Degree of Bachelor of Accounting
(Honours)).”;

(b) in Part II :

(i) in the opening paragraph :

(A)by substituting for the words “associa-
tions recognised” the words “recog-
nised bodies”; and

(B)by substituting for the words “section
14(l)(a)” the words “section 14(1)(b)
and 15(b)”;

(ii) in paragraph (e) , by inserting after the
words “Association of” the word “Char-
tered”;

(iii)in paragraph (g), by inserting after the
words “Australian Society of’ the words
“Certified Practising”;

(iv)in paragraph (h), by substituting for the
words “Society of’ the word “Char-
tered”; and

(v) in paragraph (k), by substituting for the
words “Institute of Cost and” the words
“Chartered Institute of’.

Amendment of Second Schedule

26. The principal Act is amended in the
Second Schedule :

(a) by inserting after paragraph 2 the fol-
lowing paragraphs :

“interim elected members”

2A. (1) Notwithstanding section 8, on the
appointed date, the first ten members
of the Council refer red to in section
8(l)(g) shall be appointed by the Min-
ister and shall hold of fice until the first
annual general meeting of the Institute
after the appointed date, after which
their places shall be filled by members
of the Institute elected in accordance
with that section.

(2) For the purpose of paragraph (1). “ap-

11
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ences to a chartered accountant.

(3) Notwithstanding subsections (1) and
(2), the annual subscription prescribed
to be payable by a public accountant or
registered accountant under the Ac-
countants Rules 1972 [P.U.(A) 329/72]
shall continue to be payable until the
Accountants Rules are amended.

Rights, etc., or public accountant and
registered accountant not affected by
change of name

30. The change of name from a public ac-
countant or registered accountant to a
chartered accountant shall not affect
any rights, privileges, liabilities, duties
or obligations of a public accountant or
registered accountant acquired, ac-
crued or incur red prior to the ap-
pointed date or render defective any
legal proceedings by or against him.

Legal proceedings before and after the
appointed date

31. Legal proceedings that could have
been continued or commenced by or
against any person in his capacity as a
public accountant or registered ac-
countant prior to the appointed date,
may be :

(a) continued on or after the appointed date
by reference to that person as a public
accountant or registered accountant, as
the case may be; or

(b) commenced on or after the appointed
date by reference to that person as a
chartered accountant.

Appeals to the High Court on

disciplinary matters

32. (1) Any member of the Institute who is
aggrieved by the decision of the Disci-
plinary Committee but who has not
filed his appeal to the High Cour t on
the appointed date may appeal to the
Disciplinary Appeal Board.

(2) Any appeal by a member of the Insti-
tute who is aggrieved by the decision
of the Disciplinar y Committee which
is pending in the High Court on the
appointed date shall continue to be
dealt with by the High Court as if this
Act had not been enacted

Note :  This Bill is reprinted with permission
from Pencetakan Nasional Bhd.

C O V E R
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pointed date” means the date on which
this paragraph comes into operation.

Rotation of elected members

28. (1) Notwithstanding paragraph 2A,
once all members of the Council re-
ferred to in section 8(l)g are fully
elected members, the rotation of the
elected members shall be on the follow-
ing basis :

(a) at the second and third annual general
meetings, the elected members of the
Council shall ballot or volunteer to de-
termine the three members of the
Council who shall retire; and

(b) at each subsequent annual general
meeting thereafter, three elected mem-
bers of the Council who have been long-
est in office shall retire and their places
shall be filled by members elected in ac-
cordance with section 8(l)(g).

(2) For the purpose of subparagraph
(1)(b), retiring elected members of the
Council shall be eligible for re-election
if they are not otherwise disqualified
from holding of fice in the Council.”;

(b) in paragraph 3 :

(i) by deleting the word “or” which ap-
pears at the end of subparagraph (e);

(ii) by substituting for the full stop which
appears at the end of subparagraph (f)
the words “; or”; and

(iii)by inserting after subparagraph (f) the
following subparagraph :

(g) “he is an appointed Council member
under section 8(2) and his appointment
is revoked.”;

(c) by substituting for paragraph 4 the fol-
lowing paragraph :

“Vacancies”

4. Any vacancy arising among :

(a)the appointed members of the Council
under section 8(l)(b), (d), (e) and (f)
shall be filled by new appointments to
be made by the Minister; or

(b) the elected members of the Council
under section 8(1)(g) may be filled by
the Council and any such new Council
member shall hold office until the next
annual general meeting”; and

(d) in subparagraph 5(2), by deleting the
words “of whom at least two shall be
public accountants and two shall be

registered accountants.”

New Third Schedule

27. The principal Act is amended by inser t-
ing after the Second Schedule the fol-
lowing Schedule :

THIRD SCHEDULE
(Section 15A)

Part I

The higher educational institutions recog-
nised for the purposes of section 15A(1) are :

(a) University of Malaya;

(b) Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia;

(c) Universiti Teknologi MARA;

(d) Universiti Utara Malaysia;

(e) Universiti Putra Malaysia; and

(f) Universiti Islam Antarabangsa.

Part II

The recognised body for the purpose of
section l5A(l) is the Malaysian Association
of Certified Public Accountants.”

Dissolution of Council

28. (1) On the appointed date, the Council
existing before the appointed date shall
be dissolved and the Minister shall con-
stitute a new Council in accordance
with section 8 and paragraph 2A of the
Second Schedule.

(2) All matters pending on the appointed
date before the Council existing prior
to the appointed date shall, on the ap-
pointed date, be dealt with by the Coun-
cil constituted on the appointed date.

(3) All instr uments or documents lodged
with the Council existing prior to the
appointed date shall be deemed to be
lodged with the Council constituted on
the appointed date.

Change of name of public accountant
and registered accountant

29. (1) A public accountant or registered
accountant shall, on the appointed date,
be known as a char tered accountant.

(2) All references to a public accountant or
registered accountant in any written
law or in the register maintained un-
der the principal Act or in any instr u-
ment or document subsisting before
the appointed date shall, on the ap-
pointed date, be construed as refer-
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This Bill seeks to amend the Accountants Act
1967 (“Act 94”).

2. Clause 1 deals with the short title and the
power of the Minister to appoint the date of
commencement of the proposed Act.

3. Clause 2 seeks to define “appointed date”
to mean the date of coming into operation
of the proposed Act.

4. Clause 3 seeks to amend section 2 of Act 94
to introduce certain new definitions and to
amend an existing definition used in Act 94.

5. Clause 4 seeks to amend section 6 of Act 94
to remove the function of the Institute to
hold examinations. At the same time, it also
confers new functions on ·the Institute, that
is, to approve the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants Qualifying Examination and to
regulate and super vise the conduct of that
Examination.

6. Clause 5 seeks to amend section 7 of Act 94
relating to the rule making power of the In-
stitute. Paragraph (a) of that clause has the
effect of removing the power of the Insti-
tute to make rules relating to the examina-
tion of candidates for admission as members
of the Institute. Paragraphs (d) and (e) of
that clause empower the Institute to make
rules relating to the Disciplinary Appeal
Board and the approval, regulation and su-
pervision of the Malaysian Institute of Ac-
countants Qualifying Examination.

7. Clause 6 seeks to amend section 8 of Act 94
to, inter alia, enhance the constitution of the
Council by providing a broader representa-
tion of members of the Institute in the Coun-
cil. It also provides for the appointment of
alternate members for cer tain Council
members and the election of the President
and Vice-President of the Institute as well
as the maximum consecutive terms of of-
fice for the President and Vice-President of
the Institute as well as other Council mem-
bers. The appointment of those Council
members under subsection 8(2) of Act 94
may also be revoked by the Minister with-
out assigning any reason therefore.

8. Clause 7 seeks to amend subsection 13(1)
of Act 94 to provide for a change of name of
public accountants and registered account-
ants to that of chartered accountants in the
register, the removal from the register the
reference to r egistered accountants as
members of the Institute and adding asso-
ciate members as members of the Institute
in the register.

9. Clauses 8 and 9 seek to amend section 14
and substitute section 15 of Act 94 respec-
tively to provide for the qualifications re-
quired for membership in the Institute and
as a chartered accountant.

10. Clause 10 seeks to introduce a new section
15A into Act 94 which provides, inter alia,

for the Malaysian Institute of Accountants
Qualifying Examination, an examination
which is not to be conducted without the
approval of the Institute and which is to be
conducted by the higher educational insti-
tutions and recognised bodies specified in
the Third Schedule. Only persons who pos-
sess a qualification relating to accounting,
business and finance r ecognised by the
Public Ser vices Department of the Govern-
ment or other qualifications approved by the
Council may sit for the Examination.

11. Clause 11 seeks to amend section 16 of Act
94 to allow a person with the qualifications
stated in subsection 16(1) of Act 94 to be
admitted as a member of the Institute as a
licensed accountant.

12. Clause 12 seeks to introduce a new section
16A into Act 94 to provide for the admission
as an associate member of the Institute any
person who is closely associated with the
profession of accountancy or who has par-
ticipated in the advancement of accountancy
training and education. An associate mem-
ber is entitled to all the privileges of a mem-
ber who is a char tered accountant or a li-
censed accountant but is not per mitted to
vote at any meetings held under paragraph
8 of the Second Schedule to Act 94 nor to
request for the general meeting under
subparagraph 8(2) of that Schedule.

13. Clause 15 seeks to introduce a new section
18A into Act 94 to permit advertising by
certain members of the Institute in accord-
ance with by-laws made by the Council un-
der that section.

14. Clause 16 seeks to amend paragraph 19(a)
of Act 94 to strengthen the membership of
the Investigation Committee by increasing
the number of members from three to five
and the quorum from two to three. The
Council is also empowered to establish the
Disciplinary Appeal Board.

15. Clause 17 seeks to substitute section 21 of
Act 94. The substituted section 21 provides
that any member aggrieved by the decision
of the Disciplinar y Committee may appeal
against the decision of the Disciplinary Com-
mittee to the Disciplinary Appeal Board and
no longer to the High Court. It also provides
that a member of the Investigation Commit-
tee who conducted the investigation into the
complaint against the member who is mak-
ing the appeal or a member of the Discipli-
nary Committee against whose decision the
appeal is made shall not be present nor par-
ticipate in the appeal proceedings. The Dis-
ciplinar y Appeal Board is also empowered
to confirm, reverse or vary the decision of
the Disciplinar y Committee. Subsection (4)
provides that the decision of the Disciplinary
Appeal Board shall be final.

16. Clause 20 seeks to introduce a new section

24A into Act 94 to protect acts or omissions
of any person done under Act 94 in good
faith.

17. Clause 21, 22, 23 and 24 seek to amend sec-
tions 25, 26, 27 and 29 of Act 94 respectively
to increase the fines for offences under
those sections.

18. Clause 25 seeks to substitute Par t I of the
First Schedule to Act 94 to, inter alia, in-
clude the final examination of the Universiti
Teknologi MARA for the Degree of Bach-
elor of Accountancy into the list of final ex-
aminations recognised for the purpose of
membership to the Institute as chartered
accountants.

19. Clause 26 seeks to amend the Second
Schedule to Act 94 by introducing new para-
graphs 2A and 2B. The new paragraph 2A
seeks to provide for an interim power of ap-
pointment of the first ten elected members
of the Council under paragraph 8(l)(g) of
Act 94 until the first annual general meet-
ing of the Institute is held after the ap-
pointed date. The new paragraph 2B seeks
to provide for the manner of rotation for the
fully elected members at the third annual
general meeting and thereafter held after
the appointed date. This will ensure greater
opportunity for other members of the Insti-
tute to become Council members. Para-
graph 26(b) seeks to amend paragraph 3 of
the Second Schedule to Act 94 to provide
that a Council member shall vacate his of-
fice if his appointment under subsection
8(2) of Act 94 is revoked.

20. Clause 27 seeks to add a new Third Sched-
ule to Act 94 which lists the names of the
higher educational institutions and recog-
nised bodies that may conduct the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants Qualify-
ing Examination.

21. Clauses 28 to 32 seek to make transitional
provisions to cater for the dissolution of the
existing Council and the constitution of a
new Council, the change of name of the ex-
isting public and registered accountants to
that of chartered accountants and the re-
moval of the reference to registered ac-
countants from the register on the ap-
pointed date. It also seeks to provide for
appeals from the decision of the Discipli-
nar y Committee on disciplinary matters
which are pending in the High Court on the
appointed date and for those appeals which
have yet to be filed in the High Court on
the appointed date.

22. Other amendments not specifically dealt
with in this Statement are minor or conse-
quential in nature.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
This bill will not involve the Government in any
extra financial expenditure.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

13
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T
he Council members of the
Malaysian Institute of Account-
ants (MIA) are into their fourth
month as the driving force be-

hind the Institute. One could say that their
gestation period is over and they have
clearly settled down to the task of main-
taining the delicate balance in one of the
more dynamic regulator y bodies in the
country. However, there is a certain uneasi-
ness among the Institute’s members about
the way recent developments have un-
folded and affected the integrity of the pro-
fession.

For more than a decade, the Institute had
been dogged by factionalism, torn apart by
members divided between the main war-
ring parties, the Malaysian Association of
Certified Public Accountants (MACPA)
and the Association of Certified Account-
ants (ACCA). Ever since the dormant In-
stitute was revived in the mid-80s it had

been controlled by an exco aligned to the
ACCA.

But during MIA’s 14th Annual General
Meeting in September last year, the tide
turned and Abdul Samad Haji Alias, Presi-
dent of MACPA, was appointed as the new
President of MIA.

The 57-year-old accountant, once deputy
countr y managing partner of Ar thur
Andersen & Co., and now their adviser, is
wasting no time. He and his team are bring-
ing sweeping changes to MIA’s role in par-
ticular, and the accounting profession in
general. With him at the helm, will account-
ants in the country be united at last or has
the change in presidency fur ther divided
them? During his recent interview with
Malaysian Business, Abdul Samad talked
about changes he would like to see at the
Institute and his vision for the accountancy
profession.

Some excerpts;

Q1 :  There have been calls for account-
ants in the country to unite. There have
been various factions fighting it out.
Your comments please.

In the past there was some truth to that.
The last MIA election has been an eye-
opener. For the first time we saw unity be-
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MAKING MIA COUNT
Will the new head of the national

accounting body succeed in

lifting it out of the doldrums?

M A L AY S I A N  I N S T I T U T E  O F  A C C O U N TA N T S

C O V E R

tween the regulator and the profession. For
some reason along the way, the MIA lost
the respect of its members.
Q2 :  What should it have done? Where
did it go wrong?

Well, I think MIA should be a regulating
agency but unfor tunately it also wants to
behave like a professional body. A profes-
sional body has an examination function.
MIA has never been able to do that. It has
messed things up, so much so there is a
lawsuit against it over the issue of exami-
nations. MIA was also unable to handle the
standards-setting issue and that function
was also taken away from it.

Q3 :  But as the national accounting
body, is it not part of the MIA’s duty to
be a regulator as well as set the exams
and standards?

Not necessarily. For example, in Aus-
tralia and the UK, the accounting profes-
sion is entirely in the hands of professional
bodies. If  MIA had done its job right from
day one, the Government might have sup-
ported it in carr ying out its examinations,
etc, but unfortunately it failed badly.

Q4 :  So how will the issue of exami-
nations be addressed then?
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This interview is edited and reprinted with per-
mission from  Malaysian Business (16 Decem-
ber 2000).
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Abdul Samad :  MIA should be a regulating agency

The various professional accounting
bodies will have to carry on as usual. Of
course, we have only one local accounting
body, that is, the MACPA while the rest are
internationally recognised bodies.

Q5 :  So what will the role of the MIA
be?

It will be a regulatory body. At the mo-
ment, MIA has two classes of membership
— those who are admitted, as they are
members of scheduled accounting bodies
and those who are local graduates in ac-
counting who have three years experience.
So these local graduates do not have any
professional accounting qualifications.
This latter group is whom MIA will have
to really provide what I call professional
services. For the rest, the MIA can exer-
cise its regulatory function through those
professional bodies.

Q6 :  So you would prefer only one
class of membership where ever yone
is a member of a professional body?

Yes, but that will take some time.

Q7 :  Which means to say only those
from professional bodies will be able
to open their own accounting firms, for
example?

Take a MACPA member who has passed
the examination. If he wants to go into prac-
tice, MACPA will issue a practising certifi-

cate provided the member has been issued
with a licence by the Treasury. But cur-
rently, a university graduate with three
years experience can apply to join the MIA
and also apply for a licence from the Treas-
ur y. If he presents himself well, he can
obtain it and start a firm.
Q8 :  So what it means is that cur-
rently there are those with degrees and
no professional accounting body quali-
fications who are operating firms?

Yes. I was told the public accountant cat-
egory is quite large.

Q9 :  What are you going to do about
it?

I am talking to the regulators and pro-
fessional bodies to try and find a solution.

Q10 :  How prepared are accountants
in gearing up to the challenges posed
by globalisation?

The accounting profession is more pre-
pared than other professions. Internation-
ally renowned accounting firms have al-
ready been operating in Malaysia for many
years. They have teamed up with
Malaysian partners and firms. I dare say
that some of the par tners of the Malaysian
firms have become partners of the inter-
national firms.

Q11 :  So how would the smaller local
accounting firms survive? Do they have

a role to play?
They can survive as they have a market-

place. Some firms like to remain small and
they provide a more personal service. They
cater to a niché. They have to improve in
terms of providing timeliness and quality
of service. With information technology,
service delivery becomes very impor tant.
In the US, the small firms are just as suc-
cessful as the big ones.

Q12 :  Now that you are MIA Presi-
dent, would you initiate moves to do
away with a fixed fee structure?

In a way, the government has already
started it by adopting the self-assessment
regime for income tax. The challenge is on
the accounting profession. Accountants
have to negotiate with the clients on the
fees. It is no more, for example, based on a
percentage of the clients’ revenue. In fact,
there are certain moves in certain jurisdic-
tions to dispense with audit for small busi-
nesses.

Q13 :  Do you feel that the current set
of accounting standards in the coun-
try is adequate? Is there a need to
streamline them in line with interna-
tional accounting standards?

There is no need to streamline our stand-
ards as we have adopted international ac-
counting standards all along. Accounting
is a measurement of income, the standards
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By Nirmala Ramoo

In need of  
Yet another year has passed us by

and we are all a year older and a
little bit wiser. While many regret

not having fulfilled the past year’s resolu-
tions, the new stewards of the Malaysian
Institute of Accountants (MIA) had spent
the last 120 days of the year mulling over
and reviewing the Institute’s responsibili-
ties and core functions. MIA has since
moved ahead to meet the compelling con-
cerns of the profession.

Since assuming the Presidency of the
MIA Council in the third quarter of last year,
Abdul Samad Haji Alias has called for a re-
turn to the original function of the Institute
as the national accountancy regulatory
body. In an interview with Akauntan
Nasional recently, Abdul Samad was of the
view that the problems faced by the profes-
sion arose when the Institute assumed dual
responsibilities, i.e. professional and regu-
lator y. As a result of the ‘split personality’,
there was no focus in the direction to regu-
late the profession. He was of the opinion
that the professional aspects of the account-
ants should best be handled by the profes-
sional accountancy bodies in the country.

In line with this, the examination issue
which was a cause for tension between MIA,
the various professional accountancy bodies
and institutions of higher learning was finally
resolved when the Bill on the Accountants
(Amendment) Act, 2000, passed by Parlia-
ment in December 2000, removed the rights
of the Institute to conduct examinations. In-
stead, the Institute will oversee the supervi-
sion and regulation of the conduct of the MIA
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are the same, and they are international
standards. If the accounts are not prepared
using MASB (Malaysian Accounting Stand-
ard Board) standards, then the auditor can-
not express a true and fair view. We are
one of the countries which have made ac-
counting standards a law.

Q14 :  The MIA has called for the gov-
ernment to discontinue the current
practice of tendering for government
audit jobs. Your comments please.

Tendering is something that the profes-
sion doesn’t really like and doesn’t encour-
age. However, if the government asks you
to participate in a tender exercise, you have
to respond. If you bid too low for a job, then
you cannot do a good job of it and I think
that is not in the best interest of the pro-
fession.

Q15 :  There is a move to rank audit
and secretarial bills as statutory debt
so that they can be made immediately
after liquidation expenses.

All we are saying is that they should get
paid. Right now, they rank worse than
shareholders. They don’t get paid.

Q16 :  Some members want to open
MIA council meetings to members who
may wish to attend.

My view is this. An AGM of a company
is for shareholders. A board of directors
meeting is not open to shareholders
(laughs).

Q17 :  Is it true that the MIA council
is dominated by members who are
from the big five accounting firms?

That is not correct. There is only one
from the big five! That statement is mis-
chievous.

Q18 :  The big five firm members have
mostly come from MACPA. Now that
a MACPA President is at the helm of
the MIA, there are fears that the
smaller firms’ interests will be ne-
glected.

In fact, I have told the chairman of the
practice committee of MIA that I want to
see only one member from the big five. The
rest should be from medium and small
firms.

M A L AY S I A N  I N S T I T U T E  O F  A C C O U N TA N T S

C O V E R

In response to calls from members

for greater representation of the

accountancy profession, the

Institute has initiated positive

steps to address the challenges

faced by Malaysian accountants

in the global arena.

Qualifying Examination which will be con-
ducted by the higher institutions of learning
and recognised bodies specified in the Third
Schedule of the Accountants
(Ammendment) Act, 2000. Apart from stu-
dents from local institutions of higher learn-
ing and recofnised bodies as per the First
Schedule (Section 14 and 15) of the Account-
ants (Ammendment) Act, 2000, students with

qualifications relating to accounting, busi-
ness and finance recognised by the Public
Services Depar tment (PSD) or other quali-
fications approved by the MIA Council will
be eligible to sit for this examination.

In keeping with its role, the Institute will
now focus greater efforts on enhancing the
regulatory functions to ensure members’
compliance to our laws and regulations and
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“If everyone concerned observes

the stipulated rules and regulations

and is willing to extend a helping

hand to one another, one can

expect to weather the storms that

lie ahead and emerge perhaps not

unscathed, but slightly bruised.”
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standards of practice and tailor surveil-
lance mechanisms for public practice, man-
agement accounting, public sector account-
ants and the academia.

The focus on accountants in the public
practice would also be enhanced. The possi-
bility of global competition brings forth con-
cerns for the well-being of medium and small
practitioners. With 90 per cent of practition-

advisory scope of business. It is the aspira-
tion of the Committee to see practitioners
diversify into these areas and every effort is
being made to realise this.

If in the past there was a certain amount
of competition between MIA and the pro-
fessional bodies as a result of the former’s
‘professional’ duties, now the Institute is
initiating collaborative effor ts with the pro-
fessional bodies. The new year offers the
oppor tunity for all concerned to cast aside
their differ ences and channel efforts to-
wards productive ventures. The Institute
hopes to work closely with the professional
bodies and captains of industry in formu-
lating ways for knowledge and technology
transfer to practitioners to enable them to
stay abreast of new developments that af-
fect the profession. In fostering unity, the
Institute has standardised the points for
Continuing Professional Development
(CPD) courses run by MIA, the profes-
sional bodies and accounting firms. In ad-
dition, professional bodies and accounting
firms are also not required to pay accredi-
tation fees to MIA for courses conducted
by them for their members or MIA mem-
bers. This is in line with our basic princi-
ple of nur turing the profession to attain the
requisite skills. Accreditation fees will only
be imposed on professional bodies, ac-
counting firms and private organisations
for courses that are open to the public.

Likewise, the Institute also looks for-
ward to establishing closer relations with
local institutions of higher learning. This
will give the Institute a better understand-
ing of the needs of the academia and en-
able the development of collaborative ar-

rangements that benefit students. Unlike
graduates of professional bodies, the local
university graduates do not have represen-
tation. This group forms the core of our
locally trained accountants and the Insti-
tute will continue to provide professional
training to these graduates. This will en-
sure that they are not left behind and are
able to hold their own against competition
with the foreign professional bodies.

Abdul Samad is optimistic about the fu-
ture prospects of the accounting profession
in Malaysia. He stressed that globalisation
should not be a cause for concern as inter-
nationally renowned accounting firms have
been operating in Malaysia for umpteen
years. The fact that some of the partners of
the Malaysian firms have become par tners
of the international firms is a reflection of
the high standards of our accountants. As
for concern over the survival of small firms,
he said, both big and small firms have their
own roles to play. Citing the success of small
firms in the US, he dismissed the notion that
smaller firms will drown in the face of glo-
bal competition. Samad opined that the
market for smaller firms would always be
there as there are many people who prefer
to deal with smaller firms to get personal-
ised services. “All that needs to be done is
to improve themselves in terms of timeli-
ness of service delivery, quality of service
and grow with the clients”, he said.

It has been 34 years since the Institute
was established by an Act of Parliament
and given the important, yet delicate, task
of upholding order amongst all players in
the accounting profession in Malaysia. Af-
ter an unusually long gestation period of
20 years, and another 14 years as a trou-
bled adolescent, the Institute is assuming
its duties as a responsible adult. Adulthood
does not come with ease. There are many
uncertainties in the long road ahead, but
as Malaysians, we are known for our cour-
teous demeanour. The Institute has taken
progressive and proactive steps to change
and adapt to the needs of the profession in
a fast changing business environment. If
everyone concerned observes the stipu-
lated rules and regulations and is willing
to extend a helping hand to one another,
one can expect to weather the storms that
lie ahead and emerge perhaps not un-
scathed, but slightly bruised.

ers in these two categories, the MIA’s Public
Practice Committee is now emphasising its
efforts to identify ways to enhance their pro-
fessional standards and enable them to gen-
erate reasonable returns. The Committee’s
analysis shows that a vast majority of practi-
tioners tend to limit their scope to statutory
audits. Among the areas identified for diver-
sification are financial planning and other

 an uplift



January 2001Akauntan Nasional

Gear up for
globalisation

By Dr. Bala Ramasamy
SENIOR LECTURER IN INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS AND ECONOMICS
DIVISION OF BUSINESS AND MANAGEMENT
UNIVERSITY OF NOTTINGHAM, MALAYSIA

G L O B A L I S AT I O N

B U S I N E S S / A C C O U N T I N G
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Globalisation is viewed
                    very differently by various
                   groups of people. Some see it
as a way forward into the future while others
view it as a modern form of colonisation. While
our leaders may be able to change some of the rules of
the game, nevertheless the process of globalisation is inevitable in
today’s fast paced, technological world. The more important issue is
how do Malaysian businesses survive in this era of globalisation. This
article reviews business literature in this area and provides some perti-
nent guidelines to managers on how to face the challenges of
globalisation. While there may be a host of factors that influence the
survival of firms, three important guidelines are provided. Pursuance of these guidelines may deter-
mine the growth or the demise of Malaysian businesses in the globalised world. First, Malaysian busi-
nesses need to emphasize their cross-border activities, either in the form of exports or foreign invest-
ment. Second, information and communication technologies (ICTs) need to be utilised to compete in
the global market. Third, there has to be a marked shift in the mind-set of managers as far as their
potential and abilities are concerned.

Practical Guidelines for Managers

January 2001Akauntan Nasional
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Introduction
Globalisation has become a catch

phrase among both governments and
businesses alike. It has been used by
governments to uplift the spirit of nation-
alism, while at the same time to attract
the much sought after foreign invest-
ment. Businesses, on the other hand,
have used the term to seek for greater
protection and also as a licence to expand
markets across their own national bor-
ders.

Globalisation, in the economic sense,
can be defined as a movement towards a
borderless world where the mobility of
goods, ser vices, capital, labour and tech-
nology is greatly enhanced. In this sense,
globalisation has been taking shape ever
since the end of the Second World War,
as international trade and investment
gained momentum. The issue of
globalisation has been highlighted in re-
cent years mainly because the momen-
tum has picked up in the last decade es-
pecially in the area of international fi-
nance. The share of world expor ts in
world GDP between the early 1970s and
late 1990s increased from one eight to
one fifth. Between 1980 and 1996, the
stock of Foreign Direct Investment
(FDI) as a proportion of world output
doubled from five to 10 per cent. Global
foreign exchange transactions have ex-
ploded from US$60 billion a day in 1983
to US$1,500 billion a day in 1997 (Nayyar,
2000).

At the core of the globalisation proc-
ess are the Multinational Corporations
(MNCs). The World Investment Report
1999 (UNCTAD, 2000) estimates that
there are 60,000 such companies world-
wide with about 500,000 foreign af fili-
ates. They account for 25 per cent of to-
tal global output, one third of which takes
place in the host countries. The 100 top
non-financial MNCs own US$1.8 trillion
in foreign assets with foreign sales of
US$2.1 trillion. However, nearly 90 of
these MNCs are from the Triad coun-
tries (European Union, Japan and the
US).

The 1997 Asian Economic Crisis, how-
ever, laid bare the dark side of the
globalisation process. The bor derless fi-
nancial markets wreaked havoc among
the Asian economies short-term capital,

in search of a safer domicile, leaving these
economies quickly and in large quantities.
As a result, the development effor ts among
Third World countries, which took dec-
ades, was brought to naught in a matter of
months.

The diverging views of globalisation can
be summarised in the two quotations
above. However, it is not the purpose of this
ar ticle to join in the debate of the pros and
cons of globalisation. The fact of the mat-
ter is that the process of globalisation is
one that is imminent. The more impor tant
question is :  how does one deal with it? In
a survey conducted by Deloitte & Touche
among 900 manufacturing executives in 35
countries, only 27 per cent of the manufac-
turers think they are ready for globalisation
while more than two thirds have made
some organisational change to cope with
globalisation (Anonymous, 1998).

Although more companies from the in-
dustrialised world seem to have adapted
to the winds of globalisation, their coun-
terparts from the developing world are still
groping in the dark (Srinivas, 1995). In an-
other sur vey of 1,250 American manufac-

turers, it was found that companies with
global activities, be they direct investment
or foreign sales, grew faster in ever y in-
dustry and in all size categories than those
without (Taylor and Fosler, 1994). To com-
pare, among the top 100 multinational cor-
porations listed by the United Nation’s
World Investment Report 1999, only two
were from the developing world — one
from Venezuela and another from South
Korea.

Where does Malaysia stand in this
globalisation process? How does a
Malaysian company come to terms with
globalisation? What are the necessary pre-
requisites for a firm to face the challenges
of globalisation? These are some of the
questions addressed in this article.

Malaysia in the Winds of
Globalisation

Globalisation, in fact, is not new for Ma-
laysia. Its economic growth can be attrib-
uted to the policy shift from impor t substi-
tution of the 1960s to export promotion in
the 1970s and thereafter. By promoting
exports, initially with primary commodities
and later with manufactured goods, Malay-
sia became an active global player. The
proportion of exports to GDP, even as late
as 1987 was 55.7 per cent. In 1999, how-
ever, the size of expor ts was much larger
than GDP at 107.4 per cent. On the import
side, in 1987, the proportion was 39.4 per
cent, while in 1999 it was 83.3 per cent. Ma-
laysia, thus, can be considered to be among
the most open economies in the world.

As for foreign direct investment, Malay-
sia has long been considered as a choice
location for foreign funds. Since the incep-
tion of the Investment Incentive Act, 1968,
Malaysia, through a range of incentive and
policy mechanisms, has been able to attract
many Fortune 500 companies to invest and
establish their manufacturing plants here.
Names such as Motorola, Sony,
Matsushita, Nestlé, Lever Brothers and
Shell have all established their presence
here ever since Malaysia began cour ting
foreign investments. At the same time,
Malaysia has increased its outward foreign
direct investment (Ramasamy, 1998). Ma-
laysia is the largest foreign investor in
Cambodia and a major player in the Gha-
naian economy. Among the listed compa-
nies on the KLSE, more than 200 compa-

"So why go global? Because any

company that can, should. It’s not

a question of growth for the sake

of growth. It's the price of

admission to today's

marketplace.”

Jim Kelly, CEO, United Parcel Service
(Global Finance , 1997)

"The effect of economic

globalisation would be the

demise of small companies based

in developing countries. Large

international corporations

originating in developed

countries will take over

everything.”

Malaysian Prime Minister
Datuk Seri Dr. Mahathir Mohamad

(Inaugural Lecture of Malaysia
Fellowship Exchange Programme,

Kuala Lumpur, 24 July 1996)
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nies have active subsidiaries in at least one
other country (Ramasamy, 2000). This
does not guarantee survival, but neverthe-
less increases the probability.

Perhaps, small and medium-sized firms
in Malaysia are more gullible under the
threat of globalisation. We accept that these
firms may lack the necessary resources to
survive this threat, but it is hoped that the
remaining part of this ar ticle may assist in
identifying the strategies needed for sur-
vival.

Globalisation Survival Toolkit
What should firms in Malaysia do now

in order to survive in the era of
globalisation? A review of literature in this
area focuses on three impor tant issues :
cross-border activities, information and
computer technologies and a change in
mind-set. While there may be other areas
that may be equally important, these three
issues can be considered the basic pre-req-
uisites for survival.

Engage in Cross-border Activity
A firm is more geared towar ds

globalisation if it is engaged in cross-bor-
der activities. There are many Malaysian
firms which are already actively engaged
in multinational activity. For example, as
stated earlier, nearly half of the companies
listed in the main board of the KLSE have
active subsidiaries outside Malaysia.

The simplest form of cross-border activ-
ity is exporting. The ability to export indi-
cates the competitiveness of the firm in the
global market place. This is especially so
for companies which are exporting to in-
dustrialised countries. For example, it is
not uncommon to see Malaysian goods
competing side-by-side with European
goods in the UK market. However, a word
of caution is necessary :  The ability to ex-
port to these markets should be based on
quality (Asiaweek, 18 February 2000). If
Malaysian goods were competing purely
on price, the emergence of other low cost
producers would easily displace Malaysian
exports. If this happens in the export mar-
ket, with globalisation, this could very well
happen in the domestic market too.

It is wor thwhile to consider Porter’s
stages of competitive development. The first
of four stages is when competitive advan-

tage comes from basic factors of production,
such as low skilled labour and natural re-
sources. It is at this level that competition
is based on price and selling of raw materi-
als. It is essential that Malaysian firms move
on to the next  stage of development, i.e. a
stage when “firms develop the ability to
absorb and improve foreign technology and
to market their own products” (Thain,
1990). A key concept that is emphasised by
Por ter throughout his best seller is that
firms need to “innovate by perceiving or dis-
covering and bringing to market new and
better ways to compete” (Thain, 1990).

We do not deny the fact that larger firms
are more likely to export as evidenced by
literature (Kaynak and Kothari, 1984;
Christensen, Rocha and Gertner, 1987),
but size does not af fect the firm’s interest
in exporting (Ali and Swiercz, 1991; Calof,
1993). In fact, Cavusgil (1976) found that
size was only an adverse factor if the firm
is too small. There is also a tendency for
exporters from developing countries, such
as Malaysia, to suf fer from a ‘negative
countr y image’ (Lall 1991; Choi, 1992). Un-
known brand-names coupled with a Third
World origin image makes Malaysian
goods face an uphill task of finding a niche
in the developed country markets. An em-
phasis on quality and perseverance is the
key towards overcoming these challenges.
Malaysian expor ters need to learn from
their counterparts from Japan, Korea and
Taiwan, who have been able to shed their
1970s image of low cost, low quality pro-
ducers.

Research has proven that factors which
determine the export potential of firms in-
clude cognitive abilities like foreign trade
know-how, marketing knowledge and ef fi-
cient production, as well as non-cognitive
aspects like attitude, value systems and
norms (Holzmuller and Kasper, 1991; Reid
1981). No doubt, the nation’s export poli-
cies and promotion programmes do help.
Finland, a country that was ranked last in
terms of internationalisation among devel-
oped countries in 1993, was able to trans-
form itself into a model of international
business ef fectiveness through specific
macro policies within a ten-year span.

Capitalise on the ICTs
To sur vive the winds of globalisation,

firms need to be firmly anchored in infor-
mation and computer technologies (ICTs).
Narula and Dunning (2000) claim that the
'rapid and widespread implementation of
new technologies, particularly ICTs and
the consequential fall in cross border com-
munication and organisational costs have
been one of the main determinants of
globalisation. eMarketer (2000) concurs
that B2B e-commerce will dominate
throughout Asia. Smaller firms will soon
realise that the Internet is the cheapest and

fastest way of doing business in a
globalised world. The rate at which e-com-
merce is growing is phenomenal. Accord-
ing to the Newsweek (11 October 1999),
world e-commerce B2C revenue will sur-
pass US$150 billion in 2003, while world
revenue from B2B will surpass the US$1
trillion mark in the same  year. In Malay-
sia, e-commerce revenue increased from
US$60 million in 1999 to US$164 million
this year (Malaysian Business, 1 April 2000,
p.34). Thus, the ICTs have to be seen as
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access to a growing global market, as well
as a tool to an efficient way of conducting
business.

Internet and related technologies allow
small and medium-sized enterprises
(SMEs) to become major multinationals.
Examples of dotcom companies that have
turned into household names are abun-
dant. These include Amazon.com and eBay
and Priceline. The advantages of e-com-
merce for small businesses are as follows
(Hsieh and Lin, 1998):

The Web is a democratic place where
small companies are on a level playing
field with big multinationals. Small
companies have the same freedom as
big ones in pursuing new strategies or
trying out new ideas.

The Web is considered to be the least ex-
pensive method of marketing goods glo-
bally. Since advertising on the Web is
cheap, small companies have the same
potential to reach as large an audience
as bigger more powerful companies.

Globalisation strategies can be easily
implemented as there are less barriers
in the ‘vir tual’ world then there are in
the ‘real’ world.

The Web allows small businesses to
carry out after -sale customer service
at a relatively cheap cost and maintain
this contact on a long-term basis. In
fact, companies like Ford are already
involving potential customers at the de-
sign stage (McGaughey, 1999).

The Web allows small companies to es-
tablish inter-business collaboration es-
pecially by subcontracting the techni-
cal exper tise required to maintain the
online communication.

It is probably due to this reason that the
Malaysian Government has launched a
RM20 million fund to help SMEs partici-
pate in e-commerce. While the amount is
minuscule compared to the potential rev-
enue created by e-commerce in the future,
nevertheless, it is a step in the right direc-

tion. However, if fir ms view e-commerce
as a quick way of becoming rich, then they
must realise that there is no such thing as
a free lunch. People who have been in the
business warn that the success of e-com-
merce is based on the attractiveness of the
business and the ability to execute it
(Malaysian Business, 1 April 2000, p. 41).

Change the Current Mind-set
Rhinesmith (1996) defines mind-set as a

way to see the world in a particular way. In
another place, Rhinesmith (1992) says that
globally thinking people tend to be open
to themselves and others by rethinking
boundaries and changing their behaviour.
Moving from a purely domestic scene to
an international one requires a change in
mind-set. Similarly, in order to survive
globalisation, i.e. to survive foreign com-
petition in the domestic market, a change
in mind-set is also necessary.

One important paradigm shift that needs
to take place among domestic firms is the
notion that imported goods and services,
especially those from the Western world,
are better than locally produced goods. It
is common that one blames the consumer
for this type of thinking. But the producer
must equally share the blame. Bar tlett and
Ghoshal (2000), studying 12 emerging
multinationals from developing countries,
found that firms tend to underestimate
their abilities in competing at a higher
value chain. They say that this is due to a
‘paralysis of will’. Firms assume that they
are unable to compete on a higher level of
the value chain, and so end up primarily in
the assembly level or producing interme-
diate products. These levels of production
naturally offer lower profit margin. One
reason for this laggard attitude is because
managers are unaware of their global po-
tential or they may be quite satisfied with
their local activity. As a result of this, they
tend to allocate fewer resources in devel-
oping cross-border activity.

With the advent of globalisation, the do-
mestic market is only temporary. If the true
potential of the firm is not challenged, they
will be swept away by the currents of
globalisation. As a matter of fact, firms
need not go overseas to compete with for-
eign multinationals. In many markets, the
competition is already here. Bartlett and

a
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Ghoshal (2000) suggest that local firms
benchmark against these successful mul-
tinationals and find a niche that these
MNCs have overlooked. Jollibee of the
Philippines is a good example of how a lo-
cal firm was able to discover its strengths
and its competitors’ weaknesses and sur-
vive in the competitive fast food market.

 It has been noted that in the develop-
ing countries, cultural value profiles are
“not too conducive to the development of
broadened mind-sets” (Srinivas, 1995).
However, we should not blame our culture
for our extinction. Is it not that same cul-
ture that has been attributed to the suc-
cess of the East Asian countries? Ickis
(2000) commenting on the global strate-
gies of Latin American firms, emphasises
the need to build on cultural strengths
rather than clashing with their weak-
nesses. The strong inter-personal relation-
ships that exist in the Malaysian setting,
as is in the case of Latin America, need to
be capitalised to create a new business cul-
ture which emphasises co-operation
rather than competition. Srinivas (1995)
goes on to say that mind-set change can
only be acquired by “internal motivation,
not by external injection.” In other words,
managers have to be convinced that a
mind- set change is inevitable if they want
to survive in the globalisation process.
Once the commitment is there, the ques-
tion of how to change is secondary. This
can be done by practising a more demo-
cratic style of management and control
(for example, listening more to subordi-
nates, allowing more par ticipation and in-
volvement of subordinates, etc.) and un-
dergoing relevant training (confidence-
building, team-building, etc.).

CONCLUSION
Globalisation is a phenomenon that can-

not be brought under control by national
governments. This can only be done at the
international level. But, there is no signifi-
cant international institution that can, for
the moment, really control it. The WTO,
UNCTAD, World Bank or the IMF does not
find friends among all the players involved.
So, long as an international institution com-
mitted to bring good to the whole world is
absent, globalisation will result in a one-
sided benefit.

If globalisation is brought under control
by national governments, for example, by
imposing strict regulations on multination-
als, who act as the lubricating oil of this
globalisation process, they will go else-
where where they can easily find friends
and markets. However, Malaysia needs
these multinationals in its development
process. At this stage of development, they
are our source of technology, know-how

and capital.
We may then conclude that at least in the

short term, Malaysian firms will need to
face up to the challenges of globalisation.
If the three main issues addressed in this
paper - engaging in cross-border activities,
capitalising on the ICTs and changing the
mind-sets — are aggressively pursued, the
probability of survival of Malaysian firms
in world markets will certainly increase.
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The Prospects of
Human Resource
Accounting
By Huang Ching Choo
FACULTY OF ACCOUNTANCY, UNIVERSITI TEKNOLOGI MARA

Many issues on Human Resource Account-ing are still unre-
solved today. However, due to the current business empha-
sis and environment, Human Resource Accounting should be

revisited. Without knowing the opinions of the firms on Human Resource
Accounting, it is difficult to know how to proceed. The main objective of this
research is to find out the opinions of the UK firms regarding the prospects
of Human Resource Accounting. This survey focuses on the differences be-
tween the capital-intensive and service-oriented industries on the availability
of human resource information and the emphasis of human assets. It also
studies the importance of human resource information to both the internal
and external decision-makers and the disclosures of human resource infor-
mation. Questionnaires were sent to 200 quoted companies in the UK. Though
firms in UK on the whole do regard their employees as valuable assets, very
little information on human resources is maintained in the companies. Hu-
man resource accounting is not totally rejected, but it is more acceptable as
a management tool. A significant difference exists between the capital-inten-
sive and service-oriented industries on human assets. The firms preferred
disclosure of human resource information by way of notes instead of treat-
ing people as assets in the balance sheet.
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Introduction
To many, people are not only a vital re-

source to firms, but also a key source of
competitive edge in the business environ-
ment. Adequate financial and material re-
sources are necessar y but no longer suffi-
cient determinants of business success. To
survive in an electronic era, firms need to
place a greater emphasis on human re-
sources. The traditional historical cost ac-
counting, which does not account for peo-

ple, the most valuable asset to many firms,
may need to be revised.

Literature Review
The traditional accounting system, which

was originated in 1949 by Luca Pacioli, was
not designed to reflect the value of non-tan-
gible items. Since the 1960s, the financial
statements produced by the current account-
ing system were regarded as deficient be-
cause they failed to account people as asset.

This awareness had resulted in the emer-
gence of Human Asset Accounting, later
known as Human Resource Accounting
(HRA), as a corrective practice that would
adjust conventional accounting net profit  to
reflect managerial effectiveness and effi-
ciency in managing human resource.

The original purpose of developing HRA
is for financial reporting. However, it is now
being developed more as a managerial tool.
In 1992, Roslender and Dyson suggested
that Human Worth Accounting (HWA) is a
more appropriate task than HRA. Accord-
ing to them, HWA is offered as the account-
ancy profession responded to the challenge
posed by the re-emergence of the people
initiative and the specific problems associ-
ated with the management of scarce human
resources in the post-industrial age. Though
much attention was given to HRA for more
than 30 years, little has been accomplished
in respect of human resource information
disclosed in the financial statements. Peo-
ple, though viewed as the firm’s most im-
portant asset, are still not accounted for as
asset in the balance sheet.

There are many unresolved issues in
HRA especially on the measurement
method and its practicability. A number of
alternative methods of valuation could be
used to measure human resources. These
methods can be grouped into two basic cat-
egories :  cost or value approach and indi-
vidual or group/organisation level. Some
methods try to measure both monetary and
non-monetary values of human resources.
According to Carper (1977), what is needed
is a valid and reliable measurement tech-
nique to reflect both the micro and macro
dimensions of the human capital component
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five, indicating that it is strongly agreed.
Descriptive analysis such as mean was

used to analyse the data collected. Besides,
these tests are also being used to find out
whether there is any significant difference
between the capital-intensive and servic-
ing industries on HRA. Cor relation
(Pearson) was also being carried out for
certain variables when appropriate.

Research Results
Respondents

Out of 200 companies, 109 (55 per cent) re-
sponded to the Questionnaires. Table 1 shows
the responses from different industries.

Has HRA ever been used?
Only two companies (two per cent) indi-

cated they had used HRA before and cur-
rently are still using the HRA system. Both
these companies are from the ser vicing in-
dustr y. However, after a more detailed
analysis was conducted, it was found that
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though these companies indicated they
had used the HRA system before, their re-
sponses for the rest of the questions in the
questionnaire seemed to imply otherwise.
Both companies had disagreed that human
resources should be included as assets in
the balance sheet.

Human resources were neither being
disclosed in the balance sheet or in the
notes to the accounts in their 1992 finan-
cial repor ts. If HRA was implemented, then
human resource information should be dis-
closed in the financial statements. Moreo-
ver, one of these two companies did not
have an opinion on the disclosure of hu-

man resources. In fact, the dilemma is that
one company stated that it is not familiar
with the term, HRA. The conclusion,
hence, is that these two companies could
not have implemented the HRA system.

However, these companies do keep data
and information regarding human re-

sources. One of them has a Hu-
man Resource Development
Centre as stated in their Com-
pany Report. Though Shenkir’s
(1972) work has indicated
that a few companies in the
US had used the HRA system,
the sur vey discovered that
none of the companies in the
UK could have used the HRA
system.

for a business enterprise. To date, there is
a lack of consensus as to how human as-
sets should be valued. According to Dr.
Lynn (2000) human capital is the most prob-
lematic part of intellectual capital to meas-
ure and account for, since it does not fit into
the current conser vative, historical cost-ac-
counting paradigm.

Some HRA advocates argued that HRA
should be revisited. Additional models of
HRA would not help the profession to pro-
ceed any further. This study is conducted
with the intention to find out the views of
the firms in the UK on HRA and the pros-
pects of putting people as an asset on the
balance sheet.

Research Objective
The main objective of

the research is to find out
the prospects of HRA in
the UK and whether the
firms in the UK use any
HRA system. It identifies
the extent of the types of
human resource informa-
tion available in the UK
firms. The research also
seeks the opinions of the
firms on the importance
of human assets, the im-
portance of human re-
source information to
both the internal and ex-
ternal decision-makers
and their preference as to
how human resource in-
formation should be disclosed.

Research Method
Questionnaires directed to the finance

directors were mailed to 200 out of 877
companies which were quoted on the UK
Stock Exchange in 1993. 100 companies
were selected randomly from
the capital-intensive and 100
from the servicing industries.

A five-point Likert type scale
was used to determine the sig-
nificance of each variable rank-
ing from one, indicating not
important at all, to five, indicat-
ing that it is extremely impor-
tant or ranking from one, indi-
cating strongly disagreed, to

RESPONSEST A B L E  1

Capital-Intensive Number Servicing Number

Oil and Gas 21 Hotels and Catering 15

Coal 3 Banking and Finance 25

Aerospace 8 Insurance 16

Chemical 13

Iron and Steel 8

Total 53 Total 56
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IMPORTANCE OF HUMAN
AND FIXED ASSETS (MEAN)

T A B L E  4

Capital-Intensive Servicing Overall

Human Assets 4.60 4.79 4.70

Fixed Assets 4.15 3.75 3.94

HUMAN RESOUrce Information (Mean)
T A B L E  2
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Human Resource Information
The extensiveness of three

categories of information were
studied namely, recruitment
and selection, job training and
management development.
This survey only concentrates
on these categories since
Shenkir et. al. (1972) indicated
a number of firms in the US are
presently computing some HRA
costs, but none are capitalising
these expenditures. In addition,
according to Flamholtz (1972),
the major functions of man-
power management deal with
the acquisition, allocation, utili-
sation, maintenance and devel-
opment of human resources.

The mean responses for the
servicing industry for all three
kinds of information are higher
than those of the capital-inten-
sive industry (Table 2). The
firms from both capital-inten-
sive and servicing industries
maintain more information on
recr uitment and selection and
job training information. These
firms keep reasonable amounts
of information on recruitment
and selection and job training information.
On the other hand, companies generally
keep very little information on manage-
ment development.

A t-test was conducted to find out whether
there is a significant difference between the
two industries on the availability of human
resource information. It is found that there
is no significant difference between the capi-
tal-intensive and servicing industries as far
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Importance of Human Assets
The mean scores in Table 4

shows that both servicing and
capital-intensive firms see
people as extremely impor-
tant assets as compared to
fixed assets.

Apparently, the servicing
firms placed more emphasis
on human assets. The means
for human assets in both the
capital-intensive (4.60) and
service-oriented (4.79) in-
dustries are the highest as
compared to fixed assets. T-
test was conducted to find
out whether there was a sig-
nificant dif ference between
the capital - intensive and
servicing industries in their
emphasis on human and
fixed assets. It was found
that there is a significant dif-
ference between the capital-
intensive and servicing in-
dustries on the importance
of human assets. The serv-
ice-industry did place more
emphasis on fixed assets
than the capital-intensive in-

dustry as expected. This indicates that
the statements made in the HRA litera-
ture are likely to be true. It is recognised
that the UK economy seems to undergo
a similar emphasis as the US. Since peo-
ple in the firms are those who make
things happen and who produce results,
it is therefore essential to manage them
effectively. HRA will be beneficial in this
kind of economy.

Human Resource Information Capital- Servicing Overall

Intensive

Recruitment & Selection 2.96 3.16 3.06

Job Training 2.94 3.16 3.06

Management Development 2.76 2.88 2.82

Relationship between Correlation Coefficients

Recruitment & Selection with
Job Training 0.7842**

Recruitment & Selection with
Management Development 0.6538**

Job Training & Management
Development 0.8163**

**0.001 1-tailed significance

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN
HUMAN RESOUrce Information

T A B L E  3

as the extensiveness on the human resource
information is concerned.

When the correlation (Pearson) for all
variables was conducted, it was found that
strong relationships existed between the
three categories of information. High co-
efficients in Table 3 indicate consistency
in the responses. When firms have exten-
sive information on one category, they also
have extensive information on another.
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Usefulness of HRA to Internal
and External Decision-makers

Human resource informa-
tion is useful to the internal
and external users of financial
statements. In the survey, the
internal users are identified as
the senior and personnel man-
agers. The external users are
the other employees, existing
and potential shareholders,
lenders and government.

From the responses, the
firms in both industries indi-
cated that human resource in-
formation is more important to
the internal users than the ex-
ternal users. The mean re-
sponses for the senior and per-
sonnel managers are higher
than those of the external us-
ers (see Table 5).

The means for the Senior
Managers and Personnel Man-
agers exceed three. HRA seems
to be more relevant as a mana-
gerial tool. This trend of accounting for hu-
man resources was already seen since the
1970s when the issue of the representation of
assets on balance sheet took on less signifi-
cance. All these indicate that HRA should
place more emphasis on managerial functions.
Its pursuance in this aspect is likely to be
brighter than on external financial reporting.

The above results contradict the claims
of the literature on HRA. According to the
literature, HRA is useful and beneficial to
all kinds of users. But, it coincides with the
study of Shenkir et. al. (1972) which states
that HRA for internal use was perceived to
be both more deficient in terms of the in-

tries. However, disclosure by
way of notes, and profit and
loss are more acceptable by
the firms in the survey.

Though at the moment, all
costs incurred on human re-
sources are expensed in the
Profit and Loss account, not all
firms agreed that they should be
created as such. This indicates
that expensing human resource
costs to the profit and loss should
not be the only way for disclos-
ing human resource informa-
tion. Instead, human resources
should be disclosed in a more ex-
plicit manner to enhance the ef-
fectiveness of financial reports.

The overall mean on the dis-
closure of HRA information in
the balance sheet for both in-
dustries is only 1.59 (Table 6).
This difference is not significant
between the two industries
when t-test is conducted. The
strong objections from both in-

dustries show that the future of HRA would
not be bright if the accounting profession
puts representing human resources as assets
in the balance sheet as its main objective.

The firms’ objection on disclosing human
resources as assets in the balance sheet
does suppor t the findings of Fleming (1977)
which stated that 85 per cent of the students
versus 48 per cent of the faculty was some-
what or strongly against the value being
made public if calculation is detailed by in-
dividual employee (that is the detailed com-
position by each employee is disclosed).

The firms in our survey, however, suppor t
the idea of publicly disclosing the value of

USERS OF HUMAN RESOURCE
INFORMATION (MEAN)

T A B L E  5

USERS Capital- Servicing Overall

Intensive

Senior Managers (I) 3.18 3.25 3.21

Personnel Managers (I) 3.46 3.60 3.53

Other Employees (E) 2.32 2.24 2.19

Existing Shareholders (E) 2.08 2.17 2.13

Potential Shareholders (E) 2.10 2.15 2.13

Lenders (E) 1.98 2.12 2.05

Government (E) 1.94 2.31 2.12

I = internal users; E = external users

formation available and more important
than HRA for external use.

T-tests were also conducted to find out
whether the differences of the means are sig-
nificant. The results show that the means for
all users for the two industries are not signifi-
cantly different at 95 per cent confidence level.

How Should Human Resources be Reported?
When HRA first emerged, its intention

was to place human resources as assets in
the balance sheet. The firms in the survey
rejected this idea. In Table 6, disclosure of
human resources as assets in the balance
sheet has the lowest means for both indus-

DISclosure of HRA
Information (mean)

T A B L E  6

DISCLOSURE Capital- Servicing Overall

Intensive

Balance Sheet 1.67 1.51 1.59

Notes to the Accounts 3.34 3.37 3.35
Profit and Loss Account 3.24 3.65 3.45
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employees in the way of notes. From Table
6, human resource information in the notes
to the accounts is better received by the
firms, the means are 3.34 and 3.37 for the
capital-intensive and service industr y respec-
tively. If this is true, then HRA should pro-
ceed towards this direction so that the users
of financial statements will not be deprived
of the information on human resources
which plays a vital role in decision-making.

CONCLUSION
The survey has discovered that UK firms

could not have implemented the HRA sys-
tem since the 1970s. It is found that UK
firms have placed much emphasis on hu-
man assets especially the servicing indus-
try. Firms rely to a large extent on the con-
tribution made by human skill and judg-
ment. According to Gullett and Peddy
(1978), as the economy becomes increas-
ingly service-oriented, the critical impor-
tance of employees will continue to grow.
Firms will shift their bulk of investment
from plant and equipment to people. In our
technologically and socially complex soci-
ety, survival and success of firms depend
largely upon the quality of the “human as-
sets.” Hence, a situation has arisen in which
investment in human resources is greater
than ever, and the limitations of conven-
tional accounting methods become more
apparent. Implementing HRA system, thus,
will avoid producing inadequate and, at
times inaccurate information on human re-
sources to the users of financial statements.

The firms do not possess extensive in-
formation on human resources. Dahl’s
(1988) study discovers that most people
agree that the ultimate purpose of HRA is
to help the organisation get the best return
it can on the dollars spent for people. But,
very few know how much money their or-
ganisation spent for people per year and
none knew what return their organisation
got on the dollars spent for people last year.
In this survey, the firms have indicated, on
the average, that a fair amount of informa-
tion on human resources is available. But,
is the existing information on human re-
sources useful to the firms and is the in-
formation ef fectively utilised by the firms?
Future research could examine this aspect.

Human resource information is more use-
ful to the internal users rather than the ex-

ter nal users. The firms see HRA more as a
management tool. If this is tr ue, HRA will
be useful in Human Resource Management
(HRM). Effective HRM is important be-
cause people produce profits; machines and
capital merely enhance the profit-making
capability (Frantzreb et al. 1974). Relevant
information is important for effective man-
agement of resources. With HRA, informa-
tion on human resources will be accessible
to the managers for analysis purposes.

Though the respondents in the survey
have indicated that HRA is more useful to
internal users, the kind of information pre-
ferred by the firms in practice is not known.
Further study can be conducted to find out
the kind of human resource information
preferred by firms.

If Armstrong (1988) accurately sums up
the position of the profession, could HRA
be the vehicle, indeed, “the wooden horse”
which brings for ward the “takeover” of
HRA/Personnel Management by the ac-
counting profession? It is vital for manage-
ment to hold a positive view on HRA since
the implementation of HRA is a long proc-
ess and management suppor t is essential
for its success.

Disclosure by way of notes could be an
alternative way of disclosing HRA informa-
tion. Besides notes to the accounts,
Paper man and Martin (1977) recom-
mended the use of a “Statement of Intangi-
bles.” Their solution to the problem of dis-
torting income reported in the short-term
when lar ge expenditure for human re-
sources are ‘charged’ would be to report
them separately on the income statement
and possibly include a “Statement of Intan-
gibles”, supplemented with a narrative of
important facts. This procedure, while it
eliminates human assets and other intangi-
bles from the balance sheet, would still pro-
vide the information to investors so they
might judge management’s performance in
the utilisation of human resources. On the
other hand, according to Baker (1974), it is
vir tually impossible to devise a standardised
statement appropriate to the needs of dif-
fer ently motivated users in different
decisional contexts. In the US, companies
have started disclosing intellectual capital,
the intangible assets of skill and knowledge
in their financial reports (Steward 1994).

Though HRA has not achieved wide-

spread acceptance, it is not totally rejected
by the firms in UK. From the survey, it is
found that there are prospects for HRA. To
date, there are still many conceptual prob-
lems and practical dif ficulties to be over-
come in HRA. However, firms have ignored
“this most valuable assets” too long when
decisions on them will affect the future of
a firm, its employees and society. Firms
should begin to apply HRA techniques to
their own human resources. Report on its
effectiveness or inef fectiveness, or per-
haps, uselessness, should be disclosed.
When firms start implementing HRA sys-
tems, there is then the possibility that HRA
will grow in acceptability. Fur ther research
can then be carried out to verify whether
HRA does make a dif ference to those that
implement it.
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Standards for  
and reporting  
and India

The primary purpose of finan-
cial statements is to present
relevant, reliable, consistent
and comparable information for

assessing the financial position, financial per-
formance and changes in financial position
(cash flows) of an enterprise. The financial
statements should enable reasonably knowl-
edgeable investors, creditors and other us-
ers to predict, compare and evaluate the
amount, timing and uncertainty of prospec-
tive cash flows from dif ferent sources. This
is possible when financial statements are pre-
pared on a comparable basis. Both, inter-pe-
riod and inter-firm comparison should be
possible. This can be done when some guide-
lines for preparing and presenting the finan-
cial statements are issued by professional
bodies and/or legal authorities, and they are
mandatory for all preparers of statements to
be complied with. Such guidelines, usually
issued by the standard-setting bodies, are
called accounting standards. These state-
ments of standards ultimately become the
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP) to be followed by all concerned with
a view to achieving comparability.

Owing to greater emphasis on
globalisation, liberalisation and privatisation
all over the globe during the last decade of
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the century that was just over, it has become
imperative for national and international in-
stitutions to set accounting standards which
enable the financial standards to be made
comparable. In South Asian countries also,
many rapidly developing countries have set
up standard-setting bodies, and are in the
process of issuing standards on different ac-
counting issues. Malaysia and India, are two
such countries, which have standard-setting
bodies, and have issued standards on many
accounting issues. The purpose of this ar ti-
cle is to compare the different aspects of
standard setting in the two countries, and
learn lessons from one another. Both are
Commonwealth countries, and have contin-
ued to be historically guided by the devel-
opments in the UK. The International Ac-
counting Standards Committee (IASC),
which was set up in 1973 in England, has
provided directions to its member-coun-
tries/professional bodies by recommending
standards on different accounting issues.
These standards, though recommendatory
in nature, have mostly been adopted by the
rapidly developing countries, with or with-
out amendments keeping in mind the cus-
tom, usage and law in the respective coun-
tries. This article has been divided into five
sections. Section I deals with standard-set-

ting machinery and Section II is concerned
with standard-enforcing agencies. Section
III discusses the due process in the issu-
ance of standards, while Section IV high-
lights the need for a meaningful conceptual
framework to guide the formulation of ac-
counting standards. The last section at-
tempts to make some suggestions concern-
ing accounting standards. Necessary prac-
tices in other financial accounting standards
boards have been taken into consideration
while formulating the suggestions.

Standard-Setting Machinery
Malaysia

In Malaysia, the IAS issued by the IASC
constitutes the basic body of the promulgated
accounting standards. Earlier all the IAS is-
sued by the IASC were considered for adop-
tion by the Common Working Technical
Committee (CWTC) jointly set up by the
Malaysian Association of Certified Public
Accountants (MACPA) and the Malaysian
Institute of Accountants (MIA). Once they
were approved by the Councils of MACPA
and MIA, the IAS were pronounced as Ap-
proved Accounting Standards (AAS) and
became operative on the date specified
therein as part of the GAAP in Malaysia. The
Councils also issued other accounting pro-
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“The Financial Reporting Foundation membership comprises of
leading businessmen in Malaysia, heads of regulatory authorities,

such as the Securities Commission, the Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange,
the Registrar of Companies, financial analysts, finance directors, a

senior representative from the Central Bank (Bank Negara  Malaysia)
and the Accountant-General.’’

nouncements, known as Malaysian Account-
ing Standards (MAS). These were mainly
concerned with specialised industries.

Malaysian Accounting Standards
Board (MASB)

The MASB was established in 1997. The
Financial Reporting Act, 1997, established
the Financial Reporting Foundation (FRF)
of the MASB. The FRF is “responsible for
all the financing arrangements for the op-
erations of the MASB, review of the per-
formance of the MASB, and to provide its
views on any matter that the MASB seeks
to implement or undertake.” The MASB is
an independent statutory body. Its aim is “to
continually improve the quality of external
financial reporting in Malaysia, and to con-
tribute directly to the international devel-
opment of financial reporting. The primary
responsibility of the MASB is to issue new
accounting standards, revise or adopt the
existing accounting standards, issue State-
ment of Principles (SOP), develop concep-
tual framework and undertake public con-
sultation in the determination of the con-
tents of its pronouncements.”

“The FRF membership comprises of
leading businessmen in Malaysia, heads of
regulatory authorities, such as the Securi-
ties Commission, the Kuala Lumpur Stock
Exchange (KLSE), the Registrar of Com-
panies, financial analysts, finance directors,
a senior representative from the Central
Bank (Bank Negara Malaysia) and the Ac-
countant-General.’’

India
The standard setting process was started

in India by the Institute of Chartered Ac-
countants of India (ICAI) by constituting
the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) in
April 1977. The standards are issued un-
der the authority of the council of the ICAI.



January 2001Akauntan Nasional

Preface to the Statements of Accounting
Standards states that its primary function
is to formulate accounting standards keep-
ing in consideration the applicable laws,
customs, usage and the prevailing business
environment. Since ICAI is a member of
the IASC, it supports the objectives set out
by the IASC. While setting a standard, the
Accounting Standards Board (ASB) gives
due consideration to IASs and tries to inte-
grate them to the maximum extent possi-
ble, in the light of the conditions and prac-
tices prevailing in India. In the initial years,
all the standards were recommendatory in
character. The ICAI aimed to give wide
publicity to the standards among the us-
ers and educate them on the utility of the
accounting standards and the need for
compliance with the disclosure require-
ments in the standards in order to enhance
comparability of the financial statements.

Besides accounting standards, the ICAI also
issues “Statements” and “Guidance Notes.”
The former are mandatory until the time the
relevant accounting standard becomes man-
datory. Once an accounting standard is pro-
nounced as mandatory, the “Statement” on
that accounting issue stands withdrawn. Guid-
ance Notes provide assistance in resolving
issues that may pose difficulty. Guidance
Notes are recommendatory in nature. If a
guidance note has not been followed, the au-
ditor should consider whether, keeping in
view the circumstances of the case, a disclo-
sure in his report is necessary.

The constitution of ASB gives represen-
tation to many user groups, including the
Associated Chamber of Commerce, Fed-
eration of Indian Chambers of Commerce
and Industry, Institute of Cost and Works
Accountants of India, Reserve Bank of
lndia, Industrial Development Bank of In-
dia, Institute of Chartered Secretaries of
India, Securities and Exchange Board of
India, Indian Institute of Management and
the University Grants Commission. The
ASB is comprised of 11 members, two co-
opted members, four nominees of outside
bodies and eight invitees.

Standards Enforcing Agencies
Br yan Carsberg, IASC Secretar y-Gen-

eral said, “High quality accounting stand-
ards are not enough. You need an effec-
tive enforcement mechanism.”

Malaysia
“According to section 166A of the Compa-

nies Act, 1965, Approved Accounting Stand-
ards (AAS) are to be applied in relation to
any published accounts of commercial, in-
dustrial or business enterprises in Malaysia,
and of overseas subsidiaries and associated
corporations where those accounts are to be
incorporated in consolidated accounts in
Malaysia.” The MASB’s AAS have been pub-
lished in the Gazette of the Financial Report-
ing (Publication of Approved Accounting
Standards) Regulations, 1999. It has been
clarified that compliance of these AAS is
mandatory and legally enforceable. But the
Financial Reporting Act, 1997, has not
granted an enforcement role to the MASB.
The enforcement of AASs resides with the
Securities Commission, Central Bank
(BNM) and the Registrar of Companies.

“The membership of the FRF and MASB
demonstrates that the responsibility for the
setting of accounting standards is not the
domain of the accounting profession but is
spread across the broad spectrum of busi-
ness in Malaysia.” Fur ther, “the structure
of the framework for the development and
issuance of financial reporting standards in
Malaysia is premised upon the broad par-
ticipation by the business community.”

“The Councils of the Malaysian profes-
sional accounting bodies are committed to
promoting and supporting compliance with
Approved Accounting Standards by their
members, whether as preparers or audi-
tors of the financial statements.”

The MASB initially adopted 24 of the ex-
tant IASs and MASs issued prior to the crea-
tion of the MASB by the Councils of the MIA
and the MACPA. Adoption by the MASB gave
these IASs and MASs the status of Approved
Accounting Standards (AAS). This status will
apply until each IAS or MAS is amended, re-
scinded or replaced by a new MASB stand-
ard. The MASB has, thus far, issued 21 stand-
ards and 29 Exposure Drafts (EDs).
India

Paragraph 6.1 of the “Preface to the State-
ments of Accounting Standards” of the ICAI
states “while discharging their attest func-
tions, it will be the duty of the members of the
Institute to ensure that the accounting stand-
ards are implemented in the presentation of
the financial statements covered by the audit
reports. In the event of any deviation from the

standards, it will also be their duty to make
adequate disclosures in their audit reports so
that the users of such statements may be
aware of such deviations.” An accounting
standard becomes mandatory on the date
specified either in the respective documents
or by a notification issued by the council. The
ICAI has, thus far, issued 18 accounting stand-
ards, and now made all the standards manda-
tory except Accounting Standard 3 (Cash
Flow Statements). The accounting standards
issued by the ICAI, though mandatory, had
no legal authority, in case they were not com-
plied with by a preparer of financial state-
ments. To provide legal authority to the ac-
counting standards, section 211 of the Com-
panies Act, 1956, has now provided that the
standards issued by the ICAI have to be re-
garded as mandatory by the corporate enter-
prises and they have to comply with them. The
Central Government will form a National Ad-
visory Committee on Accounting Standards
(NACAS), on whose recommendations, the
accounting standards issued by the ICAI will
be prescribed by the Central Government as
mandatory under the provisions of the Com-
panies Act.

To ensure greater coordination between
the standard-setting process, the standard
implementation process and ensure
greater transparency, the Securities and
Exchange Board of India has formed a
committee. This committee will suggest
ways to ensure the implementation of ac-
counting standards, statements, guidance
notes and studies evolved by the ICAI, and
provide inputs and make references to the
Accounting Standards Board.

Due Process in the
Issuance of Standards

Ever y standard-setting body adopts a
process of setting the accounting standards.
There are different stages in the issuance
of a standard. Though the standard-setting
process is more or less similar in all coun-
tries, it will be useful to discuss the process
in the two countries under study.

Malaysia

n The MASB identifies the emerging is-
sues either from its own research, from
external sources, such as IAS or from
submission by interested parties.

n After identification of the topics as poten-
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tially requiring the issuance of a standard,
the MASB appoints a working group, which
prepares the Discussion Paper (DP).

n The DP is considered by the MASB, and
if necessary, the draft of the DP is re-
fined. The FRF reviews the draft. The DP
is then issued for comments to all con-
cerned and the media.

n After analysing the comments, a Draft
Statement of Principles (DSOP) is devel-
oped by the working group. It is fur ther
submitted to the FRF for review.

n The DSOP is fur ther considered by the

cided. The study groups are framed in such
a way that there is wide participation by the
members of the Institute and others.

n The ASB also holds discussions with the
representatives of the Government, pub-
lic sector undertakings, industr y and
other organisations, and ascertains their
views.

n On the basis of the study groups and the
discussions with the organisations, Gov-
ernment and others, an ED on the pro-
posed standard is prepared and issued
for comments to the members of the In-

at the ED level, greater is the acceptance of
the standards. Dennis Beresford, the then
chairman of FASB in an address to the an-
nual convention of the American Account-
ing Association in 1989 remarked, “Due
process conducted in the open public ses-
sions is the key to the general acceptance
of the FASB standards.”

Need for a Meaningful
Conceptual Framework

There are no two opinions now that to
ensure greater quality of accounting stand-
ards, a meaningful conceptual framework
for accounting and repor ting is needed.
The Dearing Committee (1988) on “The
Making of Accounting Standards” opined,
“A conceptual framework is seen as essen-
tial, if a consistent approach to standard-
setting is to be achieved … Lack of an
agreed conceptual framework is a contribu-
tory factor to the dif ficulty of achieving
consistency of approach towards account-
ing standards; and hence to a lessening of
the authority that standards command,”

SFAC 5 (FASB) states that, “A conceptual
framework is a coherent system of interre-
lated objectives and fundamentals that is
expected to lead to consistent standards and
that prescribes the nature, function and lim-
its of financial accounting and repor ting.”
The conceptual framework sets forth basic
accounting fundamentals which help in the
development of accounting standards.

The ICAI has issued a “Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements” in July 2000. The MASB has also
issued a DP on a “Framework for the Prepa-
ration and Presentation of Financial State-
ments.” After due process, it will soon be is-
sued as a framework. The two frameworks
are similar in all material aspects to the IASC’s
framework for the Preparation and Presenta-
tion of Financial Statements issued in 1989. A
close scrutiny of the two frameworks, how-
ever, reveals some distinctive points.

Basic Assumptions.  The IASC in its
framework lays down two basic assump-
tions — accrual basis and going concern.
The MASB framework lays down one more
basic assumption, i.e. periodicity assump-
tion. It is an environmental postulate which
is self evident. It is a constraint imposed
by the user environment. Even if it is not
spelt out, it is self-evident.
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“To ensure greater coordination between the standard-setting
process, the standard implementation process and ensure greater

transparency, the Securities and Exchange Board of India has
formed a committee.”

MASB and refined; and the comments
are invited again by general distribution
and media release.

n After analysing the comments, the Work-
ing Group prepares the Exposure Draft
(ED), and again the comments are invited/
public hearing is conducted, if necessary.

n The comments on the ED are considered
by the MASB, and the MASB standard
is issued for publication.

It will thus be seen that “the MASB’s due
process is based upon wider consultation
with preparers, users, industry representa-
tives, auditors, regulator y authorities and
other interested parties.”

India
n The ASB assisted by study groups, deter-

mines the broad areas on which account-
ing standards are needed to be formulated,
and the priority in selection thereof is de-

stitute and the public at large.

n After considering the comments re-
ceived, the draft of the proposed stand-
ard is finalised by the ASB and submit-
ted to the council of the Institute.

n The council of the Institute considers the
final draft in consultation with the ASB.

n The accounting standard on the relevant
subject is then issued under the author-
ity of the council.

It will be seen that broadly the due proc-
ess is the same in the two countries under
study. On a closer study, however, we find
that comments are invited at two stages in
Malaysia — one, at the DP stage and two,
at the ED stage. Moreover, there is a provi-
sion for a public hearing before the ED is
approved for issuing a standard. The FRF
also reviews the DP and the ED, and makes
its views known to the MASB. Greater the
participation of the users at the DP level and
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Similarly the ICAI in its framework lays
down one more basic assumption — Con-
sistency — in addition to the two laid down
by the IASC in its framework. All frameworks
lay down comparability as a qualitative char-
acteristic. To achieve comparability, consist-
ency and uniformity are essential character-
istics. They are the bases for comparability.
In our opinion, there was no need for putting
consistency as the third basic assumption.

The MASB, in its framework, discusses
“Capital Maintenance Approach”  versus
“Transactions Approach”1 Nothing of this
type has been discussed in the ICAI’s frame-
work. The Capital Maintenance Approach
(also known as Equity Approach) is being
advocated by the developed countries. Un-
der this approach, income is measured as the
difference between the net assets between
two points of time. In the transactions ap-
proach (also known as traditional approach),
income is measured as the dif ference be-
tween revenue and expense. Following the
capital maintenance approach, the concept
of comprehensive income comes in the pic-
ture, (FASB has advocated comprehensive
approach) which is defined as the change in
equity (net assets) during a period from non-
owner sources. In the former approach, the
emphasis is on balance sheet, while in the
latter, profit and loss statement is in the fo-
cus. There is a move towards adoption of fair
value accounting in the international account-
ing standards arena (See IAS 39 — Finan-
cial Instruments: Recognition and Measure-
ment). David Solomons asserted that “the
right test of the fitness of an accounting prin-
ciple is not that it is ‘generally acceptable’,
but that it ‘tells it like it is’2.

No clear cut guidelines (directions) have
been provided in the frameworks by any
country on the principles to be adopted for
formulating the accounting standards.
Much has been left to choice of the
preparers of financial statements. Paragraph
109 of the IASC Framework and Para 138
of the MASB proposed framework lay down,
“this framework is applicable to a range of
accounting models and provides guidance
on preparing and presenting financial state-
ments under the chosen model.” It is known
that there can be many models of financial
statements depending upon the choice of
the concept of income and the measurement
base. Each model will impart dif ferent
meaning and relevance to its users. If a
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choice is given to the enterprises to adopt
any model, comparability will be lost.

Solomons was disillusioned with the out-
come of FASB’s conceptual framework. He
felt that the Board had veered away from
the conclusions to which it was logically
forced to work3. Anthony asserted that it
(conceptual framework) has failed. The lat-
est conceptual framework only perpetuates
— and at times, even regresses from the
current practice 4.

It needs no emphasis that the standard-
setting boards in the two countries have
agreed to support the objectives of the
IASC. “ Any deviation from the internation-
ally accepted practice can only be allowed
if the exception can be justified.”

CONCLUSION
In the light of the discussions on the stand-

ard setting machinery, standard enforcing
agencies, due process in the issuance of
standards, and need for a meaningful con-
ceptual framework to ensure quality stand-
ards in the two countries under study, we
venture to make the following suggestions.

n Standard-setting machiner y. The
MASB is an independent statutory body,
while the ASB is a creation of the council
of the ICAI. It is not an independent body.
The FRF in Malaysia reviews the per-
formance of the MASB. No such review-
ing machinery has been created so far in
India. In US, the FAF operates the FASB.
The FASB is an authoritative independ-
ent body charged with establishing and
improving financial accounting and re-
porting standards. The SEC oversees the
work of the FASB. In UK, the ASB works
under the guidance of the FRC, and is
supported by a Review Panel. India, be-
ing a rapidly developing country, needs
an independent standard-setting body.

n Standard-Enforcing Agencies. In Ma-
laysia, the accounting standards are is-
sued by the MASB. The extant IASs and
MASs approved by the MASB are given
the status of Approved Accounting Stand-
ards. Section 27 of the Financial Report-
ing Act 1997 requires that where finan-
cial statements are required to be pre-
pared or lodged under any law adminis-
tered by the Securities Commission, the
Central Bank or the Registrar of Compa-
nies, such financial statements shall be

prepared in accordance with the MASB
standards. The FRF does not grant the
MASB the enforcement role. In India,
there is a need for an Act on the lines of
the Financial Reporting Act of Malaysia.

n Due Process. The due process is more
or less similar in the two countries. In
Malaysia, there is a provision for issuing
the DP and the DSOP. They are reviewed
by the FRF and then issued for comments
to all users and the media. After analysing
the comments, an ED is developed and is
fur ther issued for comments. There is also
a provision for public hearing to ensure
transparency to the due process. Such a
comprehensive due process may be
adopted by other standard- setting bodies.

n Meaningful Framework. A framework
can be meaningful only when it takes into
consideration the rapidly changing eco-
nomic, social, legal and other environ-
mental factors. A conceptual framework
acts as a “constitution” of accounting
standard setting. Accounting has to per-
form not only the stewardship function
but also has to be an ef fective tool for
decision making, and meet the modern
needs of the user. Fair value accounting
will be useful to a wide range of users in
making economic decisions. But state-
ments of fair value accounting may be
given as supplementar y statements in
the annual reports. Historical cost ac-
counting may continue to be the basis
of financial statements till the time, the
users get familiar with analysing and us-
ing fair value-based statements in their
decision making. It is high time that the
all-inclusive concept of the income is
adopted by the standard-setting bodies.
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A Planning Guide
for Small Business
How to Develop a Marketing Plan —
and Why You Should

A marketing plan is simply a
 working document you and
 any others in your service

business or professional practice will use
and review on an on-going basis. It is not
an abstract treatise you develop and then
put on the shelf. A marketing plan is
meant to be used to measure how you
are doing, where you have been … and
what needs to be done differently in the
future. It is not cast in concrete when writ-
ten, but is a flexible working document.
Most marketing plans are revised annu-
ally. Your service business or professional
practice may change more quickly, gen-
erating a need  to supplement your plan
quarterly or semi-annually with more spe-
cific action plans.

Where Are You Now?
The answers to three questions make

up a marketing plan. The first is :  Where
are you now? Answering it creates  the
most intensive phase of the marketing
process. You must assess your firm (even
if it’s just you) internally and externally.
Look at the mission, or purpose, of the
business :

n Where are you heading?

n What are your services?

n Which ser vices are more viable (work-
able) or competitive than others?

n What fees do you charge?

n What are your resources?

The last question is critical for service
businesses and professional practices, be-
cause the “raw materials” available to
make the firm grow and succeed are the
firm’s personnel or, in many cases, just
the  ser vice provider. What are the
strengths and weaknesses of your person-
nel? What skills or areas of knowledge
need to be strengthened? In addition to
looking inside your business, it is essen-
tial to analyse the marketplace :

n Who are your customers or clients?

n Who is your competition?

n How is your business different?

n What problems emerge?

n What opportunities do you see ahead?

n What are the trends in your industry?

All of this will help you understand,
more clearly where you are now and what
is actually happening in the marketplace.
Then you will be prepared to ask the  sec-
ond question :

 Where Do You Want To Be?
Where do you want to be as a firm? What

kind of image do you want? What kind of
income? What kind of  ser vice? Answer

these questions from the basis of your
goals and your objectives, and core of your
marketing plan. Consultants to service
businesses and professional practices of-
ten feel like the Cheshire cat in Alice’s Ad-
ventures in Wonderland. Alice comes upon
the cat, which is sitting in a tree; the cat is
smiling, as many consultants do. In front
of Alice are three paths. She asks the cat,
“Which path should I take?” The cat, smil-
ing, looks at her and says, “Well, where
would you like to go?” Alice says, “I don’t
know.” The cat responds, “Then any path
will take you there.” In service market-
ing, this is especially tr ue. Any marketing
technique and all promotional strategy
discussed in this book will take you some-
where. Only you can decide where you
want to go.

How Do You Get There?
This  question addresses your target

markets — the clientele you plan to serve
— and determines the most effective strat-
egies for your services, fees, distribution
and promotion. To answer the question,
you need to write down every action and
step you will take, in order, and coordi-
nate each with the other. Finally, you need
to develop a system to monitor the effect
of the strategies you’ve developed. It will
give you the feedback necessar y for your
success.

M A R K E T I N G  P L A N

S M E S

1

2

3

By Jean Withers & Carol Vipperman
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Stating Your Company Mission
Why Have a Mission Statement? Ever y

service business and professional practice
has a purpose. It might be the reason you
started your business. It could be the rea-
son you’re in business now. Or it could
be what you want your business to be-
come.

Stating your  purpose for being, your
company’s mission, at the beginning of
your marketing plan helps you focus your
energy as you prepare and implement
your plan. It orients you to the primar y
purpose of your business, and it helps you
make decisions directed toward accom-
plishing that purpose.

The clearer your vision, the easier it is
to see marketing opportunities and re-
spond to them successfully. A purpose that
is unclear or one-dimensional (for exam-
ple, “to make money” or “be creative”) is
difficult to keep in focus and communi-
cate to others.

What is a Mission Statement, Anyway?
Simply defined, your mission statement is
(approximately) 25 words that summarise
your organisation’s purpose for being.
Writing those 25  or so words may be easy
if you, as the service provider, see your
mission shining clear as a beacon. Or, writ-

ing your mission statement may be ex-
tremely dif ficult if you have two partners
and you see three dif ferent beacons. Or,
even if you are the sole owner, it may be
difficult if you have never clarified the
purpose of your  business.

For example …
In the case of a one-owner house clean-

ing service with a clear purpose, the mis-
sion statement might read :  “To provide
quality, personalised housecleaning serv-
ices so that I enhance my clients’ quality
of life (through more free time, more re-
laxation and less stress).” With partners,
the admirable qualities of listening and un-
derstanding, however, can be a double-
edged sword in business. First, too much
discussing of anything produces no rev-
enue. Second, for any business to succeed,
astute business judgment must prevail.
Compromise among the purposes of each
par tner must lead to the best choice for
the service business or professional prac-
tice as a whole.

When a service provider operates inde-
pendently and without a clear sense of
what services are to be provided and to
whom, he or she has an even greater chal-
lenge :  self-examination, followed by fo-
cusing.

Choosing the services to be provided
and the clients to be served implies choos-
ing the services and clients to be elimi-
nated which you may find alarming. Yet
everyone who buys a service responds
best when the purpose is clear.

How Do You Develop the Statement?
Any self-respecting mission statement

should include the following :

n The needs your company fulfils.

n Clients you ser ve or want to serve.

n The way you plan to serve these clients
(e.g. through consultation).

n The service business your firm is in.

Your statement should be broad rather
than specific. In addition, your mission
statement should be positive and forceful.
If your beacon is a bright one, you’ll want
your mission statement to reflect its light.

For example, “to help  mid-sized com-
panies achieve their goals through criti-
cal training and human resources consul-
tation” is a more powerful  image than “to
consult with companies on  personnel,
training and management  issues.”

You may choose to depersonalise the
statement to emphasise “the firm” or “the
company” more than an individual.

Where Do You

Want To Be?

How Do You

Get There?
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A fter weeks of uncertainty, not to
  mention several classic instances
 of ‘He said, She said’, Malaysia

Airlines is now back in the hands of the
Government ... again.

Naluri Bhd recently signed a much an-
ticipated agreement, transferring its con-
trolling stake in Malaysia Airline System
Bhd (MAS) to the Government for RM1.79
billion.

At RM8 per share, the deal was formal-
ised by Naluri with the Ministry of Finance
Inc. (MOF Inc.) and is widely believed to
be a prelude to the sale of a strategic stake
in the national carrier to a foreign party.

MOF Inc. now controls 29.09 per cent of
the loss-making company which operates
Malaysia Airlines, lifting the Government’s
direct and indirect interests in MAS to
more than 50 per cent.

Earlier, Kumpulan Wang Amanah
Pencen announced that it had increased its
stake in MAS to 20.04 per cent, while the
Employees Provident Fund repor tedly has
a holding in excess of six per cent.

MAS had earlier amended its memoran-
dum and articles to allow for up to 45 per
cent foreign ownership, and Switzerland’s
SAirGroup and Australian carrier Qantas
are said to be in talks to acquire a stake in
the national carrier.

Through Arab-Malaysian Mer chant

Bank Bhd., Naluri said the deal was
reached on at a willing-buyer willing-seller
basis, which takes into account that the
29.09 per cent is a strategic and control-
ling block of shares, as well as the net tan-
gible asset of the MAS Group.

Proceeds from the sale will be utilised
principally to settle bank borrowings. The
balance will go towards financing the op-
erations of its other businesses, including
investing in other aviation companies, and
in tourism, property and information tech-
nology projects.

Naluri added that the repayment of its
bank bor rowings will save the company
about RM77.6 million in annual interest
payments. Naluri has total borrowings of
about RM888.25 million, based on its au-
dited consolidated balance sheet as at 31
December 1999. So is this the end of the
MAS saga? Not by a long shot.

Several questions still remain unan-
swered; the most obvious being “Which
carrier will MAS eventually end up with
and who will fill in Tajudin’s (rather large)
shoes?”

There are several contenders, depend-
ing on who you ask. Prior to his exit,
Tajudin had stated that three foreign car-
riers — SA Group (which owns Swissair),
Qantas and KLM Royal Dutch Airlines —
together with Air France, were negotiating

to buy Naluri Bhd’s 29 per cent stake in
MAS.

Things took a bizar re twist a few days
later when both SA Group and KLM stated
that they had never intended to buy any
shares in MAS in the first place. Only
Qantas has confirmed that it is negotiat-
ing to buy a stake in MAS, although indus-
try sources said the four suitors had com-
pleted the “first round” of due diligence on
Malaysia Airlines and that one of them was
doing the “second round” assessment.

A spokesman for Swissair Group, Erwin
Scharer, was quoted as saying in Zurich that
the group did not conduct any “due dili-
gence” on Malaysia Airlines or negotiate for
a stake as reported. The parent company
was only interested in expanding commer-
cial operations with Malaysia Airlines.

While confirming Qantas’ interest in Ma-
laysia Airlines, its Chief Executive-desig-
nate, Geoff Dixon, was quoted by
Bloomberg as saying in a statement that
the airline “will not plan any further talks
until it is made clear to us by the Malaysian
Government what is on of fer or what will
be available.”

KLM spokesman Bar t Koster, quoted by
Reuters, denied that the carrier was talk-
ing to buy Malaysia Airlines shares but he
did not say KLM will never take a stake.

But insiders said that while all four suit-

   By Haris Hussain

 MALAYSIA AIRLINES
 WELL, IT’S OFFICIAL
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SNIPPETS
AROUND
THE GLOBE
Global Economic Prospects

The global economy looks set for solid growth in the com-
ing years as technological advances and globalisation have
helped to boost growth prospects, the World Bank’s Chief
Economist said in its annual Global Annual Prospects. “The
prospects for growth in the developing countries in the next
10 years are better than they have been over the past 30 years.”

However, the rapid world trade growth that helped devel-
oping countries during the 1990s should slow from 12.5 per
cent in 2000 to a still high eight per cent in 2001, but the out-
look is vulnerable to uncertainties such as developments in
the oil market.

Below are the World Bank’s economic growth forecasts :

2000 2001 2002

World Economy 4.1 3.4 3.2

US >5.0* 3.2 2.9

Developing Countries 5.3 5.0 4.8

East Asia & Pacific 7.2 6.4 6.0

Europe & Central Asia 5.2 4.3 3.9

Latin America & Caribbean 4.0 4.1 4.3

Middle East & North Africa 3.1 3.8 3.6

South Asia 6.0 5.5 5.5

Sub-Saharan Africa 2.7 3.4 3.7
* Estimate.

Notwithstanding the above, the latest available statistics
showed that the US, Europe and Japan each saw growth rates
decline in the third quarter of 2000 to 2.36 per cent, 2.8 per
cent and one per cent respectively, compared with 5.65 per
cent, 3.2 per cent and one per cent (revised downward from
4.2 per cent) in the second quarter of 2000.

Financial Times, 6 Dec 2000, The Star,  7 December 2000
 & Asian Wall Street Journal , 22-24 December 2000

Higher Risk of US Economic Downturn
Federal Reserve Chairman Alan Greenspan highlighted the

“possibility that greater caution and weakening asset values
in financial markets could signal or precipitate an excessive
softening in household or business spending.” He said the
“wealth ef fect” that spurred consumer spending is being sig-
nificantly attenuated. Also, the “sharp rise in energy prices, if
sustained, is worrisome ....” he added.

On 3 January 2001, the Fed cut its federal funds overnight
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ors had completed their “first round” of due diligence, Swissair
was the first to have initiated the “second phase.”

Sources also said that Qantas and Swissair would benefit Malay-
sia Airlines and the country most if they were to become partners.

“In helping the Government to narrow down its pick of Malay-
sia Airlines’ strategic partners to help rebuild the carrier, com-
pany-wise, both Qantas and Swissair should figure prominently,”
another source said.

Another transport analyst in a KL-based brokerage said that
the decision favours Qantas since the carrier has some 80 flights
weekly coming in and out of Singapore and can help boost the
local tourism industry and bring more international flights to
Kuala Lumpur International Airport, facilitating the airport’s vi-
sion to be the regional hub.

“If 60 or 70 per cent of those flights can be shifted to KLIA, it
could easily offset KLIA’s loss of the London-Kuala Lumpur route
from British Airways.”

British Airways, the single largest shareholder of Qantas, recently
pulled out six London-Kuala Lumpur flights, citing unprofitability.

The source pointed out that Qantas, a co-founder of the
OneWorld Alliance led by British Airways, could help attract more
tourists especially from Australia.

But chances of a Swissair-Malaysia Airlines deal are still high
as the Swiss carrier seeks to increase its exposure in Asia.

The source said Malaysia Airlines could benefit from Swissair’s
strength and exper tise in IT and cargo operations as well as ca-
tering services.

The tricky bit is finding an answer to the second question :  Find-
ing Tajudin’s replacement. While the Malaysian corporate land-
scape is filled with capable movers and shakers, finding someone
who combines both business and political savvy with financial
muscle, is tough.

Things aren’t about to improve any time soon for MAS. The
simple fact of the matter is, the carrier is too heavily indebted.

One of MAS’ shareholders, the Brunei Investment Agency had
also sold off its 80 million shares or about 10 per cent of MAS’ entire
equity for RM4 a piece, for a total consideration of RM280 million.

Add to that is the prediction that MAS will incur losses of be-
tween RM400 million and RM1 billion for the financial year end-
ing 31 March 2001; making an already worsening situation a lot
more precarious.
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○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○

tween 40 per cent and 50 per cent, if one
were to look at free float alone.
Asian Wall Street Journal , 11 December  2000;

Financial Times, 7 & 11 December 2000 &
The Star, 13 December 2000

Changed M&A Accounting
Proposal

US regulators announced on 6 Decem-
ber 2000 changed plans for merger and ac-
quisition (M&A) accounting that are likely
to end Wall Street fears that they could be
a deterrent to deals. The Financial Ac-
counting Standards Board (FASB) said it
was still discussing scrapping the popular
‘pooling of interests’ accounting method.
(Pooling of interests adds the book value
of merging companies for future account-
ing purposes and is seen as having helped
fuel the recent M&A boom. It is popular
because it takes no account of goodwill —
the amount one company pays to acquire
another above the book value of its assets).

The FASB has opted instead for a plan
that puts goodwill on the balance sheet as
an asset. Its value would be “means-tested”
and restated in accounts if certain events
such as sector upheaval take place. The
plan has yet to be formally adopted, and if
agreed, it could not take ef fect earlier than
the second quarter of 2001, FASB Chair-
man Ed Jenkins said.

Financial Times, 7 Dec 2000

Note : The above snippets were compiled by
Robert Khaw, Senior Manager, Technical De-
partment, MIA.

bank lending rate by a 0.5 percentage point
to six per cent. It also lowered its symbolic
discount rate on Fed loans to 5.75 per cent.
The Board said it was prepared to reduce
its rate further to 5.5 per cent, if regional
Fed banks requested for it.

Meanwhile, the Fed’s latest survey of re-
gional economic conditions (known as the
‘beige book’) repor ted “some slowing in
the pace of growth” in at least eight of the
12 Fed districts.

Asian Wall Street Journal, 6 & 7 December
2000; Financial T imes, 7 December 2000 &

The Star,  5 January 2001

Another Emerging Market
Financial Crisis

After the worries over Argentina, the
world is confronting another potential
emerging financial market crisis. A loss of
confidence in Turkey’s banking system,
combined with a liquidity crunch, drove
interest rates to a peak of 1,700 per cent
on 1 December 2000. The country was in
danger of devaluation and faced the pros-
pect of the collapse of a three-year IMF-
backed anti-inflation programme, which
started in January 2000. A new US$7.5 bil-
lion emergency loan was quickly an-
nounced by the IMF on 6 December 2000,
aimed at restoring investor confidence and
saving vital economic reforms. Meanwhile,
there were protests by employees against
pay curbs and spending cuts agreed with
the IMF.

Financial Times, 2-4 & 7 December 2000

MSCI Unveils Coming
Index Changes

Morgan Stanley Capital International
(MSCI) has announced changes to the way
it creates its index family. (The US indexer
is the main basis for overseas investment
decisions by US pension funds and hedge
funds.) The move is likely to cause billions
of dollars to move into stocks that gain
greater weighting in the revised index.

MSCI said it would begin weighting
companies based on their free float rather
than on their total market capitalisation.
(Free float refers to shares that are avail-
able for trading, and excludes the strate-

gic stakes held by companies, govern-
ments and individuals.) It also said that it
would broaden its indexes to include 85
per cent of countries’ market capitalisa-
tion, rather than the cur rent 60 per cent.
The changes will come in a two-step proc-
ess, with the first phase ef fective 1 Decem-
ber 2001, and the second beginning 1 June
2002. The long lead-time should minimise
severe price distortion that might occur
if too many investors tried to buy or sell
the same stocks at once.

The impact will be greatest on fund in-
vestors, especially those in the index funds
that track an MSCI Index, but investors in
any company being added, dropped or re-
weighted will feel the effect. Companies
being added will likely see price increases,
with declines likely for those being
dropped.

The company weighting changes will
result in countr y-weighting changes too,
benefiting the more liberalised economies
such as the US and the UK, and particu-
larly affecting Japan as many of its compa-
nies have a low free float. The likely im-
pact on cer tain Asian countries are indi-
cated in the Table below :

In the case of Malaysia, its rating drop
will be a lot less (about 30 per cent), ar-
gued K. C. Kok, managing director of
Worldsec Securities Advisors Sdn Bhd.
This is because of the increase in repre-
sentation of the market from 60 per cent
to 85 per cent, compared with a fall of be-

Current Estimated Gain/Loss

Weighting New Weighting (percentage

(%) (%) points)

Likely Winners

South Korea 9.86 14.06 4.20

Taiwan 13.2 15.36 2.16

Greece 5.26 6.54 1.28

Likely Losers

India 7.77 4.61 -3.16

Malaysia 6.96 4.73 -2.23

Chile 3.31 1.92 -1.39

E C O N O M I C S
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By Rajen Devadason

Seize the Day, Grasp 

M O N E Y  T R E E
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Some people become accountants
out of economic necessity. Straight
after school or university the finan-

cial needs of their families override their
dreams of more exotic careers. So of f they
trot into a realm dominated by numbers,
ringgit targets, interim and final year-end
results, billable hours and, of course, Lo-
tus or Excel spreadsheets. Others choose
to become accountants simply because
they love the field, thriving in the midst of
accountancy’s myriad challenges.

Regardless of which camp you belong to,
I know you have unfulfilled dreams. We all
do. And that’s okay.

But only if you eventually choose to seize
the day; bringing into sharp focus those
once tantalising, now fossilised, mental pic-
tures that you’ve allowed the dust and de-
tritus of years to cover over.

The whole point of going through the proc-
ess of financial planning is for you to get back
in touch with what is truly important to you,
and to set the stage to achieve it.

That involves goal-setting.
Two months ago I wrote about the im-

portance of having written goals. If you still
have your October 2000 Akauntan
Nasional, you might find it useful to reread
“Written Goals — Your Internal Guidance
System” (pp. 38-41).

I’d like to build upon that foundation. If
you’re between 30 and 45, what follows
may, at the very least, prove a fun diver-
sion from debits and credits, and, at best,
be life altering.

Statistical data used by the Malaysian

insurance industry suggests that if you are
an average 40-year-old man today, you will
live to be 76.93. And if you are a woman of
40, your average expected lifespan is 82.13.
The typical Malaysian lady can expect to
live at least half a decade longer than her
male same-age cohort does.

But that data, from a 12 March 1992 table
released by the Insurance Regulation De-
partment of Bank Negara Malaysia, is
slightly dated. More recent US studies sug-
gest two intriguing developments :

Human life expectancies are creeping up.

The lifespan gap between males and fe-
males is narrowing.

Bear in mind both trends when you plan
for your own golden years. You are likely
to be around a lot longer than you origi-
nally expected, and should almost cer tainly
remain in excellent health for most of those
extra years.

But to make that God-given life extension
count for something, you’d better plan to
build a large enough capital base (piles of
money!) to last you several decades beyond
our conventional retirement age of 55. Also,
you should put in place all that is necessary
to give your retirement meaning.

We return to our 40-year-old couple. If
we round off those now apparently con-
servative numbers, we see that the aver-
age 40-year old Malaysian man should live
another 37 years and his female counter-
par t, another 42.

Those are long periods in which much
can be accomplished.

So put yourself in their shoes and ask
the big question, “What exactly do I want
to get done?”

Physicists love the word ‘entropy’. It refers to the tendency
every natural system has to move from a state of order to
that of maximum chaos. Entropy explains why astronomers
believe the universe appears to be heading toward a final
‘heat death’, countless billions of years from now. Entropy can
also be used to rationalise why your clients’ accounts some-
times refuse to balance; and why your teenager’s bedroom
might look like a concussion grenade just went off in it.

Not surprisingly, entropy also works in our financial lives.

This regular feature represents Akauntan Nasional’s (AN)
serious bid to educate all Malaysians of the need for wise
adherence to sensible financial planning principles and
strategies. Each accountant is a centre of influence — in
your of fice, to your colleagues and clients; and in your
home, to your family. Money Tree is thus designed to help
you learn and then teach — in steps — all that is impor-
tant in crafting a life of financial abundance, bounty and
contentment.

1

2

If you stop and think, you might find
nothing comes to mind. That’s normal. But
if you persevere — and I’ll tell you precisely
how to do so — you’ll gain tremendous sat-
isfaction from enhanced empowerment.

At this point, I hope you’ll keep reading
until the end. Later, however, when you have
a chance to be alone, away from family,
friends and colleagues, settle down some-
where comfortable with this journal, a pen
and a pad of blank paper. Then ask yourself :

“If I had unlimited time and money, what
would I do with my life?”

I asked the same question in last Octo-
ber’s issue. If you took the trouble to do
the exercise, dig up your answers.

But if, like the majority, you didn’t do it,
don’t procrastinate fur ther. Do the exercise
today or at least within the week.

Keep asking yourself that question re-
peatedly until some tentative thoughts
form. Jot them down. If you have someone
close enough, do this exercise together
and merge your answers.

I’d like you to try and spend 10 minutes
a day every day for the next week on this
task. Write down or type out each of those
tenuous ideas.

If, because you’re a hard-nosed account-
ant, you sneer at the ‘touchy-feely’ aspect
of this exercise, that’s your prerogative.
But do heed this friendly warning : If you
don’t carry out this exercise, you run the
risk of ending your professional career ut-
terly incapable of switching gears and mov-
ing seamlessly into a period of less work
but more significance. (Have you ever won-
dered why you’ve heard so many stories
of Type A — aggressive over-achieving —
men who retire at 55 to tend to their gar-
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dens and are dead within 12 months?)
To quote from Financial Freedom 2 –

Through Malaysian Equities and Unit Trusts :
The process of financial planning involves

gathering financial data and analysing it;
thinking about and deciding upon your key
life goals; meshing the reality of your situa-
tion with the steps needed to achieve your
dreams; planning your work toward that
end; and then, most importantly, working
your plan for decades at a stretch!

n Not re-evaluating the financial plan peri-
odically;

n Thinking that financial planning is …
• only about tax planning, or
• retirement, or
• just for the wealthy;

n Waiting for a financial crisis to hit before
starting a personal financial planning
programme; and

n Expecting unrealistic returns on invest-

I had unlimited time and money, what would
I do with my life?”

If you take the trouble to turn that sim-
ple self-directed query into a mantra that
accompanies you throughout this coming
week, then your answers will definitely
start flowing for th from your long un-
touched psyche.

After you’ve jotted down 50-75 of these
actions, ambitions or dreams, you’ll notice
a pattern emerging.

Each wish should fall into one or more
of the four primary dimensions of human
existence :  physical, spiritual, relational
and financial.

As a catalyst to your thought processes,
I’ve listed 25 possible dreams below, rang-
ing from the silly to the sensible, the cov-
etous to the charitable. A few might match
your thoughts, but most won’t.

The list is of fered merely to get your
mental juices flowing. Regardless of how
close the alignment is to your own inter-
nal make-up, allow each of the 25 dreams
here to jumpstart a high-energy brain-
storm inside your skull. Each time light-
ning strikes, write down your dream.

THE BUSY ACCOUNTANT’S
STARTER PACK OF 25 DREAMS

n become senior par tner at my firm.

n buy a yacht.

n take one year off work and travel the
world in that yacht.

n gain financial freedom.

Several years ago, the Certified Finan-
cial Planner (CFP) Board of the USA car-
ried out a focused survey of the more com-
mon mistakes made by individuals con-
cerning financial planning. The findings of
that 1997 study were both intriguing and
alarming. The CFP Board discovered that
some of the biggest lifetime financial plan-
ning boo-boos were :

n Not setting measurable financial goals;

ments.

We’ll be blunt :  if you know what’s good
for you, you will put in place a comprehen-
sive financial plan. Now. [Source :  Finan-
cial Freedom 2 — Through Malaysian Eq-
uities and Unit Trusts, pp. 22-23, Edmond
Cheah, Wong Boon Choy and Rajen
Devadason, (KL MUTUAL 2000)]

Financial planning is not primarily about
finances. It is mainly about YOU. And you
are more than your possessions. Still, ‘not
setting measurable financial goals’ is way
up there in the CFP Board’s list of major
financial planning mistakes. And you can’t
set those measurable financial goals until

you take the trouble to identify your clos-
est held dreams.

So do the exercise and repeat-
edly answer the questions :  “If

DREAM YOUR
WAY TO

SUCCESS.
JOIN HER!

• own my own boutique

• buy a Honda Accord

• gain financial freedom

• get a degree in Japanese 
Flower arrangements

• buy a beautiful …

 Your Dreams!
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n buy 20 houses as rental-yielding invest-
ments.

n start an Old Folks’ Home.

n buy a Ferrari.

n get a doctorate in finance.
n buy a Harley Davidson bike.

n educate my kids.

n educate my grandkids.

n visit 20 countries in the next three years.

n build a swimming pool at home.

n become a politician.

n eliminate all office politics at work.
n initiate a charity foundation under my

name.

n be able to afford cr yogenic suspension
in 2020, only to be thawed out when a
cure for ageing has been discovered.

n own two per cent of Public Bank.

n learn to play the violin.

n visit the Moon as one of the first
spacefaring tourists before 2030.

n list a company on the NASDAQ.
n have RM10 million in assets.

n start and list a company on the KLSE.

n clean the Klang River.

n buy a Caribbean island as a retirement
home.

Have fun with this exercise. Some of us
are so trapped in our private little suburb
of the Great Malaysian Rat Race City that
we don’t notice we have, over the years,
acquired whiskers, a tail and an irritatingly
high pitched voice.

Your first step of f the circular track of
the rat race is daring to dream and imag-
ine. It isn’t impossible; you did it all the time
as a kid.

If you stick with me, eventually you
should have a list of at least 50 items. Some
of them will be far-fetched, like visiting the
International Space Station by shuttle next
year. Others will be too easily achieved to
pose a genuine challenge, such as saving
money to buy a rice cooker.

Such a wide range of wishes is the mark
of successfully completing this first stage
of the exercise — the freewheeling bit.

The next stage should take a fair bit of se-
rious contemplation. It involves discarding
the ridiculous or clearly unattainable from
your long list. Therefore, you might scratch
out the one about owning 400 rental homes,
as well as the fantasy of wooing Catherine
Zeta-Jones away from Michael Douglas.

Once you’ve scratched out the ridiculous
and unattainable wishes, focus on knock-
ing out the ones that you really — on sec-
ond thought — aren’t all that bothered
about accomplishing. Perhaps running for
political of fice?

Eventually you should shorten your list
to 15 items. Once you’ve r eached that
stage, look closely at the sur vivors. See if
some of them are the same goals masquer-
ading under different guises. For instance,
let’s assume you jotted down :

n I’d like to pay off my house mor tgage in
5 years; and

n I’d like to be debt-free in three years.

n Accomplish it.

Those written timeframes upgrade your
dreams to full-fledged goals.

Write the whole list out somewhere
prominent, such as in your personal plan-
ner, diary or even on a card that you can
paste to your bedside table.

Should you ever need to hire the serv-
ices of a financial planner, then a compe-
tent one will certainly ask you what your
primary goals are.

You will astound him by immediately
producing your list.

Before I end, just as a guide, consider
this imaginary list of Andrew, 40.

 F I N A N C I A L  P L A N N I N G  F O R  YO U  A N D  YO U R S

M O N E Y  T R E E

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○

Note :  The writer, a financial planning consult-
ant and trainer, is co-author of the best seller
Financial Freedom — Your Guide to Lifetime Fi-
nancial Planning and its just released sequel Fi-
nancial Freedom 2 — Through Malaysian Equi-
ties and Unit Trusts, (publisher :  KL MUTUAL).
He welcomes questions and comments on any
aspect of personal finance in Malaysia. Feel free
to ‘snail mail’ c/o Akauntan Nasional or e-mail
rajendevadason@yahoo.co.uk.

PRIORITY GOALS START TARGET
DATE ACCOMPLISHMENT

Build a 7-month emergency buffer Today 1 June 2003

Become debt-free July 2001 Dec 2008

Own 0.3% of Public Bank Aug 2002 2015

Start my own business June 2004 Sep 2004

Educate my kids overseas July 2005 Aug 2014

Retire in style Feb 2006 Aug 2015

Build a swimming pool Jan 2008 Mar 2008

Travel around the world Feb 2009 Sep 2015

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Here, you can combine both goals and
perhaps aim to be completely debt-free in
four years.

Keep paring down and merging items on
the list until you have seven goals that you
deeply want to accomplish. Prioritise each
one. Then dump the one marked ‘7’. You
should now rewrite your list of the top six
dreams. Those half-a-dozen goals are your
closest held dreams.

As a financial planning consultant, I want
you to add two more to that list, unless
these items are already there :

n Build an emergency buffer of between
three and 12 months’ expenses (the
more insecure you are in your job, the
larger that buf fer should be); and

n Become totally debt-free.

You will have, at the end of this week-
long exercise, between six and eight vitally
important goals. Most of them will have
financial requirements. Incorporate those
that do into your personal financial plan.

The others, while devoid of financial el-
ements, are still vitally important to you.
Go after them passionately.

For each of them, decide on specific
timeframes to :

n Start it; and

In Andrew’s case the initiation or ‘Start’
dates for the goals are separated by at least
half a year; in most cases about a year. That
separation is necessar y, because each fi-
nancial goal will typically be met by an ini-
tial lump sum investment, and then carried
through by monthly top-ups to a dedicated
savings or investment programme.

It’ s important to give yourself time to
settle into a habit of saving and investing
for one goal, before you start on another.

Andrew has made a commitment (to
himself) to reassess these goals each year,
on his bir thday. When it comes to my fi-
nancial planning clients who opt for holis-
tic, long-term service, I tend to do so ever y
six months.

If you choose to do this exercise com-
pletely on your own, I suggest that you, like
Andrew, aim to reassess your goals at least
once a year. Sweet dreams!

44
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T E C H N O L O G Y
W E B S I T E S

www.masb.org.my

www.sc.com.my

An excellent local site that is con-
stantly being updated. The Securi-

ties Commission site boasts relatively
comprehensive guidelines, relevant legis-
lative provisions and other securities rules
and regulations. It is also rather compre-
hensive in providing salient information on

www.accountingweb.com

www.accountancyage.com

Information
Technology :
Let’s Surf

Good URLs are not easy to come by.

Akauntan Nasional takes a closer

look at some of the sites that have

a broad range of useful information.

Asite that no accountant can do with-
out is the Malaysian Accounting

Standards Board’s site or better known
as the MASB website. It gives you a brief
background on the MASB and also the
Financial Reporting Foundation. For
practitioners, it is wor thwhile to

browse the latest standards issued and
the latest Exposure Drafts available. Al-
though the site does not provide the
standards to be downloaded, it provides
surfers with a brief overview of the stand-
ard issued.

Agood reference for the latest de-
velopments in the profession, with

more up-to-date news in store for you. Al-
though most of the topics are not local, it
does give a fair idea on Accounting News
and features the most relevant ar ticles on
law, accounting, auditing, information tech-
nology, etc. Visitors have a choice to log-in

and be on their mailing list. When mem-
bers log-in, their names will appear on the
page automatically. When they enter their
e-mail address, it will send periodic alerts
to inform them about the latest news. This
is especially useful for all practitioners or
non-practitioners. It may be a good idea to
add this to your favourites.

Islamic capital markets and features a
rather useful section on Frequently
Asked Questions (FAQ). It certainly saves
browsers and information seekers time to
get to the heart of the issue. Useful to note
is the link on their latest publication on cor-
porate governance.

Boasting the most recent news and
information on tax, practice, busi-

ness and information technology, this
site provides a useful search engine on
developments in the accountancy profes-

sion.
This site is also useful for profession-

als on the lookout for more up-to-date ar-
ticles on economic development and in-
ternational practices.
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2001 — What’s in Store For You in the

Year of the Snake
By Janice Cheng

According to the ancient Chinese
art of astrology, here’s how your
sign will shape up for the year
ahead (if not already known, find
out what your animal sign is in
the accompanying chart).

Even when times are tough, the
Year of the Snake has a habit of
tur ning the tide of fortune. So

make the most of it — reach out for the
luck that may have eluded you and brace
yourself for a year of romance.

The Rat in the Year of the Snake
Personal Aspect
— The Year of the
Snake is filled with
the promise of fun
for those born un-
der the Rat sign.

Don’t turn down
invitations — opportunities in store are too
good to miss.

Love — Have you been too picky in your
relationships in the past? It’s a Rat charac-
teristic. The coming year may not bring the
per fect partner if you are single, but you
could meet someone who will put your
present firm views to the back-burner. Mar-
ried? Allow your partner more space this
year for a happier time.

Money —   If financial worries have held
you back, don’t drag them with you into
the new year. Make a new star t, sort out
your affairs and prepare for a turn in your
fortunes.

Work —  Someone with a track-record of
success will note how you handle yourself
this year. Take those who are all talk and no
action with a pinch of salt. Don’t be side-
tracked — save your energy for success.

THE CHINESE YEARS
RAT
OX
TIGER
RABBIT
DRAGON
SNAKE
HORSE
GOAT
MONKEY
ROOSTER
DOG
PIG

1900 1912 1924 1936 1948 1960 1972 1984 1996
1901 1913 1925 1937 1949 1961 1973 1985 1997
1902 1914 1926 1938 1950 1962 1974 1986 1998
1903 1915 1927 1939 1951 1963 1975 1987 1999
1904 1916 1928 1940 1952 1964 1976 1988 2000
1905 1917 1929 1941 1953 1965 1977 1989  2001
1906 1918 1930 1942 1954 1966 1978 1990
1907 1919 1931 1943 1955 1967 1979 1991
1908 1920 1932 1944 1956 1968 1980 1992
1909 1921 1933 1945 1957 1969 1981 1993
1910 1922 1934 1946 1958 1970 1982 1994
1911 1923 1935 1947 1959  1971 1983 1995
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The Ox in the Year of the Snake
Personal Aspect
— If you tend to
think no one takes
much notice of you
and your efforts go
unnoticed, standby
for some major ce-
lebrity status. Your friendship and loyalty
is appreciated more than you think.

Love — A romantic proposal will take
you by surprise, but think before you leap
— partnerships for Oxen in the Year of
the Snake may last longer than a brief fling
— especially with a Rooster or Rat. Mar-
rieds who may have experienced some up-
setting times last year will find this new
one so different!

Money — There’s extra cash to be made
this year — but at a price. New opportuni-
ties may seem exciting, but take care the
commitment you offer isn’t too taxing on
your health.

Work — You may think promotion has
been slow to come your way — Oxen see
themselves as beasts of burden who de-
serve better rewards. This new year your
turn will come, but only if you are ready to
go with the flow and accept the changes
success brings.

The Tiger in the Year of the Snake
Personal Aspect — A
host of openings ahead,
but don’t be dazzled. Use
your Tiger cunning to sift
the best opportunities
the year has to offer. This is one bountiful
time you can afford to pick and choose.

Love —  Tigers aren’t afraid of danger,
but romance may have a risk attached in
the new year. If you find yourself swept off
your feet — plant them firmly back on the
ground. Happiness lies in long-term satis-
faction.

Money —  Money, or lack of it, doesn’t
worry Tigers unduly, but a year of upturn
is time to take stock. If financial opportu-
nity knocks — don’t let the chance slip
through your fingers.

Work —  This looks like one of those
years when life plays the strangest games.
A work opportunity may have been star-
ing you in the face and you failed to notice

it. Wake up, look around — and seize the
moment.

The Rabbit in the Year of the Snake
Personal Aspect
— After a period of
personal unrest, a
chance of tranquil-
lity approaches.
Your sign is also
known as the Cat in
some almanacs. Use your catlike percep-
tion to insist on a rest. You can only achieve
it by putting the demands of others firmly
in perspective.

Love — Friction in relationships may re-
sult from unnecessary stress. Ease of f and
put time aside for a relaxing romantic in-
terlude. You need to recharge your batter-
ies. Replace some of the tender ness el-
bowed out by everyday cares.

Money — Rabbits rarely take chances
and this Year of the Snake is no exception.
The care you have taken to manage your
finances will bring long-term rewards when
good fortune comes your way.

Work — Take credit where it is due -
even if you find praise embarrassing. This
is not the year to hide your light under a
bushel — you have done it for far too long.
When the effort you put in is finally no-
ticed, be prepared for the rewards that
come with it.

The Dragon in the Year of the Snake
Personal Aspect —
The Dragon sign is syn-
onymous with success
— but don’t be too pig-
headed in the Year of
the Snake. Listen to ad-
vice of friends — they
have your best interests at heart.

Love — There’s no doubt that the oppo-
site sex finds you attractive — but do they
always understand you? If you want to be
truly appreciated this year, give as good
as you hope to receive. You will be sur-
prised how a change of outlook suits you.

Money — Dragons have a knack for
spotting opportunities. In the past, all you
have lacked is the good fortune to make it
effective. Make sure you are ready when
the big break comes your way!

Work — Your horoscope carries strong
promise of unexpected success at work in
the Year of the Snake. Ensur e no one
stands in your way by building bridges. At
a time when everything is going right, the
last thing you want is obstacles.

The Snake in the Year of the Snake
Personal As-
pect — Fortune
is in your favour
and it is well
within your reach to make it a year to re-
member. The key is to avoid dashes and
accept advice. You may like things your
own way in this year of yours, but there is
always an alternative.

Love — At times, the year seems filled
with fun relationships, but they can be fleet-
ing. If you are seeking a long-term part-
nership, look closely before you leap. If al-
ready in a relationship, then all the signs
are for it to strengthen considerably.

Money — Financial opportunities may
come from an unexpected quarter. Don’ t
discuss the prospect of a partnership out
of hand. Sometimes, combined experience
is an advantage.

Work — Snakes are happy to work on
their own initiative. But take care not to
cut yourself off from colleagues too much.
Making the ef fort to work in a team may
be just the way your talents are noticed.

The Horse in the Year of the Snake
Personal Aspect
— Horses expend
so much effor t
keeping ahead of
the race. You owe it
to yourself to ease
off a little. Look at what you have achieved
and build on it by approaching the new year
with a looser outlook.

Love — Many of your highs and lows in
love are caused by taking things of no con-
sequence to heart. Rise above them. Look
for the best in your partner; you may be
surprised by the way he or she responds.

Money — Don’t be tempted to take the
first opportunity to make extra cash that
comes along. If there is a financial open-
ing on the horizon, it has to be right for
you. Move forward with money only if you
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feel comfortable — your intuition will reap
rewards.

Work — For those who feel that recog-
nition is overdue, the Year of the Snake will
bring benefits you feel you deserve. If peo-
ple have faith in you, take it as a confidence-
booster. Don’t doubt your own ability and
allow misplaced anxiety to hold you back.

The Goat in the Year of the Snake
Personal Aspect
— Stargazing isn’t
something Goats
normally engage in.
You tend to live in
the present. Occa-
sionally the time
comes to look ahead. The Year of the Snake
may bring changes for the better and you
have to prepare for it. A little planning can
pay off.

Love — You may not realise it, but out
there are people who appreciate you for
who you are. If they have not declared their
interest so far, you may be in for a surprise
this year. The relationship you dream of
may be closer than you think. Married
goats will discover doing things together
pays off.

Money — You are blessed with a big
heart, but there are times when your own
finances could use a boost. What goes
around, comes around. And in the bounti-
ful Year of the Snake, you may find your-
self on the receiving end of some unex-
pected generosity.

Work — If your work of fers an opportu-
nity to input your own ideas, don’t think
they have gone unnoticed. You imagine
your efforts have been ignored, but your
individuality has been noted. In the new
year, someone may decide to of fer you the
break you deserve.

The Monkey in the Year of the Snake
Personal Aspect
— Monkeys are
blessed with oodles
of charm. This is the
year you may make
the right impression
in the right place.
And when good luck arrives in a big way,
your Monkey instinct will ensure you are
smart enough to recognise the moment.

Aspect — You have a knack for enliven-

ing relationships. Maybe it’s your partner’s
turn to add a little zest and let you take
things easy for a while. Take time out to
pamper yourself this year — you will not
only feel great, it will do wonders for your
appeal.

Money — Extra income may not often
come your way. But the offer of a partner-
ship — even if only par t time — may
change your fortunes in the Year of the
Snake. People recognise your talent, don’t
dismiss the strength of teamwork.

Work — Don’t be too quick to take ad-
vantage of situations at work if advance-
ment is at someone else’s expense. Better
to build sound relationships. When the
time comes to move on or up, loyalty and
support will pay long-term dividends.

The Rooster in the Year of the Snake
Personal Aspect — You
can finally af ford to look
back and wonder how you
got through some of the
bad times. The year of the
Snake will offer oppor tu-
nities to relax and lower you defences. Per-
haps above everything, this is what you
need. A new, less-rigid you will help create
the change you’ve longed for.

Love — Are you guilty of worrying too
much how things will turn out? The com-
ing year is well planned for you — espe-
cially in new or existing relationships. So
lighten up and live a little. Don’t you think
you owe it to yourself?

Money — When times are tough, the
Rooster keeps going. The energy and in-
genuity you put into managing your af fairs
have given you sound money sense. When
good fortune comes, it will serve to make
it last even longer.

Work — The Year of the Snake holds
special promise on the work front. An op-
por tunity to acquire new skills and broaden
your experience arises. Don’t be daunted
when it comes along. Seize the oppor tu-
nity to improve yourself. You won’t look
back.

The Dog in the Year of the Snake
Personal Aspect — Your good luck
doesn’t begin now — it’s been building for
some time. In Chinese astrology, 2000 was
seen as a curtain-raiser for even better
things in the Year of the Snake. Dogs spend

so much time putting
others first, they occa-
sionally fail to notice
what’s under their
noses.

Love — One of the
things that keeps your relationships going
is your unselfishness as a lover. Not just in
intimate moments, but in all aspects of giv-
ing. If you are currently looking for a part-
ner, a lasting relationship may be on the
cards. Someone out there will find your
generosity of spirit appealing.

Money — Not an area you absolutely
blossom in, but this is going to be a year
for solid building. Money may come from
unexpected quarters. Look on it as some-
thing for the future.

Work — Dogs are solid, loyal employ-
ees rather than big-hitting entrepre-
neurs. But this doesn’t mean you can’t
achieve success beyond your dreams.
Don’t overlook the oppor tunities around
you and be prepared to take on new re-
sponsibilities.

The Pig in the Year of the Snake
Personal Aspect
— You are on the
threshold of a year
brimming with
plenty. What more could you want? More
to the point, are you ready for it. You had
better be, because the good fortune head-
ing your way will make up for the times
you thought it had deserted you.

Love — The year ahead will bring new
relationships for those who are looking for
them, and with them the chance to take
stock of what you are seeking. If you are
already in a happy partnership, there will
be some romantic jour neys and a better
understanding between you than there has
been for some considerable time.

Money — Who knows what form pros-
perity might take in the Year of the Snake?
If it is coming your way — and it looks
likely, Pigs are not people to hog it. You’ll
get real pleasure from spreading the good
fortune around.

Work — Don’t worry too much about
changes at work. Luck is on your side this
year. Whatever the outcome, long-term re-
sults are to your advantage. Just relax and
accept the positive benefits the year of fers
in plenty.
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ing a support group in your area, seeking
expert advice, or confiding in a trusted
friend. Seek a wide range of emotional sup-
port to act as a safety net during particu-
larly stressful times.

Devise a Plan
A challenge can be overcome with some

effort and direction. Having a plan ensures
that the end result is as beneficial as possi-
ble. (You would not start a long trip without
some type of plan — so why not the same
for life’s journeys?). Preparing yourself by
obtaining correct information and establish-
ing an ideal end result will help keep you
on track during the most difficult times.

Change Your Perspective
As already mentioned, how you feel about

challenges has great impact on how you meet
and deal with life’s challenges. Challenge is
not necessarily something to dread; a chal-
lenge may be a positive life event. Changing
your perspective to accept the fact that diffi-
cult challenges are inevitable in life can help
prevent some of the fear attached to them.
Knowing that challenges are a fact of life,
(combined with a positive outlook and
proactive effort), can go more than a little
way to facing your fears. Everyone has the
ability to face new challenges and master
them. In fact, we are generally far more ca-
pable of facing challenges than we may ini-
tially believe. Trusting in ourselves, review-
ing areas of competency and support, seek-
ing help and having a plan can get us through
new and scary situations. The satisfaction of
meeting a challenge and mastering it is a
great experience, and one that can empower
you to face other challenges in life. By enter-
ing the battle, you provide yourself with an
opportunity to emerge victorious — a real
winner in the face of challenge.

Note :  Distributed by Singer Media Corpora-
tion, San Clemente, California, US.
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Five Ways to Face a
Challenge … and Win

C H A L L E N G E

B E T T E R  L I F E

When you hear the word “Chal-
lenge” do you think of excite
ment, accomplishment and

achievement? Or, like many of us, do you
think of stress, strain and heartache?

Whether you are energised by a chal-
lenge, or dread facing new challenges, the
way you perceive that challenge will greatly
influence the outcome. The stance you take
when facing difficulties has a great deal to
do with how you will fare in resolving them.

A “Challenge” can be defined as anything
that calls for special effor t. A little challenge
in your life is a good thing. It forces you to
grow and develop. And if a little challenge
is a good thing, then facing and conquering
a larger challenge is even better! Challenges
need not be seen as negative events to be
avoided or dreaded when they do appear.
Studies have shown that greater self-esteem
can be developed when you face a chal-
lenge, master it and prepare to move on to
the next challenge. Competence arises from
facing challenges. As a child, the first time
you ride a two-wheeled bike you may be a
little apprehensive. But, after starting, stay-
ing upright and stopping smoothly, you feel
a great sense of accomplishment. You have
shown competence in a new skill. When you
get on that bike the next time, you will want
to ride a little farther. You will want to ride a
little faster. You may eventually want to ride
without holding onto the handlebars! That
is facing a challenge, mastering it and mov-
ing on to face the next challenge.

To assist in hurdling those obstacles
placed in your path, try one (or all!) of the
following :

Recognize Your Skills
Realise that you have skills useful in fac-

ing the challenge presented to you at this
time. More than likely, you have faced other

dif ficult challenges in your life and over-
come them. Try to remember that, more
than likely, you already possess the skills
necessary to overcome the trials you face.
Trust in yourself to meet the challenge!

Recognize Your Resources
Because you were able to implement a so-

lution in the past, ask yourself, what tools and
resources did you use then that could prove
useful to your situation now? Catalogue those
resources you depended upon in the past,
(emotional support like family or friends; fi-
nancial assistance, inspirational nadvice, etc.).
Then, evaluate which are available to you at
this time. If they worked in the past, do not
hesitate to make use of them this time!

Develop a Support System
Now that you have identified some re-

sources that are immediately available to
you, seek out others who can help support
you through the difficulties. Consider join-

By Deborah Wheeler
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B R I N G  O U T  T H E  B E S T  I N  YO U R S E L F

B E T T E R  L I F E

I n 1947, Subrahmanyan Chandra-
sekhar, a professor at the
University of Chicago, was sched-
uled to teach an advanced semi-

nar in astrophysics. At the time he was liv-
ing in Wisconsin, doing research at the
Yerkes Astronomical Observatory. He
planned to commute twice a week for the
class, even though it would be held during
the harsh winter months.

When only two students signed up for the
class, Dr. Chandrasekhar was expected to
cancel the session. But for just two students,
he kept the commitment, commuting the

Beethoven composed music or Shake-
speare wrote poetry. He should sweep
streets so well that all the hosts of heaven
and ear th will pause to say :  “Here lived a
great street sweeper who did his job well.”

In 1995, Ruth Simmons became President
of Smith College, a highly regarded institu-
tion of higher learning for women in North-
ampton, Massachusetts. It was an incred-
ible achievement for a woman who is the
great-great-granddaughter of slaves.
Dr. Simmons began her journey to Smith
College in Grapeland, Texas, where her par-
ents were sharecroppers on a cotton farm.

dreams and aspirations, they resign them-
selves to fate. They focus bitterly on what was
lost, instead of looking at what remains. In
so doing, they often become cynical and leave
latent talents undeveloped. However, victory
and satisfaction belong to those who don’t
choose the path of least resistance when
faced with major life challenges.

Consider the glowing example of Sarah
Reinertsen, who was born in 1975 with only
part of her left leg, it had to be removed to
the hip when she was seven. In spite of be-
ing an amputee, Reinertsen was determined
to pursue her interest in athletics. When she
was 12, she began spending hours working

Bring Out the Best  
Five Simple Ways to Become  

“If a man is called to be a street

sweeper, he should sweep streets

even as Michelangelo painted or

Beethoven composed music or

Shakespeare wrote poetry. He should

sweep streets so well that all the

hosts of heaven and earth will pause

to say :  “Here lived a great street

sweeper who did his job well.”

Martin Luther King, Jr.

By Victor M. Parachin

100-mile round trip through backcountr y
roads in the dead of winter. His students,
Chen Ning Yang and Tsung-Dao Lee, did
their homework. Ten years later, they
both won the Nobel Prize in physics.
Dr. Chandrasekhar won the same prize in
1983. The professor demonstrated the in-
creasingly rare and remarkable virtue of
faithfulness :  He could be counted on.

Professionals such as Dr. Chandrasekhar
who make great contributions, rise to the
top of their field and enjoy success and fame,
aren’t simply gifted or lucky, instead, they
intuitively tap into their achievement zone.
Reaching into their personalities, they har-
ness and effectively use qualities common
to all of us. One of those is faithfulness to a
commitment. Here are five other ways to
bring out the best in yourself.

Apply the Three “D’s” Daily
Although many jobs aren’t glamorous or

don’t pay well, you can add dignity and mean-
ing to them by applying the three “D’s” :
diligence, dependability and discipline. Mar-
tin Luther King Jr., said :  “If a man is called
to be a street sweeper, he should sweep
streets even as Michelangelo painted or

1

The family later moved to an impoverished
section of Houston, and her father found
work in a factory while her mother scrubbed
floors for white families. When asked how
someone with such humble beginnings
could rise to the top of academia, Dr. Simmons
said :  “I had a remarkable mother, she would
sometimes take me with her to work when I
was a little girl, and the thing I remember
vividly is how good she was in what she did.
She was very demanding in terms of her own
work. “Do it well, do it thoroughly, whatever
you do,” she’d say.

Even as President of Smith College,
Dr. Simmons is still influenced by her

mother. “I know the Smith Board of Trus-
tees thinks I’m trying to live up to the stand-
ards they set for me, and that’s okay,” she
says. But, Dr. Simmons has a higher stand-
ard : “Every day that I’m here I try to be the
kind of person my mother wanted me to be.”

Practice Persistence
Whether in business or in life, persistence

is the force leading to sur vival and success.
Too many people are guilty of premature de-
feat. When they experience a setback or an
emotional blow, they give up on themselves.
Rather than remaining faithful to their

2

50



Akauntan NasionalJanuary 2001

with a track-and-field
coach. Together they devel-
oped a new way for an
amputee to run. Until then,
most above-the-knee
amputee runners ran by
hopping twice on their
good leg, then kicking their
artificial leg for ward.
Reinertsen worked on a
new step-over-step method,
taking one step with each
leg, the way people with
two legs run. This allows

heaven,” obser ved John Milton, the 17th-
Century British writer. How and what we
think can shape our destiny.

Consider a Duke University study on the
effect of optimism on heart disease sur -
vival rates. When 1,719 male and female
heart disease patients were asked whether
they expected to survive, 14 per cent said
they doubted they would recover enough
to resume daily routines, according to the
study. Checking on these patients a year
later, Dr. Daniel Mark found 12 per cent of
the pessimists had died, compared to only
five per cent of those who were optimistic
about their outcome.

“When people give up and feel that they
aren’t going to make it, it’s usually a self-
fulfilling prophecy,” he says.

The lesson :  Turn your thinking dial and
become more optimistic. That way you use
your mind as a lifesaving, creative tool
rather than as a self-destructive weapon.

Tell Yourself Often, “If It’s
Going To Be, It’s Up To Me!”

Make the choice to believe in yourself
Choose to be a victor, not a victim :  to soar,
not sink; to overcome, not be overwhelmed.
Repeat the phrase :  “If it’s going to be, it’s
up to me.”

People who believe in themselves often

can accomplish what appears to
be impossible. The story of
four US soldiers during the Vi-
etnam War illustrates this
truth. The soldiers were riding
in a jeep through a narrow path
in the jungle when enemy fire
suddenly erupted all around
them. They stopped the jeep
and jumped for cover in the jun-
gle. As the bullets whistled
overhead, the sergeant ex-

plained their three chances for survival.
“The first option is to r un back onto the

road, jump into the jeep and drive straight
on but we’ll be driving right into the en-
emy fire. Our second choice is to try es-
caping through the jungle but that can also
be extremely dangerous. The third thing
we can do is run to the road, each of us
pick up a corner of the jeep, turn it around,
get in and drive back to safety. That seems
like the safest course and I think it’s our
only chance,” he said.

Because jeeps are heavy military vehicles,
the sergeant added :  “Before we attempt this,
I want to make sure each of you believe we
can do it.” When each soldier assured the
sergeant it could be done, he ordered them
to scramble back to the jeep. Each man
picked up a cor ner of the vehicle and turned
it around. Immediately, they jumped into the
jeep and drove off at top speed, back to safety.

That’s not the end of the story, though.
When the soldiers returned to camp, no one
believed they had lifted and turned the jeep.
They were challenged to repeat the feat in
front of everyone on the parade ground. Bets
were placed, and although the soldiers
wanted to prove they weren’t lying, they
couldn’t lift the jeep. The dif ference was the
soldiers were no longer in danger. In the jun-
gle, they had to believe in themselves to sur-
vive. However, at the base camp, they were
out of danger and their strong belief faded.

Lastly, if you take a personal or profes-
sional tumble and feel like a failure, bol-
ster your self-esteem with this powerful
truth from Ralph Waldo Emerson :  “Our
greatest glory consists not in never falling,
but in rising every time we fall.”

Note :  Victor M. Parachin, an ordained minis-
ter, is a freelance writer and book author in
Claremont, California. This ar ticle was origi-
nally published in the National Business Employ-
ment Weekly. Distributed by Singer Media Cor-
poration, San Clemente, California, US.

“Our greatest glory

consists not in never

falling, but in rising

every time we fall”

Ralph Waldo Emerson

3

above-the-knee amputees to run much faster.
Reiner tsen was the first amputee to use

this method in competition and today is the
fastest female above-the-knee-amputee
runner in the world. Because she was faith-
ful to herself, she holds world records in
the 100-meter and 200-meter runs.

Support Others When
They’re Down

This practice is strongly recommended
by Tom Peters, one of the country’s best
known management consultants. “Reach-
ing out to individuals facing personal or
professional problems greatly improves
our own chances of success,” he says.

“Your emotional or professional assist-
ance will not only help him regain balance,
but he also will never forget that you were
there when he needed you,” says Dr. Pe-
ters. “When you stand by someone who’s
down on his luck, you’ll gain respect as a
leader and become a tower of strength …
win the person’s friendship, probably for
life … and enjoy higher levels of teamwork
and respect from your colleagues.”

Turn the Thinking Dial and
Become More Optimistic

“The mind is its own place, and in itself
can make a heaven of hell, a hell of

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○
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Ever since my fifth form
schoolteacher had en-
chanted the class with a
slide show on his trip to
Taman Negara, I have had

a compelling need to experience this adven-
ture. I finally fulfilled my 18-year wish re-
cently. Estimated to be around 130 million
years old, Taman Negara is among the old-
est rainforests in the world. It covers 4,343
sq kms of pristine forest, straddling the
states of Pahang, Terengganu and Kelantan.
The Taman Negara Jetty at Kuala
Tembeling, Pahang is the most popular en-
try point to Taman Negara and is also the
closest from Kuala Lumpur. Other entr y
points, which are favoured by anglers and
climbers, are Merapoh,
also in Pahang, Tanjung
Mentong in Terengganu
and Kuala Koh in
Kelantan.

Driving up to Taman
Negara from Kuala
Lumpur is a pleasant
journey that takes you
through scenic routes
along the Karak High-
way. On an early morn-
ing exodus from Kuala
Lumpur, it takes me a
mere 15 minutes to
reach the Gombak Toll
Plaza that signals my
entry into the highway.
Through hills and valleys, the highway cuts
across the central Titiwangsa Range, tun-
nelling through thickly forested limestone
hills. Off both sides of the road, in the dis-
tance, you can see thriving vegetable plots
that line the sides of steep rolling hills.

The highway blends into a two-way trunk
road just of f Mentakab, about 150km from
Kuala Lumpur, passing through age-old
towns that are only now slowly awakening
to the scent of development, as seen from
the occasional mixed housing projects un-
der construction. Fruit sellers line the roads
tempting passers-by with luscious
rambutans, pulasans, mangosteens and
durians as do the odd fishermen with their
fresh catch of tilapia. After a 3-hour drive, we
reach the crossroad that takes you to Jerantut
town if you turn right and Kuala Tembeling
if you turn left. Our destination :  Taman
Negara Jetty at Kuala Tembeling, a further

20 minutes drive along a narrow hilly road.
The riverboats to Taman Negara operate

twice daily at 9am and 2pm. At 9am sharp,
we star t our 50km long riverboat ride up
Sungai Tembeling. At last my dream to visit
Taman Negara becomes a reality. Small
Malay settlements line the riverside at the
beginning of the journey, replaced by tall
trees and thick bushes as we cruise deeper
into the jungle. Further down, occasionally,
one can see indigenous/orang asli children
playing in the water. These small, dark
skinned children greet you with a friendly
wave of the hand indicating that they are
used to seeing tourists being carted down
the river. Herds of water buffalo continue
lazing in the hot sand mounds along the

river as we roar past them, almost oblivious
to our fleeting presence.

The initial excitement of voices quickly
settles down as all passengers in the boat
retreat into their thoughts, quietly gazing
at the wonders that pass by. As the min-
utes turn into hours and the sun’s rays
burn on, some shut their eyes for a quick
nap while my husband and I choose to
drink in the peaceful surroundings and
enjoy the pleasures of a sight void of con-
crete buildings and roadways. The most
common trees along the river edge are red
river fig (Ficusracemosa, aramasi), the
river jambu (Eugenia densiflora var) and
bungun trees (Lagerstroemia speciosa). We
were told that on a good day, otters (Aonyx
Cinerea) and even water monitor lizards
(Varanus Salvator), which can grow up to
two meters long, can be sighted. However,
we don’t see any, save for some monkeys.

Three hours later, at 12 noon, we arrive
at the Taman Negara Park Headquarters
at Kuala Tahan where almost all the pas-
sengers get down. Our stop is further up,
about five kilometers upstream through
small rapids. Twenty minutes later, we dis-
embark at Nusa Camp. Tr udging up the
steep concrete steps to the lodge, we are
greeted with an almost screeching hawk.
As we cross the short canopy walkway
stretched across the stream leading to the
lodge, a black creature, the size of a
chicken, flies low over our heads and con-
tinues its ear-piercing scream.

We check into our kampung house. It’s
not exactly five-star in rating but fairly com-
fortable and liveable. Here, electricity is

available only from 6pm
until 8am. No hot water
mind you, so we settle
for a freezing cold
shower and set out for
lunch feeling refreshed.
Having chosen the full
package deal at the
Malaysian Tourist Infor-
mation Centre in Kuala
Lumpur, we are provided
set meals for breakfast,
lunch and dinner
throughout our stay
there. Very generous
portions, I must say. As
we tuck into our first
meal at Taman Negara,

in hops our little ‘chicken’ friend and we re-
alise that he is a hornbill (from the
Bucerotidae family), a ver y tame and
friendly bird. According to the camp admin-
istrator, the hornbill was speared by the
Orang Asli/indigenous people for food who
later had a change of heart, and kept the
bird as a pet. It was spotted by a guide at
Nusa Camp on one of his trips to the Orang
Asli settlement and he had brought the bird
back to the Camp. That’s how, ‘Screech’, as
we named it, came to live at Nusa Camp,
constantly seeking attention from lodgers
who are quite happy to entertain him.

After lunch, we sit on a nearby bench that
overlooks the river. Basking in the serene
surroundings, drinking in the beauty of na-
ture, we feast our eyes on the pristine forest
greens and listen to the gushing sounds of
Sungai Tembeling, one of two principal tribu-
taries of the Pahang River System, the other

Taman Negara
is best explored

 by boat
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being Sungai Jelai. This is Taman Negara,
true to its legacy, beautiful beyond words.

We soon meet our guide, Atan, who
briefs us on our schedule of activities over
the next four days. Our first activity for the
day, night jungle walk, which will start at
9pm if the weather permits. Atan, however,
is not too optimistic, much to our disap-
pointment. True enough, it rains that
night and after a sumptuous meal, we
sit at the cafeteria to listen to the
crickets and monkeys. As we contem-
plate our next course of action, we
hear a strange gurgle coming from
the registration counter, which is lo-
cated at the entrance to the cafeteria.
On enquiring, we are informed that a
huge jungle lizard lives under the
counter and occasionally makes his
presence known. His comings and
goings are a complete myster y as he
is rarely seen and moves about for-
aging for food without anyone actu-
ally seeing him leave his hideout.

That night, we sleep soundly with
just the fan on as the rain cools the
air to near freezing temperatures. We
are awakened the next morning by
Screech asking for his breakfast from
an obliging tourist. Having pampered
myself all the time with hot morning
showers, I brave a freezing shower
to emerge fresh and energetic. A
hearty breakfast and we are away
with two other couples for our first
adventure, to see the Abai Waterfall.
What starts off as an ordinar y walk
through a forested canopy turns into
an educational tour as we are intro-
duced to a variety of plants and their
medicinal proper ties as used by the
indigenous people. We soon reach
what looks like a makeshift factory that’s
lined with huge containers emitting a
strong odour. Atan tells us that we are at
an Orang Asli factory that produces Resin
from tree bark, which is extracted, and ex-
ported to the Middle East to be used in the
production of non-alcoholic per fumed oils.

A short distance away, we come upon an
Orang Asli hut. Inside, a young lady nurses
her baby while the elder, probably her
mother looks on. Atan explains that this par-
ticular family belongs to the ‘Batek’ tribe, a
gentle race of people, short in stature, dark-

skinned with tight curly hair. While our guide
explains the ways of the Orang Asli, we take
in the simple lifestyle that these people lead
devoid of running tapped water and electric-
ity. A nearby stream provides water while an
oil lamp lights up their nights.

We soon cross the stream carefully inch-
ing our way across a narrow felled log that

acts as a bridge. Being small in stature, I find
it dif ficult to leap across rocks and boulders
that the Europeans in our party, with their
long legs, find a breeze. Up hilly terrain and
down steep paths, after an hour, we hear the
gushing sounds of water, signalling that we
are near our destination. A few more slippery
rocks and we are at Abai Waterfall.

Set amidst a wall of jungle flora, the cas-
cading cool water is too much to resist and
everyone jumps in for a freezing dip. After
a long hot walk, it is just what we need. We
spend almost an hour here before bring-

TA M A N  N E G A R A
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ing ourselves to leave this spot. We reach
the lodge, hungr y and tired. A quick
shower and we head out for lunch, ready
for our afternoon adventure, tubing on the
rapids of Sungai Tembeling.

Being a poor swimmer, trepidation pre-
vails as I step into the boat that will take us
to the rapids. After a ten-minute ride

upriver, the boatsman cuts off the
engine and it is time for us to get off.
Atan throws all the rubber tubes into
the water and shows us how to posi-
tion ourselves in the tubes. With my
life jacket tightly strapped on, I gin-
gerly step into the water and flip my-
self backwards to fall into the rubber
tube that will keep me afloat. Posi-
tioning myself comfortably, I propel
myself forward using my forearms.
It needs a little getting used to be-
fore being able to steer the tube to
the direction that I want.

After five minutes of floating down
Sungai Tembeling, we hear the gush-
ing sounds of the rapids. As my heart
pounds, I feel the pull of the rapids
and find myself barely able to steer
as I am literally tossed about violently
by the sheer force of the rapids. It’s
over within a minute and I find my-
self in gentle waters again. We have
four more rapids to clear, each bigger
and more violent than the former. As
I clear the last rapid, I am left shak-
ing at the sheer exhilaration my body
has just undergone. It’s an experience
like no other as anticipation, fear, ex-
citement and a sense of accomplish-
ment tear through your body as you
are tossed about literally helpless in
the rapids. My legs feel wobbly as I
get off the boat to walk to my room

for a well-deserved rest. That night after din-
ner, around 15 of us trudge off into the jun-
gle armed with torchlights to see the won-
ders of the jungle by night.

We see a snake coiled around a power line
just outside one of the guest chalets and this
looks like a great start to our walk. Before
long, we march off into the night. This time
one of the Camp mascots, a brown mongrel,
decides to tag along. As we stop to see the
different insects, we listen to Atan explain
the habitats of these creatures and find our-
selves fascinated by their variety and beauty,

The Scorpion — an ancient forest
dweller, best admired from a
respectful distance

You may catch a
glimpse of the
Malayan Tapir



Akauntan NasionalJanuary 2001 55

among them scorpions, frogs, crickets,
cockroaches and beetles. As we look
around, we can feel the stillness and loneli-
ness of the jungle. Although we never en-
counter any wild animals, the possibility of
running into one is never far from our minds
and we feel thankful for each other’s pres-
ence. At the end of the hour-long walk, I feel
exhausted and my muscles start to ache. A
nice hot shower is just what I need but I
settle for a cold shower and a warm bed in-
stead. That night, I sleep like a log, ex-
hausted and tired. The next day, we hold
on to dear life as we experience the heady
thrill of walking across the world’s longest
canopy walkway, 450 metres long, 25 me-
tres high from the forest floor.

After an exhausting 30-minute climb up-
hill to the entrance of the canopy walkway,
we take a breather while waiting for our
turn to walk among the treetops. The
canopy walkway has been built with high
quality steel cables and ropes, with the
ropes having a minimum snapping
strength of more than 5 tons and the steel
cables more than 10 tons. With the knowl-
edge that every inch of the walkway is
checked every morning and instructions
to walk slowly ringing in my ear, I take a
gingerly step onto the foot-wide plank that
will be my lifeline. The first stretch is about
100 metres and it ends at a platform cir-
cling a large Tualang tree. The view from
this treetop is breathtaking to say the least.
The next stretch of 200 metres lies ahead
and I brave the swaying of this stretch from
the walker before me. Midway, I feel a
sense of helplessness from wanting to be
on solid ground as the stretch seems end-
less and the treetops appear to be way be-
low me. I am all for adventure but this is
quite frightening to say the least, and the
faint-hearted best remain on firm ground.
I thankfully hop onto the platform at the
end of this stretch and wish that it is over.
However, I have another two stretches to
cover before reaching solid ground. With
my heart pounding in my chest I cover the
last distance promising myself that I will
never do it again.

Next, we take a long walk covering over
6km of serene virgin jungle, appreciating
the peaceful surrounding, the smell of damp
leaves and the warmth of the sun’s rays fil-
tering through the leaves. Here one can see

the variety of flora. The majority of the big
trees belong to the family of
Dipterocarpaceae, members of which are
meranti, chengal and keruing. Beneath
these forest giants you can see the tree sap-
lings, palms and a variety of herbs. A com-
mon plant in the jungle is rattan, a spiny
stemmed climbing plant. The walk con-

cludes at the Taman Negara Resort in Kuala
Tahan, the five-star abode that eludes us as
we fail to make early bookings. Here, you
have all the comfor ts of a top rate hotel.
Somehow, we don’t regret our choice of ac-
commodation at Nusa Camp as our purpose
for visiting Taman Negara is to experience
natur e. We are taken to a highhide
(bumbun) that overlooks a salt lick, a cou-
ple of hundred metres from Taman Negara
Resort to look out for wild animals. Salt licks
occur naturally in cer tain locations in the
forest where mineral salts are found on the
ground surface, usually Sodium (Na) and
Potassium (K). The salt licks are frequented
by animals, especially herbivores. We hope

to be rewarded with a sighting but are not
so lucky that day. We trek back to Kuala
Tahan to wait for our boat-ride to Nusa
Camp.

After lunch and a shor t nap, we are ready
for our final adventure: a visit to Ear Cave.
A good 3km walk through the jungle brings
us to Ear Cave, so named as the cave cav-
ern is very much like the insides of the ear.
Thinking of huge caverns, as seen in mov-
ies, with stalactites hanging from the roof
and stalagmites on the floor, I am in for a
surprise. I am not prepared for the diffi-
cult climb down to the narrow and slippery
opening of the limestone cave which seems
to go deeper and deeper into the earth with
every step. Damp and filled with bat drop-
pings, the stench is nauseating and every-
where we turn, we come into contact with
the droppings. The path grows narrower
as we go deeper and finally we see the bats
hanging by the thousands from the sides
of the walls. At one point, we encounter a
huge cave snake swallowing a bat. As there
are many other people with us in the cave,
movement is even more restricted and we
have to squeeze through minute openings
that require us to distort our bodies to un-
believable proportions in order to move
ahead and finally out into the open. Cov-
ered with filth, we try to wash up as best
as we can with our drinking water and
hurr y back to the camp for a bath.

That evening, while nursing aching mus-
cles and throbbing feet, we sit back and
reflect on our adventure. We stay awake
late into the night listening to the rustle of
leaves and the gushing river feeling a sense
of accomplishment and utter peace.

The next morning, we pack our belong-
ings and feed Screech one last time before
catching the 9am boat-ride back to Kuala
Tembeling. We have now officially become
members of the league of visitors to the
world famous Taman Negara, and believe
me, it is an experience like no other.

For those of you who are interested in
visiting Taman Negara, please make
the necessary arrangements at :

Malaysia Tourist Information
Complex (MATIC)
109 Jalan Ampang

50450 Kuala Lumpur
Tel : 603-2164 3929

The thrill
of walking
on the world’s
longest canopy
walkway
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I
f there is one outstand-
ing factor that has sepa-
rated man from beast,

that honour must surely be
given to his Creativity. Over
the ages, this gift has pro-
pelled him from mere exist-
ence to become a highly in-
telligent, super-civilised
race. Stone age, iron age, in-
dustrial age and now digital
age, there is just no stopping
him. With a brain the size of
an average fist, his achieve-
ments over the centuries
are, simply put, quite r e-
markable. However, creativ-
ity appears to be stronger in
some individuals and lesser
in others. Is this true and if
so, why? The need to know
the answer to this question
is what drove over 200 ac-
countants, entrepreneurs
and even some teachers, to
take time off their busy pro-
fessional schedules and park
themselves for two days at a
convention, listening to a se-
lect group of individuals
deemed experts in the realm
of creativity. YB Datuk Amar
Leo Moggie, Minister of En-
ergy, Communication and
Multimedia was the guest of
honour. Also present at the Convention was
MIA President Abdul Samad bin Alias and
Vice President Yue Sau Him.

Among the speakers was Dilip Mukerjea,
a man who quite simply charmed the audi-
ence with his wit and intelligence. His en-
ergetic and highly interactive sessions both
teased the audience and compelled them
to re-evaluate their mind-set. Creativity, he
said, is a strategic business weapon. Ideas,
and their applications towards innovation,
demand resourceful humans and everyone
can be resourceful if we put our minds to
it. Already running into several reprints,

of GRACE, which stands for
goodwill, rectitude, accept-
ance, compassion and exu-
berance. Goodwill — good-
will to self and others, Rec-
titude — doing the right
thing, Acceptance  — ac-
cepting ambiguity, Com-
passion — feel compas-
sion, Exuberance — being
unrestrained and enthusias-
tic.

Representing the
academia was Dr. Jane
Henry from the Open Uni-
versity in the UK. Her two
presentations covered fac-
tors that aid creativity and
innovation in organisations
that include ways to develop
ideas, sustaining a creative
climate and managing inno-
vation. In producing think-
ing students, Dr. Henr y said
there was a need to move
away from rational ap-
proaches to develop stu-
dent’s analytical skills, and
instead draw on perceptive
competencies that draw on
intuitive exper tise. This in-
cludes ways in which crea-
tivity, intuition and tacit
knowledge can be drawn
out and developed.

Dr. Yew Kam Keong, President of Global
Creativity Network which collaborated with
the MIA in organising this Convention, de-
livered an interesting session on reinventing
an organisation of any size into a dynamic
and innovative enterprise. His presentation
on Innovation Meets Bureaucracy :  How to
Make Hippos Fly, touched on a three step
approach to eliminate obstacles in order to
improve morale and motivation.

Note :  The Creativity Convention organised
by MIA was supported by Malaysian Mensa
and endorsed by the Malaysian Institute of
Management (MIM).

Are You Creative?
NATIONAL CREATIVITY CONVENTION (NCC) 2000, 19-20 DECEMBER 2000

YB Datuk Amar Leo Moggie (centre) visiting the exhibition booths. On his
right is MIA Vice President Yue Sau Him

YB Datuk Amar Leo Moggie receives a memento from
MIA President Abdul Samad bin Alias

his books Brainfinity, and Braindancing
have gone into several reprints and his new
book Sur fing the Intellect is also much
sought after.

Dr. Kweethai Chin Neill’s polished pres-
entation spoke volumes about this dynamic
lady who has made a name for herself in
the US. Born and bred in Kuala Lumpur,
she is President of K. Neill & Associates
Inc., Texas, US, and also a Professor in the
Department of Health and Kinesiology at
Sam Houston State University. Her percep-
tion of creative thinking as a result of pow-
erful thinking is contained in her ideology
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Dilip Mukerjea during his session The audience … rapt in attention
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The Creative Initiative
Laying the Foundation for a
Creative Thinking Nation
By Dr. Yew Kam Keong
FOUNDER PRESIDENT, GLOBAL CREATIVITY NETWORK

1st National Creativity Conven-
tion, Sunway Pyramid Convention
Centre, 19-20 December 2000

Introduction
We are entering the true 21st centur y

and the 3rd millennium. The world has
changed beyond recognition from the
days of the Industrial Revolution. We ar e
now in the midst of the Knowledge revo-
lution that is propelling us into the era of
Speed, Connectivity and Intangibles. In-
formation and news are transmitted in-
stantaneously in real time through the
internet and mass media like CNN. Eve-
ryone can be connected thr ough the
internet. The global economy is fuelled
by trade in intangibles that accounts for
more than 98 per cent of the world’s
trade. For the world’s largest economy,
the US, over 42 per cent of its export
earnings come from human imagination,
in the form of software, Hollywood mov-
ies, computer chips, franchising, technol-
ogy licensing and other forms of intellec-
tual property.

Age of the Golden Brain
If the Industrial Age is characterised by

Blue Collar and White Collar workers , then
the Information Age and the Knowledge
economy is characterised by the Golden
Brain workers. If in the past we leveraged
our muscles through machines, we can
now leverage our brains over the internet.

The richest man in the world, Bill Gates
obtained his wealth by selling us the im-
agination of his workers in the form of soft-
ware. Many self-made young billionaires
like Michael Dell of Dell Computers and
Jer ry Yang of Yahoo! accumulated their
wealth at super speed before they even
reached 40 years old. They have one thing
in common. They leveraged their brains
over the internet.

Stan Shih, the founder Chairman & CEO
of Acer has this to say :  “The effective develop-
ment of brainpower within a nation will decide
the prosperity of the country of the future.”

Malaysia’s Response
The Malaysian Government is well

aware of the importance of leveraging the

brain and has taken massive action to de-
velop our IT infrastructure. In an effort to
emulate the success of Silicon Valley, it has
established the Multimedia Super Corridor
(MSC) to accelerate the pace of IT devel-
opment. Advanced fibre-optics networks
have been laid to facilitate telecommuni-
cations. Multimedia & Telecommunica-
tions were set up to coordinate develop-
ment in this crucial IT sector. This is the
hard side.

On the soft side, the Ministr y of Educa-
tion has encouraged the setting up of in-
stitutions of higher learning. We now have
universities, such as the Multimedia Uni-
versity and the Telecoms University that
cater specifically to the needs of the hun-
gry IT sector. Smar t schools with a strong
emphasis on computer literacy have al-
ready been implemented in selected
schools.

Are the above measures suf ficient to pre-
pare Malaysia for the Age of the Golden
Brain? I think not. We need a Creative Ini-
tiative to lay the Foundation for a Creative
Thinking Nation.
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land, 14-19 January 2001. More than
100 of the world’s most challenging
thinkers will be presenting papers at
this conference.

Develop programmes to train teach-
ers in Creative Teaching Skills.

n  Accelerated learning.

n  Multi-sensory lear ning.

       Utilise the resources of local and
    international creativity exper ts.

n Organise events at all levels
on creative thinking and
creative learning.

     Collaborate with other
organisations and source

information through the
internet.

n Promote websites for
Creative Thinking such
as :

www.nextgenerationforum.org
www.mindbloom.com

     Allocate resources for the
development of human creativ-
ity as a national asset.

n Costa Rica has a minimum budget
for education enshrined in its Consti-
tution.

n Singapore has a Master Plan with an
allocation of US$1.5 billion or an aver-
age of US$2.5 million for each school
to introduce the world’s best technol-
ogy with emphasis on creative think-
ing and lifelong learning.

Think of a national theme to put
creativity onto the national agenda.

n Singapore has its Thinking Schools,
Learning Nation theme.

n Malaysia :  Creative People, Happy Na-
tion?

Encourage Creative Initiatives from
any sector, both public and private.

n Expand on MAMPU’s programs.

n Provide tax incentives to private foun-
dations to promote creative thinking.

Note :  The presenter, Dr. Yew Kam Keong(YKK)
is an international creativity speaker, trainer and
consultant in the field of creativity. He is the founder
President & CEO of Mindbloom Sdn. Bhd. His “The
Creativity Site” www.mindbloom.com website has
been accessed by people from over 90 countries.
YKK can be reached at ykk@mindbloom.com
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A World of New Rules —
Children as a

Development Factor
The world famous toy-maker, Lego of

Denmark has spearheaded a global move-
ment to promote creativity in children, The
Next Generation Forum (NGF).  I am privi-
leged and honoured to be appointed as the
only Asian on its eight-member panel of in-
ternational creativity experts to provide in-
put on this non-profit initiative. In its
1st Report released at the end of
1999, it had the following observa-
tion :  In this world it will no
longer suffice for any society
to have the most sophisti-
cated technology, the largest
capital market or similar suc-
cess parameters of the past
so-called Industrial Society.
Rather, it will be a world
where the creative poten-
tial of human beings is the
primary source for progress,
growth and prosperity.

Children are society’s cen-
tral development factor — a
crucial area of investment for pro-
tecting and developing the social, cul-
tural and economic sustainability of soci-
ety. Equally important, we must extend the
creativity of childhood throughout our
lives, maintaining a sense of play and ex-
perimentation. In this way, the image of the
Creative Society reflects a stance toward
life itself more than an ideology.

Present global trends point toward a his-
torically new and more important role for
children :  The Knowledge Economy, the
new digital technologies, a life-long learn-
ing revolution, and rising individualisation
all demand a stronger emphasis on crea-
tivity — especially for children.

The Creative Initiative
This 1st National Creativity Convention

organised by the Malaysian Institute of Ac-
countants (MIA) in collaboration with the
Global Creativity Network (GCN) can be
considered as a Creative Initiative to bring
about national awareness on the impor-
tance of Laying a Foundation for a Crea-
tive Thinking Nation.

As pointed out in the NGF Report, the
focus should be on children. However, ac-

tions on laying the foundation have to be
directed at education policy-makers and
teachers as they are the ones who will de-
termine the future direction of children’s
education.

The GCN was formed as a private initia-
tive to provide input and to source for in-
formation about children’s intellectual de-

velopment, par ticularly those relating to
creative thinking.

Laying a Foundation for a
Creative Thinking Nation

According to the famous scientist and
philosopher, Buckminster Fuller :  “All chil-
dren are born geniuses, and we spend the
first six years of their lives degenuising
them.”

The Greek philosopher Plutarch said
3,000 years ago that, “The mind is not a
vessel to be filled but a fire to be ignited.”

I would like to propose a seven-step ap-
proach to Lay the Foundation for a Crea-
tive Thinking Nation :

Educate policy-makers and imple-
menters.

n Singapore sent its Education Officials
and all school principals to attend the
Inter national Thinking Conference
held in Singapore in 1997.

n The 9th International Thinking Confer-
ence will be held in Auckland, New Zea-

3
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HOW TO BECOME A MEMBER OF THE

MALAYSIAN INSTITUTE OF TAXATION

Benefits and Privileges of
Membership

The principal benefits to be derived from mem-
bership are :

1 Members enjoy full membership status and
may elect representatives to the Council of the Institute.

2 Status attaching to membership of a professional body deal-
ing solely with the subject of taxation.

3 Supply of technical articles, current tax notes and news from
the Institute.

4 Supply of the Annual Tax Review, together with the Finance Act.

5 Opportunity to take par t in technical and social activities or-
ganised by MIT.

Qualification Required For Membership
There are two classes of members, namely, Associate Members

and Fellows. The class to which a member belongs to is herein
referred to as his status. Any Member of MIT so long as he re-
mains a Member may use after his name in the case of a Fellow,
the letters FTII and in the case of an Associate, the letters ATII.

Associate Membership
1 Any person who has passed the Advanced Course examination

conducted by the Department of Inland Revenue and who has
not less than five years practical experience in practice or em-
ployment relating to taxation matters approved by the Council.

2 Any person whether in practice or in employment who is an
advocate or solicitor of the High Court of Malaya, Sabah and
Sarawak and who has had not less than three years practical
experience in practice or employment relating to taxation
matters approved by the Council.

3 Any Registered Student who has passed the examinations
prescribed (unless the Council shall have granted exemptions
from such examinations or parts thereof) and who has had not
less than five years practical experience in practice or employ-
ment relating to taxation matters approved by the Council.

4 Any person who is registered with MIA as a Registered Ac-
countant and who has had not less than two years practical
experience in practice or employment relating to taxation
matters approved by the Council after passing the examina-
tion specified in Part 1 of the First Schedule or the Final Ex-
amination of The Association of Accountants specified in Part
II of the First Schedule to the Accountants Act, 1967.

5 Any person who is registered with MIA as a Public Accountant.

6 Any person who is registered with MIA as a Licensed Account-
ant and who has had not less than five years practical experi-

ence in practice relating to taxation matters ap-
proved by the Council after admission as a li-
censed accountant of the MIA under the Account-
ants Act, 1967.

7 Any person who is authorised under sub-sec-
tion (2)/(6) of Section 8 of the Companies Act, 1965 to act as
an approved company auditor without limitations or conditions.

8 Any person who is granted limited or conditional approval
under sub-section (6) of Section 8 of the Companies Act, 1965
to act as an approved company auditor.

9 Any person who is an approved Tax Agent under Section 153
of the Income Tax Act, 1967.

Fellow Membership

1 A Fellow may be elected by the Council provided the appli-
cant has been an Associate Member for not less than five years
and in the opinion of the Council is a fit and proper person to
be admitted as a Fellow.

2 Notwithstanding, Article 8(1) of the Articles of Association, the
First Council Members shall be deemed to be Fellows of MIT.

Application of Membership

Ever y applicant shall apply in a prescribed form and pay pre-
scribed fees. The completed application form should be returned
accompanied by :

1 Certified copies of :

a) Identity Card.

b) All educational and professional certificates in suppor t of
your application.

2 Two identity card-size photographs.

3 Fees :
Fellow Associate

(a) Admission Fee : RM300 RM200

(b) Annual Subscription : RM145 RM120

Every member granted a change in status shall thereupon pay
such additional fees for the year then current as may be prescribed.

The Council may at its discretion and without being required
to assign any reason, reject any application for admission to mem-
bership of the Institute or for a change in the status of a Member.

Admission fees shall be payable together with the application
for admission as members. Such fees will be refunded if the appli-
cation is not approved by the Council.

Annual subscription shall be payable in advance on and there-
after annually before 31 January of each year.
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Paragraph 75 refers to information
to be presented in the income
statement. This standard is an ad-

vance over the previous standard (IAS 5) con-
sidering the explanations that follow the mini-
mum requirements for line items. However,
in a way the comments here are basically
similar to that already made for the balance
sheet. First, the minimum line items do not
apply to all companies. Further, while the
new standard includes extraordinar y items,
this is not much different from the require-
ments in the previous IAS 5, which include
unusual credits and unusual charges. There
is no mention in this standard for the pres-
entation of continuing and discontinued op-
erations. Although discontinued operations
and also extraordinary items, and changes
in accounting estimates and policies are dis-
cussed in MASB 3, no reference is made in
this standard to MASB 3. Neither is the pres-
entation of continuing and discontinued op-
eration included in the examples of income
statements in Appendix 3.

 The presentation of the income state-
ment showing an analysis of amounts at-
tributable to continuing and discontinued
operations is required in the US.12 A simi-
lar requirement is applicable in the UK
under FRS 3.13 Thus under this require-
ment, the income statement contains two
major categories of income, first income
from continuing operations and second,

irregular or extraordinar y items.
 The requirement in paragraph 77, for an

analysis of the expenses either on the ba-
sis of their nature or their function is influ-
enced by the UK Companies Act 1981
which provides two formats in the presen-
tation of the income statement, and each
format is identifiable by the way costs are
analysed. The new provision in the UK was
driven by the need to implement the EEC’s
Fourth Directive. While the analysis of
expenses is necessar y, the classification on
the basis of nature or function may not be
so. This is because in some cases it is diffi-
cult to distinguish between nature and
function, for example, finance cost. Also,
the classification by function cannot avoid
the inclusion of “nature” items, such as
depreciation and amortisation. Such a pro-
vision on the basis of “either or” may add
complexity and confusion to the application
of the standard. There has not been much
of a problem in the past regarding the clas-
sification of expenses, as long as there is
consistency in the use of terminology and
the expenses properly classified under
operating expenses and other expenses.

 Relating to all these are gains and losses.
There seems to be little discussion in this
standard on gains and losses and how they
are to be presented in the income state-
ment. The item “extraordinary items” is
shown in paragraph 75(g). It is impor tant

to include somewhere how this item is to
be reported. Usually it is reported on the
basis of intra-period tax allocation. Al-
though it is discussed in MASB 3, there is
also silence on the question of how it is to
be repor ted in relation to tax. This simi-
larly applies to gains and losses from dis-
continued operations. The reporting of
these items on the basis intra-period tax
allocation is important because it presents
income statement information that permits
users to evaluate, assess and predict net
cash flow to the company.

 Paragraph 85 requires the disclosure of
the amounts of dividend per share. While
this ratio is useful, an even more impor-
tant ratio is earnings per share (EPS)
which is perhaps the most often quoted fig-
ure relating to a company’s per formance.
Like the previous standard (IAS 5), EPS
seems to be missing in this standard, al-
though it is included as items in the exam-
ples of income statements in Appendix 3.
Since it is an item to be disclosed in the
financial statement, it must be included in
this standard even though it is to be fur-
ther discussed in another standard.

 Paragraph 86 requires the presentation
of A Statement of Change in Equity. This is
a new addition over and above the require-
ments in the previous IAS 5, which pro-
vides for a greater repor ting quality in
terms of more informational disclosures.
This requirement relates to an earlier para-
graph (8c). The requirement is for either
a statement showing all changes in equity
including capital transactions to and from
owners, or a similar statement but without
the capital transactions with owners. This
means that under the second alternative,
capital transactions with owners are ex-

MASB 1 :  AN ANALYSIS
By Dr. Shaari Isa

LECTURER, FACULTY OF BUSINESS AND ACCOUNTING, UNIVERSITY OF MALAYA*

In 1999, the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (MASB) issued
its first accounting standard, MASB 1, which became operative on 1
July of the same year. As stated in the For ward to MASB Standards

and Other Technical Pronouncements (1999), the board had adopted 24
of the extant International Accounting Standards (IAS) and the Malaysian
Accounting Standards (MAS) prior to the establishment of MASB by the
Councils of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (MIA) and the
Malaysian Association of Certified Public Accountants (MACPA). This
article which is an attempt at an analysis and a review of MASB 1 is done
with the encouragement and the premise that MASB is “receptive to com-
ments on accounting standards...”2  This article is a continuation of MASB
1:  An Analysis, which appeared in the November/December 2000 issue
of Akauntan Nasional.

* In writing of this ar ticle the writer acknowledges
the comments made by Associate Professor Dr. S.
Susela Devi.

2 The ar ticle analyses similarities and differences be-
tween MASB 1 and other related standards (includ-
ing previous related standards) focusing on the
strengths and the weaknesses associated with the
standar d.

12 See APB Opinion No. 30, “Repor ting the Results of
Operations.”

13 See FRS 3, “Repor ting Financial Per formance”
which supersedes SSAP 6 in 1992.
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cluded in the statement but are still re-
quired to be included in a separate note.
The second alternative seems preferable
because of its simplicity as evident from
the example in Appendix 3 (pp. 40 and 41).
This is consistent with the requirements
in the UK where under FRS 3, the changes
in equity from non-owner sources are to
be repor ted in the Statement of Total Rec-
ognised Gains and Losses. The movement
of share capital is reported in the notes to
the financial statements. In the US under
GAAP, the changes in equity are repor ted
as in the first alternative. Perhaps MASB 1
should either express preference for the
second alternative or just have the second
one without an alternative. This should
contribute towards a reduction in the in-
ter-company comparability difficulty.

 The requirement for a statement on
cash-flows as outlined in paragraph 90 is
an improvement over the previous IAS 5.
The discussion on cash-flows is rather
brief, but this is understandable since it is
to be elaborated in a separate standard.
The importance of the cash-flow statement
is mentioned. However, there should be
some brief discussion as to how the cash-
flow statement relates to the other compo-
nents of the financial statements and pos-
sibly also about the preferred placement
of the statement.

Paragraphs 91 through 96 discuss the
notes to the financial statements. This is
also an advance over the previous IAS 5.
The paragraphs cover the main additional
information to be included alongside the
presentation of the financial statements.
However this part of the standard does not
explain adequately what it means by notes.
For example, does it cover footnotes?
“Notes” should only refer to those items
of information that are meant to explain
further the items in the different state-
ments covering the income statement, bal-
ance sheet, statement of cash flows, and
statement of changes in equity. The expla-
nation may be in the form of narrative de-
scription or in quantitative form additional
to the line items to be explained. Other
than these, any other additional items of
information should be classified as “sup-
plementary information.” For example, the
items of information listed under 94 are all
“notes” to the financial statements. Notes
are subject to the audit process since they
are part and parcel of the financial state-
ments. Supplementary information might
include items that are not usually covered

under the ordinary audit but might be use-
ful for decision-making purposes. Exam-
ples of such information would include
current market values of assets and the
effect of inflation on operating activities.

 Paragraph 97 discusses the presentation
of accounting policies. This is a follow-up
from an earlier discussion on the selection
of accounting policies (paragraphs 20, 21,
22). While the coverage is quite compre-
hensive, it has not adequately discussed a
ver y important topic — the users of the
financial statements, which is currently the
focal point of financial repor ting. The ac-
counting policies are presented for the
understanding and interpretation by users
of the information in the financial state-
ments. It is thus the basis on which the
proposed conceptual framework rests. The
previous standard (IAS 1) covered the as-
pect of users better. It gave the basis for
the need to properly disclose a summary
of significant accounting policies. It stated,

“The users of financial statements require
them as par t of the information needed,
among other purposes, for making evaluation
and financial decisions. They cannot make
reliable judgement on these matters unless the
financial statements clearly disclose the sig-
nificant accounting policies which have been
adopted in preparing them.”

Other disclosures are discussed under
paragraphs 102 and 103. The items of in-
formation required under this paragraph
are indeed important to users. They are of
a general nature including the legal form,
the countr y of incorporation, the principal
activity, and the number of employees.
Some of these items of information are al-
ready being repor ted elsewhere, for exam-
ple, the enterprise’s operations and princi-
pal activities are usually disclosed in the
Directors’ Report. The Directors’ Report
could, of course, be extended to incorpo-
rate these other disclosures.

 Finally the standard makes no mention
of loss contingencies and subsequent
events. These items of information are
important because they af fect the informa-
tional contents of the financial statements,
thus decision making by users. Although
these are the subject of another standard,
a mention here is quite consistent with the
purpose of this standard.

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS
MASB 1 is supposed to be a combina-

tion of three previous standards. As ex-
plained in paragraph 1, the new standard

supersedes three previous approved ac-
counting standards, namely IAS 1 (Disclo-
sure of Accounting Policies); IAS 5 (Infor-
mation to be Disclosed in Financial State-
ments); and IAS 13 (Presentation of Cur-
rent Assets and Current Liabilities) to form
a new standard with the title of “Presenta-
tion of Financial Statements.” This means
that the three previous IAS are absorbed
or combined to form the new standard but
the rationale for the combination of the
three separate IAS are little explained.
Most probably these three standards are
considered to be closely related with one
another. Putting the standards together
may have its merits in the sense that re-
lated items of information are put together.
But all accounting data are related some-
how. The virtue of the previous system is
that each topic is separated and high-
lighted yet are neatly bound in one binder.
Thus in the US, for example, the standard,
Disclosure of Accounting Policies (APB 22)
issued as far back as 1972 by the Account-
ing Principles Board still remains a sepa-
rate statement and is still applicable al-
though the APB has been superseded.

 As the title implies, MASB 1 is for gen-
eral guidance for the Presentation of Finan-
cial Statements. It implies the discussion on
the necessary components of the financial
statements, the format and arrangement of
these different components with the rea-
sons for the inclusion and arrangement of
those components. It should not go beyond
that to avoid complexity. The details regard-
ing the contents of the components them-
selves should be the subject of other stand-
ards. This allows users to see the whole pic-
ture first before looking at par ts of the pic-
ture. Also the exclusion of IAS 13 should be
consistent with the statement in the stand-
ard itself that the “recognition, measure-
ment and disclosure of specific transactions
and events is dealt with in other MASB
Standards” (p. 4, emphasis added).

The heading paragraph includes a gen-
eral statement that “MASB standards are
not intended to apply to immaterial items.”
This may lead to misinterpretation or even
abuse since immateriality is a matter of
managerial judgment. At the present time,
there is insuf ficient guidelines even at the
international level, to help preparers in the
application of the concept. Thus the stand
of the FASB, for example, on the matter is :

“The Board’s present position is that no
general standard of materiality could be for-
mulated to take into account all the consid-
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erations that enter an experienced human
judgement.”14

In spite of the above, is it not possible
for the standard to suggest as a general
guideline that one per cent (or any reason-
able percentage) of average net income for
five years to be the threshold for
materiality? Would this not contribute to
greater uniformity and comparability?

It is next intended now to discuss the ter-
minology used in the standard. The stand-
ard allows preparers to use any terminol-
ogy as long as the meaning is clear (e.g.
paragraph 58). It is suggested that MASB
states its preference as much as possible for
the sake of a more uniform use of terminol-
ogy. The trend in the use of accounting ter-
minology in many countries, for example,
Australia, NZ, Canada, and even the IASC,
seems to be leaning towards the US prac-
tice. For example, the UK terms such as
profit and loss accounts, stock debtors, fixed
assets, have taken the LTS forms of income
statement, inventory, receivable, and non-
current assets respectively.

The standard seems to prefer phrases
such as “fair presentation”, and its variations
such as “presents fairly” (paragraphs 11 and
14) in place of “true and fair” as expressed
in the Companies Act 1965. It is generally
understood that these carry a similar con-
notation as the phrase “true and fair.” The
use of the former is quite acceptable if ex-
plained that they mean the same thing and
that the rationale for the preference is given.
Otherwise, the term “true and fair” should
be used to be consistent with the MASB
Forward (paragraph 10) and of course, the
Act. This comment similarly applies to the
use of the terminology “income statement”
as against the term “profit and loss account.”

There are also a few things that may be
corrected by the process of editing. One
example is inconsistency in the use of ter-
minology. For example, the statement of
changes in equity (p. 6) is a statement of
movement in equity (p. 34). Besides these,
there are instances of the use of strong
words such as “ensure comparability” (p. l).
At the present stage of development the
adherence to standards or GAAP cannot
ensure comparability in accounting espe-
cially between companies. It can at best
“improve” or “enhance” comparability. Also
in paragraph 23 (line 5), the word “opera-
tion” is preferable to “trading” because
“trading” is rather restrictive. Paragraph 42
seems to need some amendment. Perhaps
some words are missing.

CONCLUSION
This standard prescribes the basis for

the presentation of general purpose finan-
cial statements. In a way the standard has
achieved much of its objective. The intro-
duction covers the purpose of, the respon-
sibility for, and the components of the fi-
nancial statements. In addition, the level
expected of the financial statements to be
prepared (fair presentation and compliance
with MASB standards) is also set out un-
der Overall Consideration. The enterprise
is required to select appropriate account-
ing policies so that the financial statements
comply with MASB standards and any
other technical pronouncements.

The guidance in the preparation of finan-
cial statements begins with a few accounting
concepts covering going concern, accrual,
consistency and materiality. The general tech-
nicalities of aggregation, offsetting, and com-
parative information are then discussed be-
fore focusing upon the financial statements
per se. The discussion on the balance sheet
covers the presentation of current and non-
current items in the balance sheet and the
distinction between the two. The items of in-
formation to be included in the balance sheet,
the income statement and the statement of
changes in equity are then set out. The stand-
ard ends with a discussion on the notes to the
financial statements, the presentation of ac-
counting policies and the other disclosures.

On the whole, the new standard is an
improvement over previous standards in
that it supersedes in terms of informational
contents, even though there are important
items that are not included in the stand-
ard. There is no doubt that these missing
items are not meant to be excluded in the
presentation of the financial statements.

Because it is made up of three previous
standards, it is relatively massive, and to
add to this, it is also rather descriptive. It
is doubtful whether this will serve as an
easier reference material compared to the
former three standards which it super-
sedes. For the purpose of helping towards
better understanding, each group of re-
quirements should not be crammed within
one standard. The IASC practice in the past
was exemplary.

 The idea of having a separate standard on
the presentation of financial statements is a
good one. However, the discussion in the
standard should focus more upon what is to
be presented, and how it is to be presented
and to a lesser extent the “why” aspect. The
standard should provide an outline of what

information is to be included in the financial
statement, and what format is required or
recommended, followed by some explana-
tion. The details of each item of the financial
statements should be the subject of a sepa-
rate standard. For example, the discussion
on the selection and presentation of account-
ing policies with the various accounting con-
cepts may just be briefly covered in the stand-
ard with reference to the details made to
another standard. This similarly applies to
current assets and current liabilities. Also the
statement of changes in equity being some-
thing new, should be presented in a separate
standard with the explanation of the record-
ing of the items of gains and losses not rec-
ognised as part of ear nings.15 Maybe an il-
lustrative example of a complete set of finan-
cial statements, included in the standard,
would help towards better understanding of
the requirements of the standard.

15 The FASB r equires these items to be included as a
par t of comprehensive income, which is defined un-
der the conceptual framework.

14 Financial Accounting Standards Board [1980), State-
ment or Financial Accounting Concepts, Qualitative
Characteristics of Accounting Information, p. 53.
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INTRODUCTION
The preparation of consolidated financial statements of a group

of companies is currently governed by Standard 11, issued by the
Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (MASB 11). This Stand-
ard supersedes MASB Approved Accounting Standard IAS 27,
“Consolidated Financial Statements and Accounting for Invest-
ments in Subsidiaries”, previously issued  by the Malaysian pro-
fessional accountancy bodies. Group financial statements cover-
ing periods beginning on or after 1 January 2000 are required to
comply with MASB 11.

Consolidation of Subsidiar y
A parent is required to consolidate all subsidiaries in presenting

the consolidated financial statements unless the parent itself is a
wholly owned subsidiary of another parent incorporated in Malay-
sia. However, certain subsidiaries should be excluded from con-
solidation when control is intended to be temporary. This arises if
the subsidiary is acquired and held exclusively with an intention to
subsequent disposal in the near future. Similarly, a subsidiary which
operates under severe long-term restrictions should also be ex-
cluded. This could happen when the parent’s ability to transfer funds
from the subsidiary is significantly impaired, for instance, by for-
eign exchange restriction controls. In addition, a subsidiary under
legal reorganisation or bankruptcy should not be consolidated if
the parent can no longer exercise control over the subsidiar y.

MASB 11 has explicitly disallowed exclusion of a subsidiary from
consolidation on grounds of dissimilar business activities. It is
viewed that better information can be provided by consolidating
the subsidiary of dissimilar activities with disclosure of segmental
information to explain the different business activities of the group.

Acquisition of Subsidiary
Under the acquisition method of accounting, the results of op-

erations of a subsidiary is to be incorporated into the group re-
sults in the year of acquisition effectively from the date of acquisi-
tion. Hence, the group-retained profit in the consolidated income
statement represents the retained profit of the parent and the
parent’s share of the subsidiary post acquisition retained profit.

Goodwill on consolidation arises when the purchase considera-
tion or cost of investment exceeds the net assets acquired. Con-
versely, reser ves on consolidation are resulted when the net as-
set acquired by the parent is more than its cost of investment.

Goodwill Determination for
Subsidiary Acquired on Piecemeal

The control of a subsidiary can be obtained on one instance
where the parent acquires more than a 50 per cent voting power
of the subsidiary in one single transaction. However, the shares
of an investee may be acquired piecemeal in blocks at different
times with varied prices.

In the case of piecemeal acquisition of a subsidiary, the amount
of goodwill can be determined based on either one of the follow-
ing alternatives :

a The amount of pre-acquisition reser ves is determined on the
date when control is first gained; or

b The amount of pre-acquisition reser ves attributable for each
block of shares purchased is computed.

Example : As at the financial year ending on 31 December 2000,
Parent Bhd. has acquired 55 per cent shareholding in Son Bhd.
as shown below.

The issued share capital of Son Bhd. is 100,000 ordinary shares
of RM1 each. The retained earnings and reserves of Son as at 31
December 2000 amounted to RM 135,000.

The goodwill on consolidation can be calculated as below :

a Based on pre-acquisition reser ves on 1 January 2000 (date on
which the control is first gained).

Share capital : RM100,000
Retained earnings & pre-acquisition reserves : RM95,000

Total : RM195,000
Net assets acquired x 0.55 : RM 107,250

Cost of investments : RM 120,000
Goodwill : RM 12,750

The share of post-acquisition retained earnings and reser ves
by Parent as at 31 December 2000 is :

(RM135,000 – RM95,000) x 0.55 = RM 22,000

b Based on pre-acquisition reser ves attributable to each block
of shares acquired.

GOODWILL ON PIECEMEAL

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY
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Shares Retained earnings &
Date

acquired
Cost (RM)

 reserves of Son (RM)

1 Jan 1999 15,000 30,000 60,000

1 Jan 2000 40,000 90,000 95,000

By Lee Seng Fatt
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erate future economic benefits in the form of positive cash flows?
Does the goodwill figure fairly reflect the future above normal
earning potential of the group? The answers to these questions
are still subject to wide perception and diverse interpretation. The
subjectivity concerned is further compounded by the fact that
there is more than one way to arrive at the goodwill figure. To

date, even the accounting policy for goodwill itself is still sur-
rounded by several controversial issues.

The choice of having more than one alter native would also af-
fect the usefulness of the Earnings per Share (EPS) figure, which
is commonly used as the performance indicator of an entity. Fur-
thermore, measurement of efficiency for resource utilisation us-
ing the ratio of Return on Capital Employed would be ineffective.

In an organisation where a per formance based reward scheme
exists, the policy makers are likely to have self-interest and bias
in selecting a policy to their favour. They will prefer to adopt one

that shows a better performance by having none or smaller
amounts of goodwill amortisation annually with the intention of
being rewarded with more incentives or bonuses. In recognising
that accounting performance measures may be incomplete and
non-neutral, an evaluation process would be inef fective if non-fi-
nancial information and qualitative information is not used to aug-
ment the accounting information.

CONCLUSION
The scenario discussed above has provided a choice for pre-

paring consolidated financial statements when it comes to deter-
mining the amount of goodwill on acquisition of subsidiary. In
view of the complexities prevailing in the business environment,
accounting standards can hardly be complete and per fect by na-

ture. Subjectivity in value measurement is inevitable. Certain is-
sues may not be explicit and there is still room for exercising
individual discretion. MASB 11 defines a subsidiary as an enter-
prise that is controlled by another enterprise and ‘control’ for the
purpose of the accounting standard is the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an enterprise so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. Hence, the status of subsidiar y does
not exist until control is first gained. The essence of MASB 11
inevitably provides the direction for formulating the future ac-

counting standard for “Piecemeal acquisitions of shares.”
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Date of acquisition 1 Jan 1999 1 Jan 2000

RM RM

Share capital 100,000 100,000
Retained earning & reser ves 60,000  95,000
Total 160,000 195,000
Shares acquired 15%  40%
Net assets acquired 24,000 78,000
Cost of investment 30,000 90,000
Goodwill 6,000 12,000
Total goodwill                        RM18,000

The amount of post acquisition retained earnings and reser ves
for the parent is :
15% (RM 135,000 – RM 60,000) + 40% (RM 135,000 – RM 95,000)

= RM11,250 + RM16,000 = RM 27,250

Alternative (a) Alternative (b)
RM RM

Goodwill (Dr) 12,750 22,000
Post acquisition retained
earnings & reser ves (Cr) 18,000 27,250

OBSERVATION
The dif ferent accounting policies have resulted in different fig-

ures for goodwill on consolidation and post acquisition reserves in
the group accounts of the parent. Notwithstanding the difference,
the financial position of the group is not af fected generally since the
amount of post acquisition reserves exceeds goodwill by the same
amount of RM5,250 regardless of which alternative is adopted for
consolidation purposes. However, goodwill under alternative (a) is
smaller than that of alternative (b). This is due to the larger amount
of pre-acquisition reserves taken on the date when control is first
gained when compared to the accumulated pre-acquisition reserves
taken partially from each block of shares purchased under alterna-
tive (b). Multiplying the relevant percentage equity interest held with
the share capital and pre-acquisition reserve gives the amount of net
assets acquired by the parent. Hence, the larger amount of pre-ac-
quisition reserves for alternative (a) would result in a smaller good-
will figure when compared with the cost of investment.

IMPLICATION
MASB 11 has made no direct indication reference as to which

method of calculating goodwill is to be adopted. Under this circum-
stance, an enterprise may seem to have the liberty to adopt one that
presents a more favourable view of the financial position of the group.

Alternative (b) produces a larger figure for goodwill and post
acquisition reserves for the group. Essentially, goodwill repre-
sents the expected value of future above normal financial perform-
ance. This expectation arises from some favourable characteris-
tics which enable a firm to produce higher than average earn-
ings. An asset is defined as probable future economic benefits
obtained or controlled by a par ticular entity as a result of past
transactions or events. To what extent can the goodwill paid on
acquisition be perceived by users of financial statements to gen-
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LEGAL BITES

Ab initio  Lat. ‘from the beginning’. This term
is usually used in reference to contracts, estates,
trespasses and deeds to indicate their existence
or validity relating back to their creation. For
example, in some jurisdictions, an (unlawful)
marriage ‘ab initio’ means the marriage was
void during its entire alleged existence.
In contract, it is used when it is one that is
totally without legal force.
Another example occurs when a man enters
upon lands or into the house of another by au-
thority of law, and afterwards abuses that au-
thority, he becomes a trespasser ab initio. And
if an officer neglects to remove goods attached
within a reasonable time and continues in pos-
session, his entry becomes a trespass ab initio.

Members are reminded that in ad-
dition to the obligations imposed

on them pursuant to the Accountants Act,
1967, the Accountants Rules 1972 and
other statutes or subsidiary legislation
thereunder as well as relevant and appli-
cable accounting/auditing standards,
members are required to observe proper
standards of professional conduct as pre-
scribed inter alia, in the By-Laws of the
Institute. Specifically, members are re-
quired to refrain from acts or omissions
which have been described in the By-Laws
of the Institute as “unprofessional conduct”
or misconduct, which includes but is not
confined to, any act or default likely to
bring discredit to himself/herself, the In-
stitute or to the accountancy profession.

To this end, members are reminded
that it is mandatory that they keep abreast
with the changes, amendments and de-
velopments to the By-Laws and guidelines
issued by the Institute. Members’ atten-
tion is drawn to By-Law 4-1 and By-Law
4-4 of the Institute’s By-Laws (On Profes-
sional Conduct and Ethics) which require
members to continually keep his/her
knowledge up-to-date and to comply with
the By-Laws, standards and guidelines
prescribed by the Council of the Institute
from time to time. A failure to observe

LEGAL CASES
Syed Mubarak bin Syed

Ahmad v. Majlis Penguam
Negara (2000) 4 MLJ 167

Court of Appeal
The appellant in this case is a practising

public accountant. He was also admitted and
enrolled as an Advocate & Solicitor of the
High Court of Malaya. He wanted to prac-
tise a dual profession :  that of a lawyer as
well as a public accountant in Malaysia.

His application for annual legal practis-
ing certificate was rejected. The Bar Coun-
cil relied on section 30(1) (c) of the Legal
Profession Act, 1976, that does not permit
the practice of a dual profession.

Held
The literal translation of the provision

section 30 (1)(c) which states :  Disqualifi-
cation for practising certificate.
(1) No advocate or solicitor shall apply for

a practising certificate.
(c) if he is gainfully employed by any other
person, firm or body in a capacity other than
an advocate or solicitor.

It would appear that the literal transla-
tion would infer that the appellant would
not be permitted to practise law. However,
it was repor ted that the Court would no
longer resort to the literal r ule when inter-
preting statutes.

The Cour t appeared to lean on the
purposive approach. The Court was mind-
ful that in the circumstances, it would look
at the intention of Parliament. It was re-
ported that Parliament intended that per-
sons who choose to be advocates and so-
licitors must exclusively practice as such.
It was apparent that the High Cour t
adopted the purposive approach.

James Foong J., on the practice of dual
profession (page 172) :

“…. here it is accountancy cum auditing
and law. The next could be medicine and
law. Doctors can then sit in their clinics and
be consulted first by a patient for medical
care and a little later, for his next patient,
he may be involved in treating and pre-
scribing remedies for breach of contract
on a tenancy … In the case the plaintiff at-
tempted to convince this court that law and
accountancy are closely associated. This
may be so, but each has its own distinctive
nature of work. The lawyer looks after the
legal aspect whilst the accountant concen-
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NOTICE

trates on the figures (emphasis added).
Knowledge of one may be beneficial to
another, but you cannot perform both tasks
at the same time professionally.

Imagine the conflict where the plaintiff
having to audit the accounts of a company of
which he also acts as its advocate and solici-
tor. On one hand he has to be an independ-
ent examiner of accounts while on the other
he may have to advise the same company on
how to avoid certain entries not beneficial to
the company. It may be argued that such
conflict of interest can be governed, regu-
lated or restricted by procedures. But such
procedures are yet to be thought out and for-
mulated (emphasis added).

 Contradictory situations on both these
professions must be numerous. They have
to be researched upon, identified and
looked into by qualified personnel well
versed in both fields ….”

The Court emphasised that until full
studies were conducted and such laws are

the By-Laws, standards and guidelines
may give rise to a possible complaint
against the member concerned, which
would necessitate investigation and/or
disciplinary proceedings to be instituted
against that member. The current By-
Laws of the Institute are available at the
Institute’s website at www.mia.org.my.

Whilst the above reminder may seem
superfluous and unnecessary on the ba-
sis that it is too obvious to be raised and/
or repeated, of late, there have been a
number of complaints lodged with the
Registrar of the Institute who has in turn
referred these complaints to the Investi-
gation Committee, which involve or arise
from, inter alia, breaches of the By-Laws
of the Institute. In several of these cases,
the members concerned have pleaded ig-
norance or lack of awareness of the rel-
evant By-Laws, in answer to the com-
plaints.

Once again, members are reminded
that they are obligated to keep abreast
with the current developments and
changes to the laws, standards, by-laws,
rules and guidelines relevant to the ac-
countancy profession, and to comply
with the same so as to reduce or avoid to
the extent possible, the incidence of com-
plaints being made against them.

promulgated to allow for dual profession,
the Court would not permit it.

In addition the court also considered the
argument raised by the appellant that to deny
him the practising certificate would be tan-
tamount to depriving him of his livelihood.
The Court rejected the argument as he had
a means of livelihood as a public accountant.
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